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The Hayleys Lifecode: Eﬂl’iChiﬂg the

Future

Over the years, Hayleys PLC has crafted a model of sustainable
development that exemplifies responsible, value-driven
operations. Our commitment towards upholding environmental,
economic, social and good governance practices helps us in
our pursuit of excellence - enabling us to positively impact lives
across society and build a resilient future for all.

The Hayleys Lifecode is built on these very principles, and serves
as a guide towards achieving holistic growth and progress
across the board. As an entity that is etched within the very
fabric of society, these same values help us connect with our
countless partners and inspire sustainable values within our vast
stakeholder network; guaranteeing consistent value through
times of both triumph and tumult. We’'re built on structures that
steadfastly steer towards a future of endless possibilities, come
what may.

The Hayleys Lifecode. We’re enriching the future.

The World Of

Hayleys

Since1878
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I AM DELIGHTED TO REPORT THAT HAYLEYS PLC
RECORDED A PROFIT AFTER TAX OF RS. 2810 BN,
SETTING A NEW RECORD FOR THE HIGHEST PROFIT
IN THE 144-YEAR HISTORY OF THE GROUP AS WE
SURPASSED THE RECORD SET IN THE PREVIOUS
YEAR WITH A 100% INCREASE ,’

L /"’/
Mohan Pandithage
Chairman and Chief Executive

In increasing the accessibility of our Chairman'’s
Message to a wider audience, we have also made
it available in all three languages.




Nurturing Our Resources

232 Consolidated Statement of
Financial Performance

233 Financial Capital

240 Manufactured Capital

244 Human Capital

254 Social & Relationship Capital

262 Intellectual Capital

270 Consolidated Statement of
Environmental Performance

271 Natural Capital

Statutory Disclosures
284 Annual Report of The Board of
Directors

291 Chairman/Chief Executive's and
Group Chief Financial Officer’s
Responsibility Statement

292 Directors’ Statement on Internal
Controls

293 Nomination Committee
Report

294 Remuneration Committee
Report

295 Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities

296 Related Party Transactions Review

Committee Report
297 Audit Committee Report

(5]

FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

300 Independent Auditors’ Report
304 Statement of Profit or Loss

305 Statement of Comprehensive Income

306 Statement of Financial Position
308 Statement of Changes in Equity
313 Statement of Cash Flows

315 Notes to the Financial Statements

428 Ten Year Summary

429 Indicative US Dollar Financial
Statements

432 Value of Real estate
436 Quarterly Analysis

437 Share Information

440 History of Dividends and Scrip Issues

442 Country Report
444 Group Companies

449 Group Value Addition and
Distribution

450 Awards and recognition
455 Glossary of Financial Terms

457 Independent Limited Assurance
Report

459 GRI Content Index Tool
465 Corporate Information
466 Notice of Meeting

467 Notes

469 Form of Proxy

471 Investor Feedback Form

FEATURED CONTENT IN THIS
YEAR’S ANNUAL REPORT

€

Page Page
Aligning to Navigating
best practice economic
in global headwinds
reporting
Page A s
20 T

II r I r.
HAYLEYS i |._|a-..|.|.
LIFECODE i . '
Our holistic 'H— L .F

approach to ESG

Page Page
A Global Gender
Business parity report

SASB INDUSTRY STANDARDS

Household and personal
products (Pg 138)

Construction materials (Pg 166)
Agricultural products (Pg 186)

Multiline and speciality retailers
and distributors (Pg 196)

Wind technology and power
generators (Pg 214)

Apparel, accessories and
footwear (Pg 156)

®© @ © 000 O

Air freight and logistics (Pg 224)



Enriching
People and Planet...

As we channel value into all walks of life, Hayleys PLC serves as a dynamic source of prosperity and growth.

Much like a river, our journey is an impactful one; enabling the Group to equitably distribute valuable resources,
and thereby revitalize socio-economic progress, while sustaining the livelihoods of every Sri Lankan across the
island. The pages that follow navigate through our ever-advancing path of progress, underscored by principles of
transparency and responsibility to the environment around us.
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To be

Sri Lanka’s
corporate
inspiration at
all times.

Delivering
superior
shareholder
value by
unleashing the
full potential

of our people
and achieving
leadership in all
our domestic

Values

H - Honesty and Integrity - ethical
and transparent in all our dealings.

A - Accountability - holding ourselves
responsible to deliver what we
promise.

Y - Yes, WE can! (Team Work) -
working with each other and with
our partners across boundaries, to
make things happen.

L - Love for humanity - treating
everyone with respect and dignity,
providing for the development of
our people and rewarding them
for good performance.

E - Enduring Customer Value -
enhancing experiences for every
customer, from the rural farmer to
the global consumer.

Y - Yes, we WILL WIN! (a Will to win)
- exhibiting the will to win that
which is important to Hayleys and
its shareholders.

S - Social Responsibility as a Good
Corporate Citizen - caring for
the communities in which we
work, actively supporting their
growth and being environmentally
responsible in all we do.

| - Innovation - transforming ideas
into products and services to
create economic, social and
environmental value in the
pioneering spirit of Hayleys.

We are the Hayleys Group e Leadership & Governance e Unlocking Value e Management Discussion & Analysis @ Financial Statements



Preserving

Value

We are the Hayleys Group
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GUIDE TO OUR INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT

extends to the Group’s operating
environment, value chain and both
internal and external stakeholders. The
Group adopts an annual reporting cycle
for both its financial and non-financial
reporting.

We are pleased to present our 9th
Integrated Annual Report- the primary
publication to our shareholders,
investors and other interested
stakeholders. In this Report, we provide
a balanced insight of the Hayleys
Group’s financial, economic, social

and environmental performance and
impacts of the past year and reflect on
our plans for the future.

Changes to Reporting: There have been
no major restatements to information
presented in the previous year’s Report.
Key changes to the Group’s structure/
size/supply chain in 2021/22 include the
following:

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Scope and Boundary: This Integrated
Annual Report covers the operations

of Hayleys PLC and its 178 affiliates
(collectively as the “Group”), based in
Sri Lanka and overseas (refer to Note
1 of the Financial Statements on Page
315) for the period from 1Ist April 2021
to 31st March 2022. Both the financial
and non-financial information presented
in the Report represents the Group’s
domestic and international operations,
unless specifically stated otherwise.
The Integrated Reporting boundary

STANDARDS AND FRAMEWORKS

Acquisition and consolidation of
operations of South Asia Textiles
Ltd. by the Textiles Sector

The performance of Unisyst
Engineering PLC (which was
previously consolidated under the
Others Sector) is now consolidated
under the Transportation & Logistics
Sector

FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

NARRATIVE
!/ REPORT

SUSTAINABILITY
REPORTING

179 Companies
12 sectors

148 | ocal Companies

31 Overseas Companies

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REPORT

* Sri Lanka Financial
Reporting Standards

« Companies Act No.7 of
2007

* Listing Requirements
of the Colombo Stock
Exchange

* Sri Lanka Accounting
Standards

* Integrated Reporting
Framework of the
International Integrated
Reporting Council

* Guidelines for Presentation
of Annual Reports 2022
issued by CA Sri Lanka

* GRI Standards of the

Global Reporting Initiative

e Industry standards of the
Sustainability Accounting
Standards Board (SASB)

« Recommendations
of the Task Force on
Climate Related Financial
Disclosures (TCFD)

* Gender Parity Reporting
Framework of CA Sri Lanka

* United Nations Global
Compact (UNGC)

« UNGC CEO Water Mandate

* National Green Reporting
Standards of Sri Lanka

* Listing Requirements
of the Colombo Stock
Exchange

» Code of Best Practice on
Corporate Governance
issued by CA Sri Lanka
(2017)

We are the Hayleys Group e Leadership & Governance e Unlocking Value

® Management Discussion & Analysis @ Financial Statements



COMBINED ASSURANCE

The Group ensures the credibility and integrity of its reporting through a
combined assurance model. The Group’s Audit Committee monitors the
adequacy and effectiveness of the financial reporting and internal control systems
while the non-financial information presented by the Sectors is verified and
aggregated by the Hayleys Group Sustainability Unit. External assurance obtained
comprises the following;

« External assurance on the financial information reporting has been provided
by Messrs. Ernst and Young

e External assurance on the Group’s Integrated Reporting information have
been provided by Messrs. KPMG

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report contains forward looking statements which are based on the
Group’s current expectations and forecasts of future events. Readers can identify
these statements through words such as anticipate, expect, estimate, intend,
project, believe and other terms of similar meaning. These statements are subject
to inherent risks and uncertainties and assumptions may of which relate to factors
beyond the Group’s control. The Group cautions investors that these factors could
differ materially from those expressed in any forward-looking statement.

FEEDBACK

We are committed to consistently enhancing the quality and readability of our
Annual Report and welcome your feedback, suggestions and other comments.
Please direct your feedback to,

M info@cau.hayleys.com

Please scan this QR code to refer the
feedback form.

BOARD RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Hayleys PLC’s Board of Directors hold ultimate responsibility for ensuring
the integrity of this Report. We hereby confirm that the 2021/22 Report
addresses all relevant material matters and fairly represents the Group’s
integrated performance. We also confirm that the Report has been
prepared in accordance with the Integrated Reporting Framework of the
International Integrated Reporting Council. The Report is approved and
authorised for publication.

a - Qor oo

Chairman & Chief Executive Chairman of Audit Committee

Ayt

Group Chief Financial Officer

NAVIGATION ICONS

We have used the following navigation
icons across the Report to showcase
connectivity between strategy, KPls,
resource allocation, risks and other
relevant information.
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GUIDE TO OUR INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT

GLOBAL DEVELOPMENTS IN
CORPORATE REPORTING

With a growing body of empirical
evidence highlighting the importance
of ESG information to investors and
other stakeholders, the last few years
have seen an acceleration in the
pace of change in global corporate
reporting. Notable developments

in the global corporate reporting
landscape include the following:

+ Establishment of the Value
Reporting Foundation (VRF)
following the merger between the
[IRC and SASB which represents
significant progress towards
simplifying the corporate reporting

* Increased use of the TCFD
disclosures for emission
reporting with the framework
being mandated for selected
organisations in Canada, New
Zealand, United Kingdom and Hong
Kong among others

* Increased call for external
assurance of reports for ensuring
the integrity of disclosures

Regulatory and quasi-regulatory
mechanisms in several regions

are encouraging organisations

to strengthen disclosures and
transparency on broader ESG
issues that are relevant to investors.

European Union: EU Directive
requires large companies

(defined as having more than
500 employees) to disclose non-
financial information relating to
environment, social and employee
matters including human rights.

India: The largest 1000

listed companies (by market
capitalisation) are required to
include a Business Responsibility
and Sustainability Report in their
annual report, which will become
mandatory from FY 2022-23.

South Africa: Companies listed
on the Johannesburg Stock
Exchange (JSE) are mandated to

landscape. International level regulations include produce integrated financial and
the following: sustainability reports
EVOLUTION OF OUR REPORT
2017/18 © 2018/19 O 2019/200 2020/210
* Early adoption of the GRI * Adoption of National
Standards Green Reporting &
Standards u,

* Dedicated chapters
on Group’s Economic
Contribution & Way
Forward

* Adoption of Code of Best
Practice on Corporate
Governance published
by CA Sri Lanka (2017)

¢ Disclosure of Scope 3
GHG emissions

e Comprehensive
7-part materiality test
conducted across sectors

¢ Obtained external
assurance on Integrated
Reporting practices

e The Group produced
a statutorily compliant
report following
the unprecedented
uncertainty that
prevailed following
the outbreak of the
pandemic

e Adoption of revised GRI
Standards on Water &
Effluents and Health and
Safety

e Demonstrated
implications of COVID-19
on each Sector

EMBRACING INTERNATIONAL BEST PRACTICE IN CORPORATE REPORTING

Hayleys has consistently demonstrated its commitment to elevating the quality and readability of its Annual Report through
embracing international best practice in corporate reporting. Emphasis is placed on presenting comprehensive and coherent
information while ensuring conciseness and clarity. Parallel to the Group’s significant organic and inorganic growth, we have
also strengthened and streamlined our information gathering and reporting processes to improve the accuracy and reliability

of the information.

We are the Hayleys Group e Leadership & Governance e Unlocking Value e Management Discussion & Analysis @ Financial Statements



REPORTING IMPROVEMENTS IN

2021/22

Sustainability reporting practices

* Early adoption of new GRI
Standards (2021

* Adoption of 7 industry standards
of the Sustainability Accounting
Standards Board

«  Compliance to the recommended
disclosures of the Task Force
on Climate Related Financial
Disclosures (TCFD)

*  Country-by-country reporting
for key social and environmental
disclosures

Gender reporting

« Adoption of Gender Parity
Reporting Framework published by
CA Sri Lanka

ESG integration
«  Demonstrates how the Hayleys
Lifecode seeks to harmonise ESG

CONCEPTUAL FRAMEWORK

n

integration across Group entities through codifying ESG practices, processes,

goals and action plans

* Introduced Statement of Governance (Page 28)

Reporting processes

* Automation of the budgeting process through SAP Business Planning and
Consolidation module, to increase the accuracy in planning and forecasting.

Financial reporting

« Adoption of the presentation improvements recommended in the Guidelines
for Presentation of Annual Reports 2022 issued by CA Sri Lanka. Key areas of
disclosures based on the Guidelines are listed below:

Financial Reporting
Non-Financial Reporting

e Sustainability Reporting

« Diversity and Inclusion

* Governance

*  Risk Reporting

*  Management Commentary

* Disclosure of Other Information

Effective Business Reporting Processes

* Transparency in Corporate Reporting

N

Please scan this QR code to refer
Y, our 9th Integrated Annual Report.

-
TRANSPARENCY

* Robust internal processes to ensure
the integrity of the financial and non-
financial information

» External assurance on the Financial
Statements and the Integrated Report

» Strengthened disclosures on Anti-
Corruption programmes and Country-
by-Country reporting in line with the
recommendations of Transparency

S International Sri Lanka

-
ACCOUNTABILITY

N

J &

Clearly defined governance structures
at both Sector and Group level to
support the timeliness, accuracy and
relevance of the financial and non-
financial information provided.

Statement of Board Responsibility in
confirming the integrity of the Annual
Report

Board commitment to ESG through the
launch of Hayleys Lifecode (Pages 20- 21)/

-
GOVERNANCE

N

» Voluntary adoption of the Code of Best
Practice on Corporate Governance
issued by CA Sri Lanka (2017)

» Skilled and diverse Board of Directors,
with an appropriate balance between
executive, non-executive and
independent Directors

« Comprehensive information on the
Group’s governance practices and
how the Board contributed to value
creation during the year is given on
page 66 of this Report.

-
SUSTAINABILITY

N

Compliance to several globally accepted
sustainability reporting frameworks

Presentation of Economic, Social and
Environmental Sustainability statements

Sustainability aspirations and roadmap
clearly articulated through the Hayleys
Lifecode

Systematic and comprehensive
materiality analysis in place to
determine sustainability impacts
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NO.1IN LMD
TOP 100

NO. 1IN BUSINESS TODAY
TOP 40

FY 2020/21
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CORPORATE REPORTING

CA Sri Lanka Annual Report Awards 2021
Gold Awards
Integrated Reporting: Hayleys PLC

Trading Companies: Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC

Manufacturing Companies Turnover over
Rs 5 bn: Dipped Products PLC

Plantation Companies: Joint winners Kelani
Valley Plantations PLC and Talawakelle Tea
Estates PLC

Service Organisations: Hayleys Advantis Ltd

Silver Awards

Overall Excellence in Financial Reporting:
Hayleys PLC

Diversified Holdings (Groups above 10
subsidiaries): Hayleys PLC

Integrated Reporting Best Disclosure on
Stakeholder Engagement: Hayleys PLC
Management Commentary: Hayleys PLC

Best Disclosures on Business Model:
Hayleys PLC

Manufacturing Companies Turnover over
Rs 5 bn: Alumex PLC

Bronze Awards
Manufacturing Companies Turnover over
Rs 5 bn: Regnis (Lanka) PLC

Manufacturing Companies Turnover upto
Rs 5 bn: Alumex PLC

Asia Integrated Reporting Awards

Asia’s Best Integrated Report (Large
Company)- Gold: Hayleys PLC

ACCA Sri Lanka Sustainability Reporting
Awards 2021

Conglomerates and Diversified Category-
Winner: Hayleys PLC

BUSINESS EXCELLENCE

National Business Excellence
Awards 2021

Winner- Large category: HJS
Condiments Ltd

Winner - Manufacturing Non-Traditional
Sector: HJS Condiments Ltd

Winner-Machinery and Light
Engineering Sector: Alumex PLC

Winner- Excellence Global market
Reach: HJS Condiments Ltd

Winner- Export Sector: Dipped
Products PLC

Others

Winner-National Industry Excellence
Awards 2022: Chas P.Hayley & Company

Winner-Business World Excellence
Awards 2020 business world
international organisation, USA large

scale agriculture & plantations category:

Kelani Valley Plantations PLC

CONTRIBUTION TO EXPORTS
Presidential Export Awards 2020/21

Winner-Best Exporter Award: HJS
Condiments Ltd

Winner-Best Exporter Award in the
Floriculture Sector: Quality Seed Co.
(Pvt) Ltd

Best Exporter of the Year in the Latex
Rubber Products Sector: Dipped
Products PLC

Best Exporter Coconut Shells Sector:
Haycarb PLC

Best Exporter Marine and Offshore
Engineering: Hayleys Energy Services
Lanka (Pvt) Ltd

* Please refer page 450-454 for the full list of awards

National Chamber of Exporter
Awards 2020/21

* Gold Award- Processed Foods Sector
Extra Large Category: HJS Condiments
(Pvt) Ltd

* Gold Award-Rubber and rubber
products in the extra large category:
Dipped Products PLC

HR PRACTICES

Great Place to Work Certification
Asia’s best workplaces
Talawakelle Tea Estates PLC
Mountain Hawk Express

Singer Finance PLC (Lanka) PLC

Among Sri Lanka’s top 40 workplaces
Kelani Valley Plantations PLC

* Winner- South Asia Business Excellence
Awards 2021 - Kelani Valley Plantations PLC

* Sector Most innovative HR practices
award - Kelani Valley Plantations PLC

* Top 10 winner in best management
companies - Best Management Practice
Company Awards 2022 - Kelani Valley
Plantations PLC

SUSTAINABILITY

Best Corporate Citizen Sustainability
Awards 2021

Gold Awards

Triple Bottom Line - Dipped Products PLC

Agriculture Sector: Kelani Valley
Plantations PLC

World’s first plantation company and Sri
Lanka’s first organisation to commit to
Science Based Targets Talawakelle Tea
Estates PLC

Sri Lanka’s first fabric mill to commit to
Science Based Targets : Hayleys Fabric PLC
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WE ARE THE HAYLEYS GROUP

The Hayleys Group is a leading diversified conglomerate, and one of the country’s largest value-added exporters. The
Group commands globally leading market positions in several of its key sectors and its products are sold in over 70
markets. Through a vibrant history of 144 years, the Group has nurtured deep-rooted relationships across the country’s
agricultural supply chains, distribution networks and customer segments, delivering significant socio-economic value
to its diverse stakeholders. With strong capabilities in manufacturing, research and development and sustainability,

the Group has been at the forefront of driving Sri Lankan industries forward, through innovation, capacity building and
responsible corporate citizenship.

BUSINESS PROFILE

RELATIVE COMTRIBUTION OF SECTORS
Size of circle denotes Earnings Before Interest and Tax

120,200

100,200

E

E

Fevande (R mnd

40,000

20,200

o

Ll ] TE,000 FOO, R0
Liakllitias (Rs. mn)

Solid circle denotes positive earnings while unfilled circle represents negative earnings

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 2021/22

GROUP MARKET f—
ASSETS CAPITALISATION \
2 Rs. 403.08 bn Rs. 14613 bn

£8); v dﬂ]/” v %(Z?

- A & ®
REVENUE \ = J PROFIT FOR

© o EQUITY

Rs. 338.01bn 1& / THE YEAR Rs.105.29 bn
- Rs. 2810 bn

We are the Hayleys Group e Leadership & Governance @ Unlocking Value e Management Discussion & Analysis @ Financial Statements
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IMPACTS

RELATIVE CONTRIBUTION OF SECTORS

Others

Size of circle indicates Carbon Footprint
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T o000
&
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(=]
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2500 .
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E,000 12,000 15,000 20,000 25 e
Economic Valus (Rs. mn)
SOCIO-ECONOMIC HIGHLIGHTS 2021/22
SHARE OF SRI LANKA’S I
EXPORT INCOME ) TEA & RUBBER
GENERATED ' PRODUCTION
USD. 615.98 mn f W 3.61% & 4.27% respectively | o
74 v 225
/\ @ /\ /\
ECONOMIC VALUE | Cj _.I SHARE OF HOUSEHOLD SHARE OF RENEWABLE
GENERATED "-.__ / & INDUSTRIAL GLOVE ENERGY GENERATION
Rs. 103.09 bn M MARKET 3.08%

— 5%
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PORTFOLIO HIGHLIGHTS 2021/22

Sri Lanka’s leading manufacturer
and exporter of value-added
coconut fibre products, with a
global reputation for innovation,
and customised solutions.

HIGHLIGHTS OF 2021/22

e Entry into 11 new markets

43 new products launched

¢ Ecologically sustainable
products

PERFORMANCE

o +42% revenue growth

o +127% profit growth

» +88% economic value growth

* +20% increase in carbon
footprint

CONTRIBUTION TO GROUP

Revenue  ®mPBT
Employees m Carbon footprint

ECO SOLUTIONS

Serves 5% of global demand
for household and industrial
gloves, with a global reputation
for innovation, quality and
sustainability

HIGHLIGHTS OF 2021/22
* Capacity expansion across all
5 facilities

e Expansion of "DPL Firstlight”
farmer network

«  Development of sports gloves
PERFORMANCE

e +25% revenue growth

*  -8% profit decline

e +33% economic value growth

* -0.7% decrease in carbon
footprint

CONTRIBUTION TO GROUP

18%
7%
12%
1%

Revenue  mPBT
Employees m Carbon footprint

PURIFICATION

The world’s largest manufacturer
of coconut-shell based activated
carbon, we have built a global
reputation for quality and
sustainable production methods

HIGHLIGHTS OF 2021/22

* Value-added products focus

*  Expansion of "Haritha Angara”
initiative

* Pellet plant capacity
enhancement

PERFORMANCE

e +29% revenue growth

*  +4% profit growth

e +28% economic value growth

*  -12% decrease in carbon
footprint

CONTRIBUTION TO GROUP

13%
5%
. 1%

Revenue  mPBT
Employees m Carbon footprint

We are the Hayleys Group e Leadership & Governance e

Unlocking Value @ Management Discussion & Analysis @ Financial Statements
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TEXTILES

We supply fabric to leading
global fashion brands and have
the capability to cater to end- to-
end customer requirements

HIGHLIGHTS OF 2021/22
* Acquisition of South Asia
Textiles Ltd.

«  Expansion of "INNO product”
range

* Established largest roof solar
system in Sri Lanka

PERFORMANCE

e +117% revenue growth

o +270% profit growth

*  +165% economic value growth

¢ +67% increase in carbon
footprint

CONTRIBUTION TO GROUP

Revenue  mPBT
Employees m Carbon footprint

CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS

We are Sri Lanka’s leading
manufacturer of aluminium
extrusions, offering a range of
products to the residential and
industrial segments.

HIGHLIGHTS OF 2021/22
* Strong growth in exports

* |ncrease reliance on recycled
raw materials

* Launch of ABS Proprietary
system

PERFORMANCE

e +62% revenue growth

e +37% profit growth

*  +19% economic value growth

e +22% increase in carbon
footprint

CONTRIBUTION TO GROUP

Revenue  ®mPBT
Employees m Carbon footprint

PLANTATIONS

One of Sri Lanka’s largest
plantation sector contributors,
we generate 3.6% and 4.3% of
the country’s tea and rubber
production respectively

HIGHLIGHTS OF 2021/22
¢ Innovation and market
expansion in value-added tea

* Sustainable and regenerative
agriculture

« Both RPCs obtained Great
Place to Work certification

PERFORMANCE

¢ +9% revenue growth

e +69% profit growth

e +22% economic value growth

+  -10% decrease in carbon
footprint

CONTRIBUTION TO GROUP

Revenue  mPBT
Employees m Carbon footprint
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PORTFOLIO HIGHLIGHTS 2021/22

We are an industry pioneer

in agricultural innovation

and provide a wide range of
agriculture related solutions to
the retail and export markets

HIGHLIGHTS OF 2021/22
* 53 new products developed

e Expansion of "Inotec Piyasa”
to educate farmers

¢ Value injection through
outgrower programs

PERFORMANCE

¢ +25% revenue growth

*  +41% profit growth

e +55% economic value growth

* No major change in carbon
footprint

CONTRIBUTION TO GROUP

Revenue ®PBT
Employees m Carbon footprint

AGRICULTURE

LEISURE

We own and operate 4 properties
in Sri Lanka and Maldives and
manage 4 properties through the
Amaya Resorts chain and five-
star city hotel- The Kingsbury

HIGHLIGHTS OF 2021/22
* 60% market share in food
delivery

*  Above 8 Booking.com rating
for all resorts

e >4 300 CSR beneficiaries
PERFORMANCE

e +154% revenue growth

e +29% loss reduction

*  +18% increase in carbon
footprint

CONTRIBUTION TO GROUP

Revenue  mPBT
Employees m Carbon footprint

INDUSTRY INPUTS, POWER & ENERGY

We supply close to 3% of the
country’s total renewable energy
with an installed capacity of
50MW of hydro, solar and wind
power plants.

HIGHLIGHTS OF 2021/22
15472 GWh renewable energy
generated

23 new products launched

¢ 35 new principals acquired
PERFORMANCE

«  +41% revenue growth

e +32% profit growth

*  +15% economic value growth

e +69% increase in carbon
footprint

CONTRIBUTION TO GROUP

Revenue  mPBT
Employees m Carbon footprint

We are the Hayleys Group e Leadership & Governance e

Unlocking Value @ Management Discussion & Analysis @ Financial Statements
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CONSUMER & RETAIL

We own and operate Sri Lanka’s
leading consumer durables
player Singer PLC which has
dominant market positions in
numerous product segments.
We also represent the globally
renowned brand Proctor and
Gamble

HIGHLIGHTS OF 2021/22
* Certified as a Great Place to
Work

* 62 outlets rebranded
* 7 new brands added

PERFORMANCE

«  +14% revenue growth
¢ +59% profit growth

e +43% economic value growth

«  -3% decrease in carbon footprint

CONTRIBUTION TO GROUP

Revenue ®PBT
Employees m Carbon footprint

TRANSPORTATION & LOGISTICS

Sri Lanka’s leading player in
the transportation and logistics
industry. We provide the entire
gamut of transportation related
services

HIGHLIGHTS OF 2021/22

* Acquisition of a multi purpose

floating craft

* Acquisition of Unisyst
Engineering PLC

*  Completed construction of Sri

Lanka’s largest warehousing
complex

PERFORMANCE
*  +84% revenue growth
e +243% profit growth

e +87% economic value growth

e +11% increase in carbon footprint

CONTRIBUTION TO GROUP

Revenue ®mPBT
Employees m Carbon footprint

The Sector includes our BPO and
shared services, Fentons Limited
and the Group Services

HIGHLIGHTS OF 2021/22

* No.Tin LMD Top 100

*«  No. 1in Business Today Top 40

40 MW of solar systems
installed

PERFORMANCE

*«  +112% revenue growth

+165% profit growth

¢ +53% economic value growth

*  +3% increase in carbon
footprint

CONTRIBUTION TO GROUP

-1%
- 4%
-11%
- 3%

Revenue  ®PBT
Employees m Carbon footprint
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THE HAYLEYS LIFECODE

Escalating implications of climate change, widening inequalities and the implications of COVID-19 have led to a dramatic

and unprecedented acceleration of ESG interests across the world. For a Group as diverse and widespread as Hayleys with
significant economic, social and environmental impacts across value chains and communities, focus on ESG factors is a critical
driver of resilience and sustainability. With this in mind, the Group launched the Hayleys Lifecode in January 2022, a holistic
framework, harmonising ESG integration by codifying ESG practices and processes that evolved over the years. In addition to
governance structures and policy frameworks in managing ESG issues, the Lifecode sets out the Group’s 2030 environmental,
social and governance aspirations, roadmap and action plan.

PURPOSE LIFECODE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
Thriving businesses that shape better futures C

Board of Directors
- | ° ©

@ | | B |

N

Group Management Committee

Environmental Social Governance o
Minimise our Striving Responsible ( Group Sustainability Division )
footprint and thriving and responsive
while seizing together corporate o
opportunities for a better citizenry ( Sector Lifecode Champions
to shape a tomorrow

greener future
Policy Architecture

Environment Social
SCOPE AND BO_UNDARIES ) * Material and Waste Employee related policies
The Framework is applicable for all locations at a Management Policy + Industrial Relations Policy
minimum level of assurance with reporting on relevant *  Energy and Emissions « Disciplinary Policy
material topics for the Group and sector. The scope of Management Policy » Grievance Handling Policy
ESG reporting also does not extend beyond locations that + Water Management * Recruitment Policy
are owned or leased and operated by businesses that are Policy * Learning & Development
consolidated for financial reporting purposes, harmonising : BIOd\\/efS\tly ) Policy
) : ) ) Conservation Policy * Talent Management and
the scope of financial reporting and ESG reporting. < Chemical Succession Planning Policy
Management Policy e Performance Management
* Sustainability Policy
Compliance Guideline  » Human Rights Policy
@ *  Whistleblower Policy
Aia * Anti-Sexual Harassment
Integrated Efficient resource Financial stability Policy
thinking allocation and sustainability * Health and Safety Policy
Policies related to other
CHAIRMAN’S REFLECTIONS stakeholders
“The Hayleys Lifecode . Customer Management
encapsulates the mantra . E%Icczrement Polic
we have used to steer the . CSR Policy Y
Group through the years as
we learned from our mentors, Governance
nurturing the legacy that we «  Board Charter
inherited. It is the condensed «  Board Committee Charters

wisdom developed and passed
on throughout the years and
now it is up to us to make a
difference, together”

Stakeholder Engagement
Information Disclosure Policies
IT Policy

Intellectual Capital Policy
Information Security Policy
Business Data Back-up Policy

We are the Hayleys Group

® Leadership & Governance e Unlocking Value e

Management Discussion & Analysis @ Financial Statements




KEY ELEMENTS

ESG Approach

Lifecode Stewardship
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ESG Lifecode

Vision and Purpose
Roadmap and Goals
Responsible Investment

Roles and
Responsibilities
Policy Architecture
Scoring Methodolo

Environmental Strategies, Targets
and KPlIs

Social Strategies, Targets and KPls
Lifecode for Governance

Please scan this QR code

9 to refer Hayleys Lifecode.

Biodiversity

Enhance biodiversity

by 5 times, in the

area occupied by the

Supplier
Relationships
40% of suppliers to be
screened on social and
environmental criteria

Health, Safety and
Well-being
Zero workplace
injuries/disease by

2030

Energy and
Emissions
30% reduction in
Scope 1&2 GHG
emissions by 2030

Group

footprint wh

to shape a gre
future

Engaged Team
100% coverage of
anti-discriminatory

training by 2030 to

build an inclusive
workforce

Social

tomorrow

Customer
Relationships
Customer
satisfaction surveys
and grievance
mechanisms for
100% of operations

5

Environment
Minimise our

seizing opportunities

Striving and thriving
together for a better

Water Utilisation
50% sustainable
water sourcing by
2030

Structure and
Oversight
100% compliance
to relevant laws and
regulations

Materials & Waste
Zero landfill waste
by 2030

ile

ener

Governance
Responsible and
responsive corporate
citizenry

Hayleys
Lifecode Purpose

Stakeholder Transparency and
Engagement Accurate Reporting
Meaningful Internal and external

and impactful
stakeholder
relationships

reporting on ESG
factors

Enterprise Risk
Management
Holistic process to
identify, measure
and mitigate ESG
risks

Ethics and Culture
Full compliance to
the Hayleys Way

Community
Relationships
0% increase in CSR
beneficiaries by
2030

These aspirations represent the Group’s goals in pre-COVID operating conditions
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NAVIGATING MACRO-ECONOMIC HEADWINDS

Sri Lanka’s ongoing economic crisis
presents the most significant risk

to the Group’s short to medium

term prospects. The country’s long-
standing economic vulnerabilities and
structural problems coupled with the
broad-based impacts of the COVID-19
pandemic and global headwinds

has pushed the country into
unprecedented economic crisis, with
several key macro-economic indicators
weakening to record lows. In 2027,
significant foreign debt payments,
together with the sharp fall in tourism
earnings and remittances and the
country’s inability to tap foreign capital
markets due to the downgrade of the
sovereign rating, led to official foreign
reserves falling to precarious lows, a
positioned which weakened further

in ensuing months. The Central Bank
of Sri Lanka allowed the free float of
the exchange rate in early March 2022
resulting in the Rupee depreciation

by 46% against the US Dollar and
falling further in subsequent months
reflecting large overshooting by
market forces. The country’s fiscal
position has weakened significantly
with the fiscal deficit increasing to 11%
of GDP. The crippling foreign exchange
crisis has led to shortages in essential
items including medicines, fuel and
energy while the sharp depreciation of
the Rupee has resulted in escalating
inflationary pressures, with headline
inflation as measured by the y-o-y
change in the National Consumer Price
Index accelerating to 22% in March
2022.

4 N\

Group resilience underpinned by,

e 52% of revenue through exports
generating US$ 615.98 mn

«  Globally leading market
positions in several sectors

¢ Industry and geographical
diversification

¢ Long-term, mutually beneficial
relationships nurtured across
ecosystem

5

"
IMPACT ON HAYLEYS...

Lack of predictability and visibility on pricing, given the continued depreciation
of the Rupee and escalating inflation

The Group’s Manufacturing Sector businesses rely on imported raw materials, and
significant and persistent depreciation of the Sri Lankan Rupee has rendered it
extremely challenging to predict cost of production and/or pricing levels.

Interruptions to energy supply and difficulties in sourcing fuel including gas,
furnace oil and diesel and resultant impact on manufacturing and distribution
To date, the Group has ensured continuity of operations across all its businesses
by sourcing adequate inventories of fuel, although if shortage persists, it is likely
to have an inevitable impact on the production, continuity as well as distribution
capabilities of our companies and distribution partners.

Restrictions of selected imports and challenges in importing raw materials due
to shortage in foreign currency

The restrictions on the imports of finished goods (particularly in the Retail
Segment) and selected raw materials could adversely impact the Group’s cost of
production and manufacturing costs

Escalation in interest rates and the resultant increase in the Group’s borrowing costs
With the tightening of the monetary policy and resultant increase in market
interest rates, the Group’s borrowing costs will see an escalation, particularly given
the Group’s recent debt-funded capacity expansions.

Surge in freight rates

Global freight rates surged during the year, reflecting congestion in shipping lines
amidst COVID-19 led disruptions. In addition to the direct impact on the Group’s
costs, this also led to extensions in lead times, necessitating increased focus on
proactively managing logistics and distribution networks.

Disruptions to supply chains and distribution channels stemming from impacts
on the Group’s business partners

We are the Hayleys Group e Leadership & Governance e Unlocking Value e Management Discussion & Analysis @ Financial Statements



Sector-Level Impacts

Eco Solutions ()
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® Low @ Medium @ High

Sector Impact Impact Summary of impacts

Interruptions to energy supply could affect continuity of manufacturing
Increase in interest rates and its impact on borrowing costs

Hand Protection ()

Interruptions to energy supply could affect continuity of manufacturing
Increase in freight costs

Purification (]

Disruptions to supply chain
Increase in distribution costs stemming from higher freight rates
Interruptions to energy supply

Textiles ([

Implications of the increase in energy costs
Increase in interest rate and its impact on borrowing costs given high level of gearing

Construction
Materials

Increased cost of input materials
Concerns on affordability given softening economic conditions

Plantations ([

Surge in cost of chemical based fertilizer

Agriculture ([

Surge in cost of chemical based fertilizer
Potential risk of order cancellation

Consumer &
Retail

Import restrictions on consumer durables
Increased cost of distribution stemming from higher fuel prices
Shortage and volatility in foreign currency

Leisure o

Social unrest and impact on tourist arrivals
Import restrictions on consumables
Increase in energy costs

Industry Inputs,
Power & Energy

©C00C0O0O0DDO

Shortage and volatility in foreign currency
Increase in interest rates

Transportation &
Logistics

Challenges in outward remittances of foreign currency
Shortages in energy supply within local logistics operations

Others ®

Shortage and volatility in foreign currency
Increase in interest rates and impact on borrowing costs

Please refer to the Sector Reviews from page 121 to 229 for further information on Sector level impacts

OUR RESPONSE

Immediate term © Medium term © Long-term (v]
Sourcing adequate inventories of Increased focus on export markets Generate more foreign currency
essential raw materials and fuel through new customer acquisition and revenue through continued growth of
supplies deepening relationships with existing export-oriented businesses

customers
Preservation of liquidity through Increasing efficiency and productivity Focus on renewable energy and storage
curtailing non-essential expenditure through investments in digitalisation and = media

automation
Supporting eco-system of channel New product development with increased
partners and distributors to ensure focus on value-added products/services
business continuity Increase reliance on local sourcing and

manufacturing activities
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COVID-19 RESPONSE IN 2021/22

Total confirmed
cases

Recoveries Active cases

Vaccinated with
booster dose

GROUP
COVID-19
STATISTICS

Spent in ICC
accommodation

Vaccinated with 1st
and 2nd doses

Sri Lanka witnessed the 2nd and 3rd waves of the pandemic in 2021, with the emergence of highly transmissible
variants resulting in periodic surges in infections and resultant lockdowns and restrictions on movement. All Sectors
demonstrated strong adaptability to operating in conditions of limited mobility, leveraging learnings obtained during the
first wave to mitigate the risk of cross infection and ensure continuity of operations.

Key measures adopted during the year to safeguard our employees and support other stakeholders are summarised
below and described in further detail in subsequent sections of this Report.

OUR TEAM

All sectors continued the health and hygiene protocols that were implemented last year, thereby providing employees
the assurance that workplaces were safe. During the year, the Group HR function together with the HR divisions at
Sector level, relentlessly pursued vaccination drives, with ongoing engagement aimed at dispelling myths regarding
obtaining the vaccination. Key measures adopted include;

1 Awareness building sessions conducted by Sri Lanka’s leading resource persons in the management of COVID-19
2 Vaccination drives across different locations including exclusive drive-through centers for Group employees

3 Availability of a full-time nurse and access to medical services 24/7

We are the Hayleys Group @ Leadership & Governance ® Unlocking Value @ Management Discussion & Analysis @ Financial Statements



COMMUNITY SUPPORT

Several sectors contributed to the national effort to combat COVID-19 through direct monetary contributions as well
as distribution of PPE, medical equipment, sanitizers and ration packs to hospitals, healthcare workers and vulnerable
communities.

* Alumex PLC and Mabroc Teas (Pvt) Ltd combined efforts to refurbish a ward at the Kiribathgoda Base Hospital,
investing in both infrastructure and manpower to convert it to a fully-fledged COVID-19 high-dependency unit

BUSINESS AGILITY
Sectors leveraged the learnings obtained during the first wave of the pandemic, to swiftly embrace the new normal
and adapt to working in conditions of restrictions and limited mobility. Measures adopted included;

*«  COVID-19 response plans, which offered a blueprint for operating continuously amidst restrictions

» Facilitated remote and hybrid working for office employees, providing the necessary IT infrastructure and support
to ensure seamless operations

* Capitalised on opportunities presented by COVID-19 through agile strategies and operating models

* Increased focus on digital platforms for engagement with both internal and external stakeholders

As a result of these measures, the operations of all Sectors continued relatively uninterrupted during the year, with all
Sectors recording revenue growth and improved profitability in comparison to the previous year

MANAGING SUPPLY CHAIN DISRUPTIONS

COVID-19 led disruptions to supply chains remained a key challenge during the year, as several of our agricultural
supply chains, out-growers and distribution partners were affected by the pandemic. Against this backdrop, the
Group continued to work proactively with its eco-system of network partners, to ensure a continuous supply of raw
materials. To this end the Group increased visibility of future demand, supported liquidity requirements and ensured
the continued injection of value across our supply chains.

25
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PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

-

-

2022 Change % 2021 2020

EARNINGS HIGHLIGHTS AND RATIOS
Revenue Rs. mn 338,010 40.09 241,276 210,307
Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation & Rs. mn 42,013 26.53 33,205 23,379
amortisation (EBITDA)
Results from operating activities (EBIT) Rs. mn 33,594 29.44 25,954 16,473
Profit before tax Rs. mn 35,717 85.70 19,234 5,504
Income tax Rs. mn 7,618 46.84 5,188 2,609
Profit after tax Rs. mn 28,099 100.05 14,046 2,895
Profit attributable to owners of the parent Rs. mn 18,257 139.06 7,637 372
Dividends Rs. mn 3,000 207.69 975 -
Gross profit Margin % 22.89 (9.69) 25.35 23.85
Operating Profit Margin % 9.94 (7.61) 10.76 7.83
Net Profit Margin % 8.31 42.80 5.82 1.38
Earnings per share (basic)* Rs. 24.34 139.06 1018 0.50
Return on Assets (ROA) % 6.97 38.66 5.03 117
Return on Capital Employed (ROCE) % 12.12 1M.45) 13.68 8.84
Return on Equity (ROE) % 27.09 68.92 16.04 0.94
Interest cover No. of times 3.37 1214 3.00 1.39
FINANCIAL POSITION HIGHLIGHTS AND RATIOS
Total Assets Rs. mn 403,076 44.27 279,383 248,309
Total Debt Rs. mn 171,934 50.21 114,462 123,555
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent Rs. mn 67,390 41.52 47618 39,705
Stated capital Rs. mn 1,575 0.00 1,575 1,575
Revenue reserve Rs. mn 35,026 69.86 20,620 13,809
Gearing % 62.02 2.77 60.35 66.28
Debt/Equity % 163.30 7.28 152.21 196.57
Equity Asset ratio % 26.12 (2.95) 26.92 25.31
Net assets per share* Rs. 89.85 41.52 63.49 52.94
Current ratio No. of times 1.16 5.09 m 1.04
Quick asset ratio No. of times 0.77 9.44 0.70 0.67
No. of Shares in issue * No. mn 750 0.00 750 75
MARKET / SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
Market value per share* Rs. 76.90 26.48 60.80 123.60
Dividend per share* Rs. 4.00 207.69 1.30 -
Company market capitalisation Rs. mn 57,675 26.48 45,600 9,270
Group market capitalisation Rs. mn 146,134 .47) 148,317 39,998
Price earnings ratio No. of times 3.16 (47.09) 597 24.89
Dividend yield ratio % 5.20 143.27 214 -
Dividend payout ratio % 16.43 28.71 12.77 -
Dividend Cover No. of times 6.09 (22.31) 7.83 -
OTHERS
Economic Value Generated Rs. mn 103,092 50.43 68,534 60,493
Economic Value Distributed Rs. mn 81,656 43,77 56,794 55,226

Government Rs. mn 20,136 61.32 12,482 12,508

Employees Rs. mn 33,794 25.74 26,877 27148

Others Rs. mn 27,725 68.43 16,461 15,570
Value Added per employee Rs. mn 3.14 40.92 2.23 1.95
Group employment Number 32,840 6.74 30,765 31,029
Average Revenue per employee Rs. mn 10.29 31.24 7.84 6.78
Average operating income per employee Rs. mn 1.02 21.26 0.84 0.53
Credit Ratings (by ICRA) AA- (Ika) - A+ (Ika) A+ (Ika)

J

* Ratios have been adjusted based on post sub-division of 10 shares for every one ordinary share held in 2021.

We are the Hayleys Group e Leadership & Governance @ Unlocking Value @ Management Discussion & Analysis @ Financial Statements
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2022 Change % 2021 2020
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF SOCIAL PERFORMANCE
EMPLOYEES
Employees on payroll No. 32,840 6.74 30,765 31,029
Female Representation % 35 (5.41) 37 38
New Recruits No. 5,739 41.60 4,053 4,651
Investments in training Rs. mn 69 282.28 18 68
Training hours Hours 248,649 53.50 161,989 224,275
Average training hours per employee Hours 7.60 42.86 5.30 7.20
Retention Rate % 85 (116) 86 85
Workplace Injuries No. 253 69.80 149 192
Lost working days No. 2,1M 13.43 1,861 4,162
CUSTOMERS
Customer acquired No. 1,788,842 1.61 1,602,712 1122,834
Revenue generated Rs. mn 338,010 40.09 241,276 210,307
SUPPLIERS AND BUSINESS PARTNERS
Total number of Suppliers (as at end March) No. 15,392 a8) 18,699 19,224
SME Suppliers No. 10,527 .72 10,71 11,314
Payments to Suppliers Rs. mn 237,690 63.36 145,497 131,928
Proportion of spending on local suppliers % 44 (6.38) 47 63
Supplier supported through development programs No. 2,422 51.28 1,601 182
COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT
Investment in CSR Rs. mn 3M 6.51 292 273
Beneficiaries of CSR No. 540,573 43.02 377983 418,038
No of new products developed No. 749 114.61 349 193
No. of products in pipeline No. 160 49.53 107 52
Investment in R&D Rs. mn 429 113.43 201 129
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE
Total energy consumption GJ mn 5.06 25.56 4.03 3.68
Renewable energy consumption GJ mn 3.38 30.00 2.60 2.34
Non-Renewable energy consumption GJ mn 1.68 16.67 144 1.34
Renewable energy consumption % 67 4.69 64 64
Renewable energy generation MWh 185,875 22.57 151,647 92,540
Renewable energy generation
Out of total energy consumed % 13 (714) 14 9
Out of total electricity consumed % 14 11.76 102 68
Total Carbon footprint (GHG Emission) tCO.e 230,053 12.49 204,501 187,784
Scope 1 emission tCOe 114,551 25.62 91,187 85,224
Scope 2 emission tCO,e 94,117 2.27 92,031 84,408
Scope 3 emission tCO,e 21,385 0.48 21,283 18,152
Biogenic emission tCO,e 378,973 30.21 291,054 261,956
Total water withdrawal m* mn 6.59 23.64 5.33 5.34
Rain water harvested m3 21,664 2.40 21157 15,686
Recycled water usage % 9 0.00 9 8
Solid waste MT 23,120 39.94 16,521 52,051
Effluents discharged msmn 5.07 29.34 3.92 3.93
Waste water treated through internal treatment plants % 46 (22.03) 59 56
Energy intensity (energy per revenue) MJ / Rs.mn 14,980 (10.40) 16,719 17,885
Emission intensity (emission per revenue) KgCO,e / Rs mn 681 (9.74) 848 913
Water intensity (water withdrawal per revenue) L/ Rs. mn 19,494 1.68) 22,072 25,970
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PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

-
2022 Change % 2021 2020

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE
Foreign exchange income earned USD mn 616 2.67 600 554
Indirect employment No 6,729 12.90 5,960 5,343
Supplier reach No 15,392 (17.69) 18,700 19,224
CAPACITY BUILDING
Construction Material (Fabricators trained) No 155 (54.28) 339 3,768
Agriculture (Farmers / outgrowers trained) No 21,234 100.00 - 178
Consumer & Retail (Students enrolled) No 5,400 8.00 5,000 4,605
Job creation outside the Western Province No 2,405 41,97 1,694 2,085
Tax paid Rs. mn 20,136 61.32 12,482 12,508
Innovations (total new product introduced) No 749 114.61 349 193
Renewable energy generated MWh 185,875 22.57 151,647 92,540
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF GOVERNANCE
Boards of Directors (in the Group) No. 293 (0.0D 296 287
Audit Committees (in the Group) No. 18 - 18 17
HR & Remuneration Committees (in the Group) No. 4 -
Related Party Transaction Review Committees (in the No. 3 0.5 2 2
Group)
No. of Board meetings held No. 128 0.02 126 19
No. of Audit Committee meetings held No. 72 - 72 72
Female representation on Boards % 28 012 25 24
Human rights violations No. Nil - Nil Nil
Anti-corruption incidents No. Nil - Nil Nil
Instances of socio-economic non-compliance No. Nil - Nil Nil
Instances of environmental non-compliance No. Nil - Nil Nil

_
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YEAR AT A GLANCE

O APRIL 2021

Hayleys Fabric PLC acquires South
Asia Textiles Limited, in line with
strategic aspirations to export value-
added fabrics

FI.- L
[

‘.I

Ak Byt
‘Workpfocos

O MAY 2021

HJS Condiments wins Gold for plant-
based meat substitute products

© JUNE 2021

Launch of project Kirulu our flagship
biodiversity conservation programme

O JuLy 2021

Ranked as the Most Awarded
Local Conglomerate at Asia's Best
Workplace to Work

© AUGUST 2021

Gamer.LK launches the Singer Esports
Premier League 2021 with Rs. 1 mn
prize money

29

O SEPTEMBER 2021

© DECEMBER 2021

Kelani Valley Plantations PLC (KVPL)
secures world’s first Sustainability
Framework Certificate

© OCTOBER 2021

Advantis Projects and Engineering
completes construction services for
the New Kelani Bridge Project

© JANUARY 2022

HJS Condiments further expands
out-grower network, connecting
smallholders to global supply chains

© NOVEMBER 2021

Nation’s leading business rankings
place Hayleys as No.l Corporate entity
for performance and value creation to
society and nation

&

Hayleys launches Lifecode- A future-
driven roadmap for a better tomorrow

© FEBRUARY 2022

Puritas Sathdiyawara continues to
support adopted villages with the
distribution of educational care packs
for the 7th year

© MARCH 2022

KVPL partnered with the IUCN to
launch Surakimu Ganga conservation
program to preserve the Kelani River
Basin
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MILESTONES

Development of Invention
vaccines for of the
diseases / telephone

1870 1876

Formation of
Chas.PHayley
& Co, in Galle

Hayley & Kenny
purchase 400, Deans
Road premises

First
piloted plane First moving
assembly line for
Invention of rmass production

of vehicles

the lightbulb

1879

Haychem Ltd.
formed to
formulate

agrochemicals

Hayleys
becomes a Iy

Publlc company & :
L R il

Shipping Agency
department formed
(forerunner of Advantis)
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Spanish Flu Rollout of
& COVID-19
I = % - Debut of :raccme_as

World War | In\{ent‘ion of Eive e
9 - - world wide web - \ 0‘
\ — ', Outbreak S '

' ; COVID-19 &
pandemic '

2021

2018

. . Acquisition Hayleys Fabric
Dipped . of Kuda Rah ) aliir
Products Ltd. | Island Resort SINGER pégu?ﬁq:;{:s
incorporated to in Maldives Homa g Suntipart Textiles Ltd
manufacture -
rubber gloves
Haycarb formed, Acguisition of majority
pioneering Entry into the stake in Singer
manufacture aluminium extrusions (Sri Lanka) PLC and
and export of industry by acquiring acquisition of Sri Lanka

activated carbon Alumex Group Shipping Cornpany Ltd.
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A GLOBAL BUSINESS

US$ 615.98 mn

Revenue generated

52%

of Group Revenue
generated from exports

>
Countries with

manufacturing locations

@ 2,036
Employees in overseas

locations

O Marketing offices
O Manufacturing locations

O Service operations

Sri Lanka Australia Bangladesh Indonesia
Revenue generated (Rs.mn) 275,902 2,275 3,952 1,668 4,416 14,197
Profit before tax (Rs.mn) 30,560 319 338 100 39 720
Tax (Rs.mn) 6,192 107 161 21 53 384
CAPEX (Rs.mn) 13,383 8 169 0 15 3
Total assets (Rs.mn) 339,813 1,666 4,988 870 9,861 n1s7
Total borrowings (Rs.mn) 154,289 56 2,077 109 7,384 4110
Employees (No.) 29,958 16 280 32 268 22
Carbon footprint (tCO,e) 206 - O 0 4 0
CSR investment (Rs.mn) 284 - - - 2 -

We are the Hayleys Group o Leadership & Governance ® Unlocking Value e Management Discussion & Analysis @ Financial Statements
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Maldives Myanmar Singapore Thailand Kir:JgnoIIZen? Japan | Netherlands B”tIShIS\I/;rng(;Z
6,025 1,292 2,785 13,876 4,051 6,961 610 - -
579 77 323 2,192 80 276 13 8 93

140 €®)) 34 450 15 56 3 - -

95 18 1 906 4 1 - - -

7,694 849 2,244 13,575 2,242 6,648 1,345 104 20
2,313 123 - - 10 1,425 36 - -
152 406 7 849 - 4 - - -

2 0 - 16 - - - - -

0 - - 25 - - - - -




SUPPORTING SRI LANKA’S FOOD SECURITY

THE 2022 GLOBAL REPORT ON FOOD CRISES (GRFC), WHICH IS PREPARED ANNUALLY BY THE WORLD FOOD
PROGRAMME, HIGHLIGHTS THE LIKELIHOOD OF SEVERE FOOD INSECURITY FOR THE YEAR. THE ECONOMIC
SCARRING OF COVID-19, EXTREME WEATHER CONDITIONS AND GEOPOLITICAL CONFLICT HAVE WORSENED PRE-
EXISTING FRAGILITIES, WITH CLOSE TO 193 MILLION PEOPLE FACING ACUTE FOOD INSECURITY IN THE WORLD,
AN INCREASE OF 40 MILLION COMPARED TO 2021. IN SRI LANKA, THE POTENTIAL RISK FOR SRI LANKA HAS

BEEN AMPLIFIED DUE TO AN IMPORT BAN ON CHEMICAL FERTILIZER WHICH WAS IMPOSED IN 2021; ALTHOUGH
SUBSEQUENTLY REVERSED, THE IMPLICATIONS OF THE BAN ARE EXPECTED TO BE FELT IN 2022 WITH
SIGNIFICANT DECLINES EXPECTED IN CROP VOLUMES, YIELDS AND QUALITY. AS A PIONEER AND LEADER IN SRI
LANKA'S AGRICULTURE SECTOR, HAYLEYS AGRICULTURE HAS TAKEN PROACTIVE MEASURES TO SUPPORT THE
SUSTAINABILITY AND LONGEVITY OF THE COUNTRY’S AGRICULTURE SECTOR

TECHNOLOGY & KNOWLEDGE
Context

* Limited knowledge on safe and proper
use of agro chemicals

» Low resource utilisation, Lack of
mechanisation and farm productivity

Our contribution

» Dedicated islandwide extension
network to educate farmers

* Train farmers on use of Personal
Protective Equipment

» Education on integrated pest and
nutrient management systems

* Climate smart irrigation and protected
agriculture technologies

* Mechanisation for field preparation and
crop management

CROP PROTECTION
Context:

* Ban on chemical based crop
protection imports

* Limited use of integrated pest
management and organic products

Our contribution

» High efficacy agro chemicals to
reduce dosage

* Introduction of low toxicity safer
chemistries

» Products with low post harvest interval

» Research into effective organic
pesticides.

PLANTING MATERIALS
Context

* Unavailability of high-quality planting
material

* Requirement for faster maturity in short
season crops

Our contribution

* Research on varieties that can be
cultivated in non-traditional areas

« Offering high vielding, disease and pest
tolerant, drought resistant varieties.

CROP NUTRITION
Context:

* Ban on chemical based fertilizer imports
e Limited use of organic fertilizer

Our contribution

* Crop specific customised fertilizer blends
to improve yields

¢ Research into complex specialty
fertilizers secondary and micro nutrients
and organic and bio fertilizers to improve
soil health.

QUALITY AND STANDARDS
Context

* Non-adherence to good agriculture
practices

e Poor post-harvest management

Our contribution

* Dedicated island-wide quality assurance
teams working with farmers
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THE GREATEST
STRENGTH WITHIN THE
WORLD OF HAYLEYS
IS ITS DIVERSITY,
GOVERNANCE
STRUCTURE AND ITS
ABILITY TO DERIVE
SYNERGIES. DIVERSITY
IS MULTIFACETED AND
GOES BEYOND THE
OBVIOUS DIVERSITY
ACROSS INDUSTRIES
AND COUNTRIES TO
THE DIVERSITY OF ITS
PEOPLE.

Dear Shareholder,

| am delighted to report that Hayleys PLC
recorded a Profit After Tax of Rs. 28.10 bn,
setting a new record for the highest profit
in the 144-year history of the Group as we
surpassed the record set in the previous
year with a 100% increase. Members of the
World of Hayleys came together, maximising
synergies through Group-wide initiatives to
identify early warning signs and overcome
the converging challenges that gained
momentum as the year progressed.

Sri Lanka is facing its worst socioeconomic
crisis post-independence and the path to
recovery is being mapped at the time of
writing. The country’s foreign exchange
reserves declined, the currency devalued by
75% during the months of March and April
2022 and inflation climbed steadily to reach
30% by April 2022 y-o-y. Policy interest rates
were increased by 700 bps in April 2022

as a corrective measure and the country
struggled on its debt repayments, indicating
the extent of reform and correction required
to bring the economy to an even keel. The
economic hardship faced by the people as a
result of inflation and shortages of essentials
is a critical factor that needs to be addressed
urgently. Meanwhile, it is vital that we keep
the wheels of the economy turning to earn
the sorely needed foreign exchange and
safeguard jobs and livelihoods until we have a
clear way forward.

DIVERSITY, GOVERNANCE & SYNERGY

The greatest strength within the World of
Hayleys is its diversity, governance structure
and its ability to derive synergies. Diversity is
multifaceted and goes beyond the obvious
diversity across industries and countries to
the diversity of its people. Our world is a rich
ecosystem where the catalysts, scientists,
technocrats and pragmatic visionaries are

all united by common goals and values

and work together to achieve our strategic
goals. The Group’s governance mechanisms
facilitate the harmonisation and synchrony
of movement towards the corporate goals
within defined bounds. A philosophy of
recognising and rewarding performance

has nurtured a culture of meritocracy where
everyone truly has the ability to shine and rise
without any discrimination.
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HIGHLIGHTS 2021/22

Foreign Exchange
Earnings
US$. 615.98 mn

Dividends Received
from Overseas
Subsidiaries

US$. 6.24 mn

EXCEPTIONAL PERFORMANCE

Revenue US$.1.60 bn @ 25%
EBITDA US$.19929 mn @ 27%
EBIT US$. 159.35 mn © 29%
PBT US$.169.42 mn Q 86%
PAT US$. 133.29 mn Q 100%

SOLID FOUNDATIONS

Total Assets US$. 1.37 bn

PPE US$. 378.36 mn

Capex US$. 66.58 mn

Current Assets US$. 82817 mn
Equity US$. 358.27 mn

Debt US$. 585.06 mn

A\ J

Governance is also the key that
unlocks the synergies of the Group
which is pivotal to risk management
and delivery on strategy. Multiple layers
of review from sector level Executive
Committees to the Group Management
Committee (GMC), Board Committees
and the Board ensure that there is a
high level of scrutiny and monitoring.
The collective skills, knowledge and
insights within the GMC enable us

to identify early warning signs and

flex our strategies and risk responses
accordingly. The GMC meets every
week and meets additionally at short
notice whenever there is a need, which
enabled timely responses in a year of
volatility and uncertainty. Strategies
remained flexible throughout the year

with reallocation of resources to where
they were needed.

The Group Freight Management Task
Force formed last year proved a vital
function enabling the timely shipping
of our products. Similarly, the COVID
Task Force comprising the Group
Head of HR, Sector Head of Hayleys
Aventura and HR Heads of all sectors
also played a key role in ensuring

the health and safety at our business
locations as well as arranging for the
care of those tested as positive. The
COVID Task Force coordinated the
vaccination of our employees and
recorded an overall vaccination rate
of 99% for the second dose. Other
central functions such as Strategic
Planning, Finance and Treasury
continue to facilitate management

of resources as a Group, unlocking
synergies.

Looking at what we have achieved
since the Easter Sunday attacks in
2019 it is evident that the knowledge
and experience within the leadership
teams have grown exponentially to a
new level. Across the Hayleys Group,
tried-and-tested teams at every
level, have consistently delivered a
holistic performance by taking smart
decisions. This is a key driver of our
success and will take the Group into a
new era of growth.

RENEWING OUR COMMITMENT TO ESG
An early champion of sustainability,
Hayleys PLC has put in place systems
to understand its impact on society
and the environment, with a view to
minimise adverse impacts. It was time
to level up the Group’s Environmental,
Social and Governance (ESG) agenda
and ensure that every Sector was
aligned to Group's goals. We captured
our ESG policies and commitments in
one document - The Hayleys Lifecode.
It includes commitments to reduce
GHG emissions by 30% by 2030,

increase the biodiversity by 5 times the

area occupied by the Group, achieve
zero landfill waste by 2030 and other
environment, social and governance

goals. Additionally, it reinforces the
Group policies on anti-corruption and
anti-bribery, clearly setting out the
zero tolerance position of the Group
on these key matters. These goals
are backed by detailed actions and
commitments at sector levels making
this the most comprehensive exercise
in ESG commitments undertaken by
the Group.

Hayleys PLC officially signed on as

a member of the Global Reporting
Initiative (GRI) South Asia Charter

on Sustainability Imperatives which

is a clarion call for decisive action

by businesses and stakeholders
supporting the achievement of UN
Sustainable Development Goals
(SDGs) within the next decade.
Hayleys PLC and a subsidiary of
Hayleys Plantations, Talawakelle Tea
Estates PLC are two of the first three
Regional Members of the GRI South
Asia Charter and the sole corporate
entities representing Sri Lanka. The
move demonstrates an authentic, long-
term commitment to adopting and
implementing the Charter’s principles
to proactively establish new systems to
authenticate the impact of the Group’s
sustainability initiatives across the

ESG framework. It follows a thorough
review of the alignment between the
sustainability practices of the Group
and the principles of the Charter and a
long term commitment to excellence in
ESG reporting.

.l’l: ll-.-?_

)

I.."'_':.

We are the Hayleys Group @ Leadership & Governance e Unlocking Value ® Management Discussion & Analysis @ Financial Statements



-

2021 IN NUMBERS

®

World Economic Growth - 6%

Revenue Contribution

Economic Growth

Sri Lanka 81.6% 3.7%
Italy 4.2% 6.5%
Thailand 41% 1.6%
Maldives 1.8% 18.9%
Myanmar 0.4% -12.0%
Bangladesh 1.2% 4.5%
Australia 0.7% 3.8%
India 0.5% 8.9%
Indonesia 1.3% 3.7%
Singapore 0.8% 7.6%
United Kingdom 1.2% 7.5%
USA 21% 57%
Japan 0.2% 1.8%
_=2:%  WORLD TRADE FLOWS SRILANKA
S O 259 ' Imports © 28.5%
Exports Q 24.4%
SRI LANKA
April 2022 Dec 2021 Dec 2020
GDP (US$ mn) - 84.5 80.7
Per Capita Income (US$) - 3,815 3,695
Unemployment (%) - 51% 5.50%
GDP Growth by Sector
Agriculture - 2.0% -2.2%
Industry - 5.3% -6.9%
Services - 3.0% -1.6%
AWPLR (%) 16.4% 8.6% 5.8%
Exchange Rate (Rs:1US$) 347.06 199.88 185.52
Inflation 29.8% 121% 6.2%
Food Inflation 46.6% 221% 9.2%
Non-Food Inflation 22.0% 7.5% 2.0%

N
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WIDENING FAULT LINES AND A
DISRUPTED RECOVERY

The global economy was forecast to
recover at 6% as we commenced the
year, although there were signs that
the path of vulnerable economies
would diverge from the advanced
economies due to structural issues.
Policy reform was going to be key

to limit the setbacks and drive
recovery. Against this backdrop, Sri
Lanka introduced a ban on imports

of chemical fertiliser and other
agrochemicals in April 2021 which had
a devastating impact on the agriculture
sector of the country. Poor yields
drove up food inflation and threatened
the food security of the country which
was bridged with imports of basic food
items, during the year, necessitating
imports of essential food. The ban on
chemical fertiliser imports was lifted

in September 2021, by which time
fertiliser and agrochemical prices had
increased significantly in the global
market and it was too late for the Maha
season which is the major season for
paddy.

Inflation which increased during the
financial year, accelerated sharply in
April 2022 to 30% y-o-y reflecting the
pressure on prices. Food inflation was
the main driver, soaring to 47% y-o-y
by end of April 2022 partly due to the
depreciation of the rupee. Non-Food
inflation followed a similar pattern
increasing to 22% y-o-y in April 2022
reflecting the repricing of fuel during
the month.

Unemployment declined from 5.5%
to 5.1%. However, the decline in the
labour force participation from 50.6%
to 49.9% is perhaps a turning point,
since the population that does not
participate in productive employment
exceeds the population that does.
Addressing this is perhaps one of the
greatest challenges for the country.

The third wave of the pandemic
delayed the recovery of the tourism
sector as well, stymieing inflows of
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foreign exchange. Worker remittances,
a key source of foreign exchange,
declined due to fewer migrations for
employment during the pandemic and
the expansion of informal channels
due to large exchange rate differentials
between the formal market and the
grey market. The Central Bank also
mandated conversion of export
proceeds by exporters and directed
banks to sell a part of the converted
export proceeds and workers’
remittances to the Central Bank to
facilitate importation of food, fuel

and medicines. The exchange rate
declined by a mere 2.4% during the
first eleven months of the financial year
as the Central Bank adopted several
measures to support the rate. March
and April 2022 saw the rupee devalue
by 75% having been allowed to float in
view of the external sector crisis.

Interest rates edged up from August
2021 and increased during the year.
Policy interest rates increased by 700
basis points in April 2022 targeting
price stability in the economy. The
foreign currency crisis led to fuel and
gas shortages disrupting transport
systems and households. Together with
inflation, these shortages led to severe
hardships to the society. Discussions
with the International Monetary Fund
have commenced and the country has
also secured credit lines to finance
essential imports until the negotiations
are finalised and funds are released.
The three months ahead are expected
to be challenging due to the external
sector crisis but we are optimistic that
the changes thereafter will pave the
way for a sustained recovery.

THE POWER OF POSITIVITY

At Hayleys, we understand the

power of motivated teams as we
worked through the challenges of the
pandemic to come out stronger than
before. This proved to be our greatest
strength, as a tried and tested team
went into 2021/22 with a will to win.

The results speak for themselves.
Hayleys PLC worked through the
multiple challenges that escalated
during the year to record pre-tax
earnings of Rs. 35.72 bn, an impressive
increase of 86% over the previous year
which was also the highest profit at
the time. Revenue increased by 40%
from Rs. 241.28 bn to Rs. 338.01 bn.
The Transportation & Logistics sector
recorded a strong growth of 84% to
Rs. 69.27 bn which accounted for 20%
of Group revenue. Consumer & Retail
recorded 14% growth to Rs. 83.54 bn,
becoming the highest contributor to
Group revenue.

Group EBITDA and EBIT increased

by 27% and 29% respectively to Rs.
42.01 bn and Rs. 33.59 bn. The main
contributors to both EBITDA and
EBIT were Consumer & Retail and
Transportation and Logistics who
contributed to almost 50% of the total
for both, reflecting the key role played
by these two sectors in the cashflows
of the Group.

Finance income increased by 430% to
Rs.16.83 bn as we recorded exceptional
exchange gains during March 2022.
Hand Protection, Purification, Textiles
and Transportation & Logistics, made
significant contributions, accounting
for 69% of the total. Finance costs
increased by 48% to Rs.14.88 bn which
is attributable to increased borrowings
to finance working capital.

Profit Before Tax, our main yardstick
for financial performance, increased
by 86% to Rs. 35.72 bn with
Transportation & Logistics contributing
30% while Consumer & Retail and
Hand Protection contributed 16%

and 14% respectively. All sectors
recorded increased Profit Before Tax
except for the Leisure sector. Textiles,
Transportation & Logistics, and Eco
Solutions recorded increases of 337%,
238% and 132% respectively.

The effective tax rate declined from
27% to 21% as tax deductible expenses
increased giving rise to a tax charge
of Rs. 7.62 bn. Accordingly, the Profit
After Tax for the Group increased by
100% to Rs. 2810 bn in FY 2021/22
compared to Rs.14.05 bn in the
previous year, the highest profit in the
Group's history.

INCREASED CAPACITY & RESILIENCE
The Group’s balance sheet continued
to expand as Total Assets increased by
44% from Rs. 279.38 bn to Rs. 403.08
bn largely due to increased receivables,
inventory and property, plant and
equipment. This reflects the increased
earnings capacity of the Group and the
acquisition of South Asia Textiles Ltd.,
in April 2021 which has turned around
during the year to make a positive
contribution to the Group. Notably, this
makes Hayleys Fabric PLC the largest
fabric manufacturer in the country with
bright prospects as the industry looks
to shorten its supply chain by reducing
the import of fabric. Transportation

& Logistics increased their floating
crafts with the acquisition of another
container ship, making it the largest
fleet in Sri Lanka and enhancing its
earnings capacity. Additionally, most
sectors invested in increasing their
capacity, although in a limited manner
due to the paucity of dollars in the
market. It is also noteworthy that

the significant increases in capacity
strengthen the Group’s foreign
exchange earnings. Inventory grew by
55% as the Group increased stocks of
raw materials and finished goods to
accommodate the increased lead times
due to shipping delays. The increase

in receivables is largely due to the
Transport & Logistics and Consumer
and Retail sectors which accounted for
16% and 41% respectively.

Total equity increased by 40% to

Rs. 105.29 bn boosted by retained
earnings. Interest bearing liabilities
increased during the year by 50%
largely due to the increase in funding
for inventory, expansions and also
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due to the translation of foreign
currency denominated loans to rupees.
Accordingly, debt to equity increased
to 1.63:1 while gearing increased to
63%.

The investments undertaken during
the year address structural changes in
the Group’s foreign exchange liquidity
positions. Assets acquired are already
contributing positively and boosting
the foreign exchange liquidity of the
Group, strengthening our resilience to
the exchange rate volatility as well.

OUR RELEVANCE TO THE ECONOMY
Hayleys PLC is a key contributor to
the socioeconomic progress of the
country. Foreign exchange earnings
out of Sri Lanka during the year
increased by 45% to US$ 615.98 mn
which is 4.2% of the country’s total
exports during the same period.
Additionally, the Group received
dividends of US$ 6.24 mn from its
overseas subsidiaries during the year,
boosting foreign exchange inflows to
the country.

The Group employs 29,258 people

in Sri Lanka, creating jobs in the
economy with 62.8% of employees
located outside the Western Province.
Rs. 104.59 bn was paid to local
suppliers during the year, supporting
their growth. Our supply chains
support livelihoods of over 10,500
microentrepreneurs with structured
programmes to provide technical
knowledge. The operations of the
Group cover the entire island with
each sector playing a key role in their
industries which are more specifically
discussed in the Sector Review of this
report.

REVIEW OF BUSINESS VERTICALS
Hayleys derives 52% of its revenue
from export and other foreign
exchange earnings while the balance

is derived from the domestic market

in which it is a key player. Hand
Protection, Purification, Eco Solutions,
Textiles and Transportation & Logistics
earnings are mostly in foreign currency

while the other sector earnings are
weighted to rupees. Consumer & Retail
is the largest sector in terms of total
assets accounting for 23% of Total
Assets. Transportation & Logistics

and Textiles increased their share of
total assets during the year with the
investments in capacity, accounting for
17% and 9% of Total Assets at the close
of the year, reflecting the structural
changes in the Group’s investment
direction as it aims to increase
generation of foreign exchange.

The Group’s performance in US dollars
is also impressive with turnover growth
of 25% to US$ 1.60 bn reflecting
strong activity levels. Earnings

Before Interest and Taxation was US$
159.35 mn, an increase of 16% driven
by increased volumes as margins
declined marginally. The bottom line
was boosted by net finance income
compared to a charge in the previous
year. Accordingly Profit After Tax
amounted to US$ 133.28 mn, an
impressive increase of 79%. It is worth
pondering the impact of exchange
rates that was regulated for 11 months
on a Group that derives 52% of its
earnings in foreign exchange, followed
by a 46% devaluation in the last month
of the financial year. Hayleys PLC also
received US$ 24.41 mn as dividends
from its subsidiaries (eliminated on
consolidation) of which 26% was in
foreign currencies.

Consumer & Retail

Consumer and Retail Sector recorded
profit after tax of Rs. 4.30 bn, the
highest in its 145-year history, raising
the bar on its previous record last

year by 59%. The retail giant, Singer
Sri Lanka was crowned the People’s
Brand of the year in 2022 for the 16th
consecutive year and is the undisputed
leader in retail business in the country.
An island wide presence, clearly
articulated strategic priorities, coupled
with an increase in the number of
SKUs and e-commerce, positioned

the company for growth. Sustained
demand for electrical and electronic
items supported top line growth of 14%

11

CONSUMER & RETAIL
Country of operation:

Sri Lanka

+ Revenue Rs. 83.54 bn © 14%

+ EBITDA Rs.10.35 bn @ 44%

« Op. Profit Rs. 8.50 bn ® 52%

+ PBT Rs. 5.77 bn © 46%

+ PAT Rs. 4.30 bn @ 59%

* Capex Rs. 841.68 mn

+ Total Assets Rs. 91.03 bn © 29%
+ Value Created Rs. 22.65 bn @ 43%

TRANSPORTATION &
LOGISTICS .

Countries of Operation:

Sri Lanka / Maldives / Bangladesh
/ India / Myanmar / Singapore

+ Revenue Rs. 69.27 bn © 84%

+ EBITDA Rs. 10.02 bn © 80%

« Op. Profit Rs. 8.42 bn ©® 1%

+ PBT Rs.10.87 bn @ 238%

+ PAT Rs. 8.61bn © 243%

* Capex Rs. 3.28 bn

+ Total Assets Rs. 67.97 bn © 71%
+ Value created Rs. 16.67 bn @ 87%

* Earnings in Foreign Exchange
US$ 166.78 mn

HAND PROTECTION

Countries of Operation:
Sri Lanka / Thailand / Italy

+ Revenue Rs. 37.86 bn @ 25%

+ EBITDA Rs. 3.54 © 43%

+ Op. Profit Rs. 2.90 bn © 47%

+ PBT Rs. 5.00 bn € 10%

*+ PAT Rs.4.05 bn © 8%

e Capex Rs. 311 bn

+ Total Assets Rs. 35.30 bn @ 28%
+ Value created Rs. 12.50 bn @ 33%

» Foreign Exchange Earnings: US$
82.28 mn

» Dividends from foreign
subsidiaries US$: 3.37 mn
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to Rs. 83.54 bn. Demand coupled with
its island wide network and aftersales
service enabled Singer to retain the #1
position amongst Sri Lanka’s consumer
and commercial retailers.

Foreign exchange liquidity constraints
highlighted the need for a change

in sourcing strategies resulting in a
growing local supplier base. Regnis
also has an opportunity to establish
themselves more strongly in the
market by expanding the range of
appliances manufactured. However, the
costs of imported raw materials and
the upward movement of interest rates
will be a challenge.

Singer Finance PLC recorded its best
performance in its history with a Profit
Before Tax of Rs. 959.66 mn. Ranked
among the top 10 finance companies
in the country by Brand Finance Lanka,
this company has excellent potential
for growth. The main strategy for

this resilient player is through branch
expansion, leveraging its strong
liquidity positions and brand.

The outlook for this vibrant sector is
positive despite the foreign exchange
constraints and declining disposable
income at present. The change in
sourcing strategies is expected to
enhance the relevance of our product
portfolio to the customer and there are
potential areas that can be explored to
drive growth. An island wide network,
a growing online presence and a
strong brand support the ambitious
growth plans of this sector.

Transportation & Logistics

It was smooth sailing for the Advantis
Group who delivered its highest Profit
After Tax of Rs. 8.61 bn, accounting for
30% of Group Profit After Tax which
is the highest contribution by any
sector. Restructuring of the sector
into 6 verticals last year enhanced

the customer value proposition and
maximised synergies across the
verticals, strengthening its position as
the leading logistics provider in the
country.

Performance of the sector was
boosted by strong growth in

exports and transshipment business,
gains in currency translations and
increased demand for logistics and
warehouse operations as supply

chain management became a critical
operation due to global issues. The
increase in freight rates also supported
profitability of the sector.

International Freight Management
delivered triple digit top and bottom
line growth supported by expansion of
the export and transshipment business,
increasing freight rates and exchange
gains as the rupee devalued. Marine
and Engineering acquired a container
vessel becoming the only

Sri Lankan company to own one.
Strong demand, increased activity with
the Maldives and growth in bunkering
operations supported profitability
together with earnings from the

new acquisition. Integrated Logistics
also saw strong growth in demand

as customers sought expertise in
inventory management as they built
up inventory to overcome supply chain
issues.

Express Freight strengthened delivery
of the last mile with CityPak supported
by the growth of e-commerce.
Projects & Engineering maintained

its leadership of pre-engineered steel
buildings but was impacted by the
slowdown in large scale infrastructure
development projects. International
Operations recorded steady growth of
its Bangladesh, Indonesia and Maldives
business although businesses in
Myanmar was affected by the political
instability. The Aviation business also
had a good year supported by growth
in cargo handling. Unisyst Engineering
PLC focused on streamlining its
operations during the year and is ready
for growth in the year ahead.

The Advantis Group is well positioned
for future growth with a broad
presence across the value chain and
further headroom for growth utilising

PURIFICATION

Countries of Operation:

Sri Lanka / Indonesia / Thailand /
United Kingdom / Australia / USA /
Singapore / India / British Virgin Island
+ Revenue Rs. 32.75 bn © 29%

« EBITDA Rs. 3.72 © 26%

+ Op. Profit Rs. 3.08 bn © 31%

+ PBT Rs. 4.64 bn ®© 4%

« PATRs. 3.71bn @ 4%

¢ Capex Rs.1.68 bn

« Total Assets Rs. 3816 bn © 66%
+ Value created: Rs. 10.17 bn © 28%

« Foreign Exchange Earnings: US$
68.95 mn

« Dividends received from Foreign
Subsidiaries US$ 2.69 mn

AGRICULTURE

Countries of Operation:

Sri Lanka / Bangladesh

+ Revenue Rs. 24.09 bn © 25%

+ EBITDA Rs. 3.26 @ 43%

+ Op. Profit Rs. 3.01 bn © 52%

+ PBT Rs. 2.30 bn @ 35%

+ PAT Rs. 171 bn @ 41%

¢ Capex Rs. 293 mn

+ Total Assets Rs. 25.83 bn @ 61%
+ Value created: Rs. 8.01 bn @ 55%

« Foreign Exchange Earnings: US$
1319 mn

« Dividends from Foreign
Subsidiaries US$ 0.18 mn

PLANTATIONS
Country of Operation:

Sri Lanka

+ Revenue Rs.17.37 bn © 9%

+ EBITDA Rs. 3.02 @ 28%

+ Op. Profit Rs. 2.45 bn © 30%

+ PBT Rs. 2.85 bn @ 61%

+ PAT Rs. 2.62 bn © 69%

* Capex Rs. 858.72 mn

+ Total Assets Rs. 1819 bn @ 12%

+ Value created: Rs. 10.04 bn @ 22%

« Foreign Exchange Earnings: US$
82.25 mn

N
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the capacity in place. A sound track
record and reputation together with a
committed team supports its growth
aspirations.

Hand Protection

Top line growth for the Hand
Protection sector was 25% supported
by volume growth and customer
acquisition in selected markets.
Overall, the first half of the year saw
the market normalising after the
surge in demand with the onset of
the pandemic in the previous year.
Consequently, sales were slow due to
overstocking in the previous year by
customers initially but picked up pace
in the last two quarters. Increased
rubber prices proved to be another
challenge, exerting pressure on
margins. Profit After Tax dipped by 8%
to Rs. 4.04 bn, accounting for 14% of
Group's Profit After Tax.

The sector focused on increasing
capacity in all 5 manufacturing
facilities and moved to higher value-
added products in the premium and
supported gloves categories. Supply
chains were strengthened with the
addition of over 2,000 new farmers to
the First Light programmme while the
programme itself was strengthened to
address the concerns of farmers. Over
20 new products were introduced to
the market including a premium sports
glove which presents a potential area
of growth. Additionally, 5 new patents
have been applied for, including 1 at
the World Intellectual Property Office.
The Group is well positioned for
growth in the year ahead, maintaining
the momentum of the last two
quarters. A strong commitment to
ESG and strong customer relationships
underpin its growth prospects.

Purification

Positioned as the world’s largest
producer of activated coconut shell
carbon, Haycarb is a geographically
diversified Group with a ubigquitous
product that is relevant in a myriad of
applications across a wide range of
industry sectors as the world seeks

to move to a greener and smarter
economy. Demand for the product is
driven by an increasing need for air
and water purification and increasingly
more stringent environmental and
food safety regulations. Its relevance
in fields such as medicine, energy and
technology keep the product relevant
to stable industries as well as cutting
edge technologies with potential for
increasingly higher value addition
through customer centric innovation.

Top line growth of 29% to Rs. 32.75

bn was driven by increased focus on
high value-added products in the sales
mix, market development and buoyant
gold prices. Increased freight costs
and raw material prices dampened
margins. Additionally, it was necessary
to build up both raw materials and
finished goods inventory resulting in
increased finance costs for working
capital. However, the steep devaluation
of the rupee in March boosted finance
income which increased Profit Before
Tax and Profit After Tax to Rs. 4.64 bn
and Rs. 3.71 bn, respectively, recording
the highest profit recorded since
inception for the second consecutive
year.

The outlook for the Purification
sector is positive as demand for
activated carbon is expected to grow
significantly, particularly in North
America and China. Steadily climbing
gold prices, a strong innovation
pipeline of hard carbons, super
capacitor carbons and EDLC products
support market development and
penetration. There is headroom for
growth overseas as well, expanding
our presence into markets where

raw material is available to overcome
challenges in freight costs. Attracting,
developing and retaining talent in
critical areas will be key to growth in
the medium term.

Agriculture

Hayleys Agriculture managed several
challenges during the year to record
its highest profit for the second
consecutive year with Profit After
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INDUSTRY INPUTS,

POWER & ENERGY

Countries of Operation:
Sri Lanka / Bangladesh

ECO SOLUTIONS

Countries of Operation:
Sri Lanka / India

CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS

Country of Operation:
Sri Lanka

Revenue Rs. 7.04 bn © 41%
EBITDA Rs. 1.54 bn © 8%

Op. Profit Rs. 1.20 bn @ 9%

PBT Rs. 122 bn © 22%

PAT Rs. 1.05 bn © 32%

Capex Rs. 68.34 mn

Total Assets Rs. 15.20 bn @ 13%
Value created: Rs. 2.62 bn @ 15%

Revenue Rs. 1113 bn @ 42%
EBITDA Rs. 892.43 mn © 9%

Op. Profit Rs. 717.99 mn © 9%
PBT Rs. 177 bn ©132%

PAT Rs. 1.50 bn @ 127%

Capex Rs. 360.78 mn

Total Assets Rs. 17.52 bn @ 34%
Value Created Rs. 3.09 bn © 88%

Foreign Exchange Earnings: US$
43.67 mn

Revenue Rs. 9.52 bn @ 62%
EBITDA Rs. 1.78 © 22%

Op. Profit Rs. 1.49 bn @ 21%

PBT Rs. 1.38 bn © 35%

PAT Rs. 115 bn © 37%

Capex Rs. 747.49 mn

Total Assets Rs. 12.07 bn @ 57%
Value created: Rs. 3.00 bn @ 19%

Foreign Exchange Earnings: US$
6.73 mn
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Tax of Rs. 1.71 bn, a growth of 41%
over the previous year. A catalyst in
the country’s agriculture sector, the
sector plays a key role in modernising
agriculture and addressing the food
security of the country through
capacity building of farmers and
providing the tools, seeds and other
inputs while also linking them to global
supply chains through purchase of
harvests at agreed prices.

Consequently, the ban on fertilizer
and agrochemicals in April 2021 was

a heavy blow as it dampened yields
for the Yala and Maha seasons. The
reversal of the decision in September
2021 was too late for the necessary
preparation of the fields. The sector
also rationalised its costs and improved
efficiencies in view of the impact of
the ban on fertiliser and chemicals and
also moved to a cash business model
to mitigate increased levels of credit
risk. Agri equipment consolidated

its market leadership and was a key
contributor to profitability of the
sector.

Flower seed operations were expanded
with a new seed processing facility

in Bangladesh which will support
penetration in the region with global
customers remained steady although
movement of seeds has been a
challenge in global markets due to

the pandemic. Bangladesh operations
recorded its best performance to date
as it was able to provide uninterrupted
supply of material although the sector
was affected by supply constraints.

The farmers were badly affected

by the convergence of the ban on
fertilizer, inflation, lockdowns and

fuel shortages and the rise in cost of
inputs on top of two poor seasons. It
is imperative that we find solutions to
support this vital sector of the country
to restore food security and livelihoods
to 30% of the country’s labour force.
Hayleys Agriculture continues to seek
win-win solutions to drive the stability
and growth of this sector.

Plantations

The Plantations sector delivered a
solid performance amidst significant
challenges recording Profit After Tax
growth of 69% to Rs. 2.62 bn. Steady
demand for tea and rubber prices and
a focus on quality supported top line
growth as all top 10 prices of GSA at
the auctions were from the sector.
Estate management teams were
trained on leadership. Both companies
scored in the 90s on the Great Place
to Work survey and were the first
companies in the Plantation sector

to undertake the survey with 2000
employees picked randomly by them.
Talawakelle Tea Estates was ranked
the 2nd in Asia reflecting the care and
concern for our employees who are
resident on the estates. Training and
recognition platforms such as Best
Plucker Awards are in place.

The ban on imports of fertiliser and
agrochemicals was a blow but we
overcame these with regenerative
agriculture practices. Soil augers
were purchased by each division

to drill holes which were then filled
with composting material. We also
purchased weeds to incentivise
employees to manually weed which
were then used for composting.
Fields were cleaned, workers earned
supplementary income and jobs
were created for reverse migrants
to the estates. The sector looked at
mechanisation in its pre-harvesting
activities including pruning but
continued the practice of plucking
by hand to ensure that quality was
maintained.

The sector continues to focus on crop
diversification and is planting coconut,
a third crop following tea and rubber.
A low maintenance plant with uses

for every part of the tree makes it an
attractive proposition. The number of
greenhouses for strawberries are being
doubled. We have also installed solar
power systems on five of our factories
supporting clean energy generation.

TEXTILES

Country of Operation:

Sri Lanka

+ Revenue Rs. 31.67 bn @ 117%

+ EBITDA Rs. 2.50 bn @ 93%

+ Op. Profit Rs. 1.76 bn ©® 100%

+ PBT Rs. 316 bn @ 337%

+ PAT Rs. 2.69 bn @ 270%

¢ Capex Rs. 2.29 bn

+ Total Assets Rs. 36.71 bn @ 217%
+ Value created: Rs. 7.41 bn @ 165%

» Foreign Exchange Earnings: US$
147.83 mn

LEISURE

Countries of Operation:

Sri Lanka / Maldives

+ Revenue Rs. 3.42 bn © 154%

+ EBITDA Rs. 128.67 mn © 112%

+ Op. Loss Rs. 1.02 bn @ 44%

+ Loss before tax Rs. 1.70 bn @ 31%
+ Loss after tax Rs. 1.67 bn @ 29%
* Capex Rs. 360.22 mn

+ Total Assets Rs. 18.66 bn @ 19%

» Value created: Rs. 1.56 bn (2021 -
Rs. -3 mn)

OTHERS

Countries of Operation:

Sri Lanka / Netherlands / Japan /

United Kingdom

+ Revenue Rs. 10.35 bn @ 112%

+ EBITDA Rs. 6.69 @ 46%

« Op. Profit Rs. 6.52 bn © 48%

+ PBT Rs. 4.57 bn @ 155%

+ PAT Rs. 4.50 bn @ 165%

e Capex Rs. 149.37 mn

+ Total Assets Rs. 79.46 bn @ 10%
+ Value created: Rs. 11.51 bn @ 53%
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Mabroc also recorded an excellent year
as they became the largest shipper of
tea to China for the last three years
despite a culture of green tea. The
company implemented a different
route by offering blends. We also
developed Ready To Drink tea which
were marketed to the Ready To Drink
tea manufacturers. This model was
used successfully in Taiwan as well

by modifying the Ready To Drink tea.
Mabroc is also the 3rd largest exporter
of tea to Japan, shipping to some of
the largest companies in the country.
Leveraging the understanding of
flavour profiles was key to success,
enabling the company to increase top
and bottom lines by 100% with further
headroom for growth in key markets.

The outlook for the Plantation and Tea
export companies is positive with plans
for crop diversification and potential
for growth in existing and new markets
for Mabroc.

Industry Inputs, Power & Energy
Industry Inputs, Power & Energy sector
expanded its product portfolios and
geographical markets to deliver Rs.
1.05 bn as Profit After Tax, recording an
increase of 32% over the previous year.
Industrial Inputs focused on specialty
raw materials and worked with
customers to develop new products.
New principals were added and the
portfolio was expanded, supporting its
regional presence across the SAARC
countries, Indonesia and Thailand.
Lifesciences also expanded its product
portfolio to introduce DNA testing
machines and moved into Maldives as
well. Power & Energy followed a similar
strategy, moving into small scale
generators which were distributed
through the Singer network while also
exporting to the Maldives. The Power
business applied for 5 renewable
power projects in solar and wind and
aspires to increase its current capacity
of 100 MW to 500 MW.

Future plans for this sector are focused
on making inroads into overseas

markets and managing liquidity in
view of improving receivables. We are
also looking at manufacturing some
of the inputs with assistance from the
principals.

Eco Solutions

Eco Solutions delivered a strong
performance during the year with an
increase of 42% in revenue and an
increase of 127% on Profit After Tax,
reaching Rs. 1.50 bn for the first time
in the history of the company. This

is one of the Group’s oldest sectors
with value added products sought
by domestic and export markets.
The sector adds around 90% of value
to the products locally for both the
local and global markets, minimising
the pressure on foreign exchange.
Additionally, having a manufacturing
facility in India also supported access
to raw materials as well as volumes.
Sourcing raw materials continues to
be a challenge and the sector has
invested in backward integration to
mitigate the risk.

The outlook is promising for this sector
as its products which incorporate
coconut fibre are widely used in
environmental engineering solutions.
This is expected to drive demand in
the years ahead.

Construction Materials

The Construction Materials sector
delivered strong top line and

bottom line growth of 62% and 37%
respectively to record Profit After Tax
of Rs. 115 bn. Export volume growth
was encouraging with volumes and
values increasing by multiples of 2.8
and 3 respectively. We moved to a
new factory to manufacture value
added products with light engineering
solutions, moving away from basic
extrusions. Further, Alumex Building
Systems, our proprietary window and
door solutions and fagcade systems
were introduced to local and global
markets with certification of their
ability to withstand wind, water,
acoustic and dynamic pressure.
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These products are used in high rise
building overseas as well, affirming

its adherence to global standards

and tests. The sector also introduced
a range of value-added products to
the local market while also expanding
its dealer network. These initiatives
enabled high capacity utilisation and
improved cost absorption. Alumex
introduced a new brand "Dwellings"
to the local residential market with a
product range of doors and windows
which are attractively priced at a point
lower than timber doors and windows.
Local aluminium recycling and billet
production increased significantly,
saving foreign exchange through
import substitution.

The outlook for this sector is promising
with its Alumex Building Systems
gaining traction in both the local and
global markets as it augurs well for
growth in exports. The local market
also presents opportunities for growth
as the products are priced attractively.
The capacity increases done during the
year will also support top line growth
while the productivity efficiencies are
expected to boost profitability.

Textiles

Hayleys Fabric PLC took a giant
stride forward to its next era of
growth with the acquisition of South
Asia Textiles Ltd in April 2021 having
turned in a solid year in 2020/21 to
reach maximum capacity utilisation
at its existing plant. The acquisition
was timely and financed in the

right currency. The leadership team
harmonised strategy, policies and
processes with the existing plant

and turned around its operations in
record time to become the largest
fabric manufacturer in the country.
The financial performance reflects the
effective capacity utilisation of the
new acquisition as revenue increased
by 117% to Rs. 31.67 bn. Hayleys Fabric
was unswerving in its long-term
strategy and aligned operations of
the new plant to work with strategic
partners on its own branded portfolio
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of high value synthetic fabrics which
has yielded dividends in the past three
years. Profit After Tax recorded 270%
growth to Rs. 2.69 bn accounting for
10% of Group profits.

Hayleys Fabric has been an innovator
in its field, becoming the first Sri
Lankan company to develop its own
portfolio of fabrics for global fashion
brands and has worked with strategic
customers whose requirements

are factored into its research and
development. Launching two
collections each year, the company
caters predominantly to the trending
athleisure industry. These have gained
traction with Tier 1 buyers with whom
the sector has developed strong
partnerships and maintain full order
books.

A strong focus on ESG has seen the
company innovate using natural dyes,
minimising the use of chemicals.
Biodiversity and regeneration have
been part of its commitment to

the environment, going beyond
regulatory compliance to minimise

its environmental footprint. Its
commitment to the employees and
the community has been equally
strong with over 85% of its workforce
employed from within a 15 km radius.
Quality, environment and social
compliance certifications affirm its
commitment and provide a sound
platform for the growth aspirations of
this innovative sector.

Leisure

Recovery of the Leisure sector
gathered momentum from November
2021 until March 2022 as over 70%

of countries opened borders for
vaccinated tourists. While the sector
is able to recover quickly, sustained
growth momentum is required to set
it back on an even keel. Amaya Kuda
Rah, the resort in the Maldives turned
around and is making money while the
outstation resorts also managed to
break even. The Kingsbury and Amaya

Beach are still making losses although
these have reduced. The sector needs
a strong and sustained recovery to
regain its vibrancy and contribute
positively to the inflow of foreign
exchange and the country’s progress
as it has been 3 years since the sector
experienced a good year. Economic
and political stability will be key to the
renaissance of the sector and we look
forward to a promising season in the
year ahead.

OTHERS

This sector includes operations of the
holding company, BPO operations, and
Fentons Ltd. Expansion of activities
by Fentons and dividends received by
Hayleys PLC supported the growth of
Profit After Tax of this sector by 165%
to Rs. 4.49 bn, contributing 16% of the
Group’s total. The growth of Fentons,
a 103-year-old electro mechanical
company during this year has been
phenomenal as it expanded operations
across all its businesses including air
conditioning, plumbing, fire protection,
electrical work, facilities management
and solar. The power outages during
the year spurred interest in solar
solutions which is now the largest
business vertical. The sector also
acquired principals to facilitate supply
to large projects. Fentons also grew

its ICT business by more than 100% to
become one of the top 3 companies in
the field.

Dividends received by the holding
company amounted to Rs. 515 bn
which gets set off in consolidation and
is not reflected in the results of the
sector.

The outlook for the sector is promising
with a strong order book which is
tempered by the slowdown of the
construction sector, foreign exchange
liquidity and higher interest rates.

THE POWER OF PEOPLE
It is the people who make every cog
and gear in the World of Hayleys

run smoothly, ensuring that our
strategic goals are achieved. We
ensured that the salaries were not
affected during the pandemic and
found a way to provide relief for those
badly affected by the current crisis.
Our calls have been justified as the
performance in both the previous
year and this year have affirmed. The
culture of meritocracy that prevails
throughout the organisation serves
as fertile ground for intrapreneurship,
generating ideas that are nurtured

to realisation leveraging the
infrastructure, processes and tacit
knowledge within the Group.

Equal opportunity, diversity and
inclusion are integrated into the
policy framework of Hayleys and

our awareness of its dimensions are
evolving as we dig deeper. Gender
inequalities is a key area of focus for
us and we are focused on creating
new opportunities for women. Hayleys
Fabric PLC commenced a knitting
plant with an all-female team which
has been successful. Likewise, Advantis
has trained women to operate forklifts,
paving the way for women to prove
their abilities and skill. The Plantations
sector has also encouraged women to
step up into roles of kankanees. We
are also keen to fix the broken rungs
on the ladder and are committed to
increasing women in leadership in
alignment with our equal opportunity
principles. This is evident in the
appointments of females to the main
Board and Subsidiary Boards. While
there is more that needs to be done,
we’'ve made a start and pledge to
continue to build on these solid
foundations.

OUTLOOK

The global outlook is forecasted

at 3.6% for both 2022 and 2023
compared to the estimated 6.1% in
2021. It is expected to drive food
and fuel prices higher with inevitable
upward pressure on inflation. This is
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EQUAL OPPORTUNITY,
DIVERSITY AND INCLUSION
ARE INTEGRATED INTO

THE POLICY FRAMEWORK
OF HAYLEYS AND OUR
AWARENESS OF ITS
DIMENSIONS ARE EVOLVING
AS WE DIG DEEPER. GENDER
INEQUALITIES IS A KEY AREA
OF FOCUS FOR US AND WE
ARE FOCUSED ON CREATING
NEW OPPORTUNITIES FOR
WOMEN IN NEW AREAS.

expected to affect the low-income
countries the most and multilateral
efforts will be needed to minimise its
impacts. Growth in world trade is also
expected to moderate to 5% in 2022
compared to the estimated growth

rate of 10% in 2021, dimming prospects.

The outlook for the country remains
extremely fluid at present, with
pending negotiations with the

IMF and other donor countries. Its
macroeconomic challenges of high
debt, low foreign reserves and high
inflation weigh on growth which

is forecasted to moderate to 2.4%

by the Asian Development Bank.
Increasing prices of food, fuel and
other essentials, supply shortages and
straitened foreign exchange liquidity
are expected to drive up inflation
further in 2022. However, it is expected
to moderate in 2023 as inflationary
pressures ease with decreasing
global prices and stability of supplies.
Immediate measures to restore
macroeconomic stability are essential
to create the conditions necessary
for growth. The three months ahead
are expected to be difficult until there
is a clear way forward. However, we
are optimistic that the second half of
the financial year will see solutions
being rolled out simultaneously with
the commencement of much needed
structural reforms.

Our plans, discussed above within
each business sector, are largely
aligned to the country’s needs to

drive export growth. Our strong
governance mechanisms will be key
to navigating the challenges ahead
and our collective wits are sharpened
after the pressures of the past three
years. Strong communication lines and
trained teams support our aspirations
as we set out to define new boundaries
for the World of Hayleys.

VALUE TO SHAREHOLDERS

The share price of Hayleys PLC
increased from Rs. 60.80 share to Rs.
76.90, providing shareholders a return
of 26% for the financial year from
capital appreciation.

Value to shareholders increased
considerably during the year with
Earnings per share moving up from Rs.
10.18 to Rs. 24.34 and an increase of
125%. We also distributed an interim
dividend of Rs. 4.00 per share in March
2022.

The issuer rating of Hayleys PLC was
revised upwards twice during the year
and now stands at AA- with a Stable
outlook reflecting the performance and
resilience of the Group.

APPRECIATIONS

The exceptional performance set out
in the report is the result of the hard
work and dedication of the teams
across our diverse sectors who have
all contributed to create value for our
stakeholders. The Board joins me in
thanking everyone for living the values
and making Hayleys one of the most
admired companies in the country.

| take this opportunity to thank the
Group Management Committee and
the Sector Heads who led the teams
from the front, inspiring and coaching
them to perform at a new level.

| thank the Co-Chairman for his
ready counsel and vision which
has contributed to the outstanding
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performance during the year. | also
thank my fellow Board Members

for their vigilance and insights that
enabled us to navigate a difficult year.
We are appreciative of the confidence
and trust of our shareholders and
other stakeholders who have shared
this epic journey.

2z

Mohan Pandithage
Chairman and Chief Executive
19th May 2022
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Left to Right

Gamini Gunaratne, Jayanthi Dharmasena, Hisham Jamaldeen, Mohan Pandithage, Dr. Harsha Cabral,
PC, Sarath Ganegoda, Rajitha Kariyawasan, Ruwan Waidyaratne, Dhammika Perera, Aravinda Perera,
Rohan Karr, Kawshi Amarasinghe
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1. MOHAN PANDITHAGE
Chairman & Chief Executive

Joined the Hayleys Group in 1969.
Appointed to the Board of Hayleys
PLC in 1998 and as the Chairman and
Chief Executive of Hayleys PLC in July
2009.

Fellow of the Chartered Institute of
Logistics and Transport (UK). Serves as
Honorary Consul of the United Mexican
States (Mexico) to Sri Lanka. Council
Member of the Employers’ Federation
of Ceylon. Member of the Advisory
Council of the Ceylon Association of
Shipping Agents (CASA). Leadership
Excellence Recognition by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Sri

Lanka. Recipient of the ‘Best Shipping
Personality’ Award by the Institute

of Chartered Shipbrokers. Honoured
with a Lifetime Achievement Award by
Seatrade - Sri Lanka Ports, Trade and
Logistics (SLPTL) and the first-ever

Sri Lanka Pinnacle Lifetime Award by
the Chartered Institute of Logistics
and Transport (CILT). Inducted as
Legend of Logistics by the Sri Lanka
Logistics and Freight Forwarding
Association in recognition of services
rendered to Sri Lanka’s logistics
industry. He is the Chairman of Alumex
PLC, Hayleys Leisure PLC, Dipped
Products PLC, Haycarb PLC, Hayleys
Fabric PLC, Hayleys Fibre PLC, Kelani
Valley Plantations PLC, Regnis (Lanka)
PLC, Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC, Singer
Industries (Ceylon) PLC, Talawakelle
Tea Estates PLC, The Kingsbury PLC,
Unisyst Engineering PLC, Horana
Plantations PLC and serves on the
Board of Diesel & Motor Engineering
PLC.

2. DHAMMIKA PERERA
Co-Chairman Non-Executive

Mr Dhammika Perera is a quintessential
strategist and a business leader with
interests in a variety of key industries
including manufacturing, banking

and finance, leisure, plantations, and
hydropower generation. He has over
30 years of experience in building
formidable businesses through
unmatched strategic foresight and
extensive governance experience
gained through membership of the
Boards of quoted and unguoted
companies.

Mr Perera is the Chairman of Vallibel
One PLC, Royal Ceramics Lanka PLC,
Lanka Tiles PLC, Lanka Walltiles PLC,
The Fortress Resort PLC, Vallibel Power
Erathna PLC, Greener Water Ltd,
Delmege Limited, and LB Microfinance
Myanmar Company Limited. He is

the Co Chairman of Hayleys PLC,

The Kingsbury PLC and Singer

(Sri Lanka) PLC. Executive Deputy
Chairman of L B Finance PLC, Deputy
Chairman of Horana Plantations PLC.
He is also an Executive Director of
Vallibel Finance PLC and serves on

the Boards of Hayleys Leisure PLC,
Haycarb PLC, Hayleys Fabric PLC and
Dipped Products PLC. Also, a Director
of Dhammika and Priscilla Perera
Foundation.

3. SARATH GANEGODA
Executive Director

Rejoined Hayleys in March 2007.
Appointed to the Group Management
Committee in July 2007. Appointed

to the Board of Hayleys PLC in
September 2009. Fellow Member of
CA Sri Lanka and Member of Institute
of Certified Management Accountants
of Australia. Holds an MBA from the
Postgraduate Institute of Management,
University of Sri Jayewardenepura.
Worked for Hayleys Group between
1987 and 2002, ultimately as an
Executive Director. Subsequently, held
several senior management positions in
large private sector entities in Sri Lanka
and overseas. Has responsibility for
the Strategic Business Development
Unit, Group Information Technology

of Hayleys PLC and appointed as the
Deputy Chairman of Alumex PLC

in October 2020. He serves on the
Boards of Unisyst Engineering PLC,
Dipped Products PLC, Haycarb PLC,
Hayleys Fabric PLC, Hayleys Fibre PLC,
Kelani Valley Plantations PLC, Regnis
(Lanka) PLC, Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC,
Singer Industries (Ceylon) PLC, The
Kingsbury PLC, Horana Plantations
PLC, and Hayleys Leisure PLC.

4. RAJITHA KARIYAWASAN
Executive Director

Joined Hayleys Group in January

2010. Appointed to the Group
Management Committee in February
2010. Appointed to the Board in June
2010. Holds a BSc. Eng. (Electronics
and Telecommunications) from the
University of Moratuwa, Sri Lanka.
Fellow Member of the Chartered
Institute of Management Accountants,
UK. Also a Six Sigma (Continuous
Improvement Methodology) Black
Belt, certified by the Motorola
University, Malaysia. Before joining
Hayleys, held the position of Director/
General Manager of Ansell Lanka

(Pvb) Ltd. Served as the Chairman

of the Manufacturing Association of
Export Processing Zone, Biyagama.
Has overall responsibility for the
Purification Products sector as the
Managing Director of Haycarb PLC. Is
also the Deputy Chairman of Dipped
Products Plc and the Eco Solutions
Sector. Serves in the board of Sri Lanka
Institute of Nanotechnology (SLINTEC)
as the nominee Director of Hayleys PLC.

5. DR. HARSHA CABRAL, PC
Independent Non-Executive Director

Dr. Cabral is a President’s Counsel in
Sri Lanka with 35 years’ experience in
the field of Commercial Arbitration,
Company Law, Intellectual Property
Law, Commercial Law, Securities Laws,
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International Trade Law coving both
civil and criminal aspect of the said
areas of law. He has been a President’s
Counsel for 16 years and commands an
extensive practice in the Commercial
High Courts and the Supreme Courts
of Sri Lanka, and has 15 Attorneys-at-
Law working in his Chambers. He holds
a doctorate in Corporate Law from

the University of Canberra, Australia.
He is a former member of the Board
of Investment (BOI) of Sri Lanka. He

is also a former sitting member of the
International Chamber of Commerce
(ICC) International Court of Arbitration
in Paris and a Representative Member
of the Federation of Integrated
Conflict Management (FICM) as well
as a Representative Member of the
International Commercial Disputes
Tribunal (ICDT). Dr. Cabral is a Director
of the CCC-ICLP (Ceylon Chamber

of Commerce and the Institute for

the Development of Commercial

Law and Practice) International ADR
Centre, a member of the Council of
Management of ICLP, and a member
of the Ministerial Committee appointed
to reform Commercial Arbitration in
Sri Lanka. He was the Founder Board
Member of the Sri Lanka International
Arbitration Centre and was involved

in the drafting of the Arbitration Act,
No. 11 of 1995, the current Act. At the
request of the Government of Sri
Lanka he was part of a two-member
delegation sent to create awareness on
commercial arbitration to the official

& unofficial bars of the Republic of
Maldives. Dr. Cabral is also a member
of the Law Commission of Sri Lanka,

a member of the Intellectual Property
Advisory Commission in Sri Lanka

and the Chairman of the Intellectual
Property Law Reform Project of the
Ministry of Justice, a member of the
Corporate Governance Faculty and the
Corporate Governance Committee of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Sri Lanka, a member of the Council

of Legal Education in Sri Lanka and
University Grants Commission (UGC)
nominee on the Post Graduate Institute
of Medicine (PGIM). As a member of
the Advisory Commission on Company
Law in Sri Lanka, Dr. Cabral was one

of the architects of the Companies

Act No. 7 of 2007, the current Act. Dr.
Cabral is also a Senior Advisor to the
Ministry of Sports in drafting the new
National Sports Law, a Senior Advisor
to the Ministry of Justice on the new
House of Justice Project (Chairman)
and a Senior Advisor to the Ministry of
Justice on Commercial Law Reform.

Dr. Cabral serves as the Chairman

of the Tokyo Cement Group, which
commands the largest market share
for cement in Sri Lanka. He was the
immediate past Chairman of LOLC
Finance PLC, one of the largest finance
companies in Sri Lanka. He was also
the immediate past Acting Chairman
of Hatton National Bank PLC (HNB).

In addition, Dr. Cabral was a Senior
Director of the Union Bank of Sri
Lanka. Dr. Cabral currently serves as
Independent Non-Executive Director of
DIMO PLC, Hayleys PLC, Alumex PLC,
Tokyo Cement Company (Lanka) PLC,
Tokyo Super Cement Company Lanka
(Private) Limited, Tokyo Cement Power
Lanka (Private) Limited, Tokyo Eastern
Cement Company (Private) Limited,
Tokyo Super Aggregate (Private)
Limited, Tokyo Supermix (Private)
Limited, World Export Centre Limited,
Darley Property Holdings (Private)
Limited, CCC-ICLP Alternative Dispute
Resolution Centre (Guarantee) Limited
and Sri Lanka Institute of Information
Technology (Guarantee) Limited
(SLIT), SLIT International (Private)
Limited, and he serves on several Audit
Committees, Nomination Committees,
Remuneration Committees, Recoveries
Committees and Related Party
Transaction Committees, chairing most
of them.
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Dr. Cabral is a senior visiting lecturer
at several Universities here and
abroad, a regular speaker at public
seminars and an author of several
books. He has also presented several
papers on Commercial Arbitration,
Corporate Law, Intellectual Property
Law, International Trade Law here
and abroad. In addition to his active
practice in courts and lecturing, he has
been a counsel in many Arbitration
and has served as Sole-Arbitrator,
Co-Arbitrator and Chairman in a large
number of arbitrations, domestic and
international.

6. RUWAN WAIDYARATNE
Executive Director

Joined Hayleys Advantis Group in
1985. Was appointed as a Director to
a subsidiary company in 1996 and a
Director of the Hayleys Advantis Group
in July 2002. Was appointed as the
Deputy Managing Director of Hayleys
Advantis Group in January 2010 and
was appointed to the Hayleys Group
Management Committee in February
2011. Was appointed as the Managing
Director of Hayleys Advantis Group in
April 2011 and an Executive Director
of Hayleys PLC in April 2013. Serves
as the Deputy Chairman of Unisyst
Engineering PLC. Former Chairman
of the Ceylon Association of Shipping
Agents (CASA) and the Sri Lanka
Logistics and Freight Forwarders’
Association (SLFFA). Chartered
Member of the Chartered Institute

of Logistics & Transport of Sri Lanka.
Committee member of the Sri Lanka-
Japan Business Council, Council
Member representing the Transport

& Logistics Services Group at the
Council of the Employers' Federation
of Ceylon (EFC) and Member of the
EDB Advisory Committee on Logistics
Sector. Holds an MBA from the

Edith Cowan University of Western
Australia and has undergone executive
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development programmes with the
National University of Singapore,
Indian School of Business and INSEAD.

7. HISHAM JAMALDEEN
Independent Non-Executive Director

Appointed to the Board in February
2014. Mr. Jamaldeen has extensive
experience in relation to accounting,
corporate finance, acquisition and
disposals, restructuring, strategic
business development & partnerships
and business planning. His experience
spans across a range of industries
including real estate, retail, leisure,
manufacturing, agriculture, industrial
solutions, power & energy,
plantations, transportation and
logistics. Given his deep level expertise
in multiple industries, he is recognised
as a sector specialist in a multitude of
industries and provides vital support
towards board level decision making.

Mr Jamaldeen brings forth both local
and global expertise having worked as
the Finance Director at Newbridge
Capital Investments Limited,

a property investment and
development company, transacting
directly into UK commercial and
London residential property. He has
been extensively involved in all
aspects of property investment
especially in transactional analysis,
financing, refinancing debt
structures and tax assemblies. He
was instrumental in transactions
involving real estate assets exceeding
USD 1.6 billion during his career.

His international exposure and real
estate experience was gained whilst
at Freeman & Partners accountancy
practice (UK) and subsequently at
Barclays Capital (a british multinational
investment Bank).

He has the distinction of being

the founder Managing Director of
Steradian Capital Investments, an
exclusive real estate advisory and
consultancy firm with both global

and local clienteles who seek
exposure and asset management
services for real estate investment
into Sri Lanka. His key responsibilities
include acquisitions, structuring debt
financing, and corporate structures.
Mr Jamaldeen is the key contact point
for all existing foreign investors spread
across Europe, East Asia and South
East Asia. He has been instrumental in
growing the Assets under Management
to over LKR 18 billion within a short
span of time. In 2020, Mr Jamaldeen
was recognised by Echelon as a trail
blazer and disruptor in the investments
sector for his contribution towards the
sector.

He further serves as the Executive
Director of Lanka Realty Investments
PLC, Managing Director of On’ally
Holdings PLC, and functions as the
Non-Executive Director of Hayleys
PLC, Singer Industries (Ceylon) PLC,
Regnis (Lanka) PLC and Talawakelle
Tea Estates PLC. He was a former
director of People’s Bank. He is a
Fellow of the Association of Certified
Chartered Accountants, UK and holds
a degree in Engineering and Business
from the University of Warwick, UK.

8. ARAVINDA PERERA
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr Aravinda Perera counts over 39
years in the Banking sector and
functioned as the Managing Director
of Sampath Bank PLC from 1st January
2012, until his retirement in September
20716.

He serves on the Boards of Singer
Finance Lanka PLC as Chairman, as
Deputy Chairman in Pan Asia Banking
Corporation PLC, Managing Director of
Royal Ceramics Lanka PLC, Director
of Rocell Bathware Ltd., SNAPS
Residencies Pvt Ltd., & Kosgulana
Hydro Company Ltd. Further to the
Directorships, he Chairs the Audit
committees of Hayleys PLC, Hayleys
Aventura Private Ltd, Hayleys Advantis
Ltd and Fentons Ltd.

He was the former Chairman of
Siyapatha Finance PLC, former
Director of Sampath Centre Ltd.,
Colombo Stock Exchange and Lanka
Bangla Finance Limited in Bangladesh.

He passed out from University of
Moratuwa in 1980 with an Honours
Degree in Mechanical Engineering.
He is a Member of the Institute of
Engineers (Sri Lanka) (MIESL) and

a Chartered Engineer (C.Eng.). He is
also a Fellow Member of the Chartered
Institute of Management Accountants
(UK) (FCMA) and a Fellow of the
Institute of Bankers Sri Lanka (FIB).
He also holds an MBA from the Post-
graduate Institute of Management,
University of Sri Jayewardenepura.

Mr. Perera was honoured with the
“CEO Leadership Achievement Award
2016” by the Asian Banker magazine
and was also the recipient of the
prestigious “Platinum Honours - 2014~
Award by the Postgraduate Institute
of Management Alumni (PIMA) of

Sri Jayewardenepura University. He
was honoured with the "Award for
the Outstanding Contribution to

the Banking Industry - 2015” by the
Association of Professional Bankers
and was also awarded an Honorary
Life Membership by the Association of
Professional Bankers in October 2018.
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9. JAYANTHI DHARMASENA
Executive Director

11. GAMINI GUNARATNE
Independent Non - Executive Director

Joined Hayleys Group as a
Management Accountant in 1991 and
has been with Hayleys Agriculture
Sector throughout her career at
Hayleys. Appointed to the Group
Management Committee and to

the Board on 1st April 2018. She is
the Managing Director of Hayleys
Agriculture Holdings and all its
subsidiary companies. She is a Fellow
Member of the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants, UK.

10. ROHAN KARR
Executive Director

Appointed to the Board on 1st October
2019. He presently serves as Chairman
of Lanka Hotels and Residencies

(Pvt) Ltd (Sheraton Colombo), Board
Member of Swisstek Ceylon PLC,
Regnis (Lanka) PLC, Dipped Products
PLC, Lanka Walltiles PLC, Lanka Tiles
PLC, Lanka Ceramic PLC, Horana
Plantations PLC and SLIIT International
(Pvt) Ltd. Previously he has served as
Vice Chairman of the National Water
Supply and Drainage Board.

12. KAWSHI AMARASINGHE
Alternate Director to Dhammika Perera

Joined as Executive Director of the
board of Hayleys PLC in June 2019.
He also serves as Managing Director
of the Hayleys Leisure sector which
includes The Kingsbury PLC, Hayleys
Leisure PLC and its subsidiaries
Amaya Resorts & Spas. Mr. Karr holds
a Masters in Hospitality and Business
Studies from the UK and is a veteran
in the hospitality industry with nearly
40 years’ experience. He has held
senior positions such as Executive
Vice President / Sector Head / General
Manager at leading hotels in both

Sri Lanka and in UK. He has also
served as Regional Director - Revenue
Management of Marriott Hotels for
Whitbread Hotel Company - UK, as
General Manager of Bristol Marriott
Hotel - UK and Marriott Marble Arch

- London UK before his return to

Sri Lanka. He was instrumental in
revitalising standards for the entire
domestic hospitality sector through
his groundbreaking work as Executive
Vice President of John Keells Holdings,
overlooking the Cinnamon City Hotels
and Resorts chain and as Head of
Brand Development for Cinnamon.

Appointed as Alternate Director to

Mr. Dhammika Perera on 17th October
2019. Ms. Amarasinghe currently serves
as Group Director, International Business
Development & CSR at Vallibel One PLC.

Prior to joining Vallibel One, Ms.
Amarasinghe served as an intern at
Strategic Policy Division at Department
of Community Safety in Queensland,
Australia.

Ms. Amarasinghe earned a Bachelor’s
Degree in International Studies from
University of Queensland in Brisbane,
Australia and a specialisation in French
Studies at University of Lausanne,
Switzerland.

In addition, she holds a certificate

in Management Acceleration

from INSEAD Business School in
Fontainebleau, France and a certificate
in Hotel Revenue Management from
Cornell University, USA.
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GROUP MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Left to Right
Dr. Roshan Rajadurai, Rohan Goonetilleke, Darshi Talpahewa, Pramuk Dediwela, Niran Ranatunga,
Choliya De Silva, Andrew Ng, Hasith Prematillake, Mahesh Wijewardene, Rajeeve Goonetileke,

Wasaba Jayasekera
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1. MOHAN PANDITHAGE
Please refer profile in Board of Directors

2. SARATH GANEGODA
Please refer profile in Board of Directors

3. RAJITHA KARIYAWASAN
Please refer profile in Board of Directors

4. RUWAN WAIDYARATNE
Please refer profile in Board of Directors

5. JAYANTHI DHARMASENA
Please refer profile in Board of Directors

6. ROHAN KARR
Please refer profile in Board of Directors

7. DR. ROSHAN RAJADURAI
Joined Hayleys Group in 2013.

Dr Roshan Rajadurai is the Managing
Director of Hayleys Plantation Sector
comprising Talawakelle Tea Estates
PLC, Kelani Valley Plantations PLC and
Horana Plantations PLC. A member
of the Hayleys Group Management
Committee. Since 1993 - 2001 held
Senior Plantation Management
position in Kelani Valley Plantations
PLC and from 2002 - 2012 joined
Kahawatte Plantations of Dilmah and
was Director/CEO 2008 - 2012.

He holds a B.Sc. Honours in Plantation
Management, MBA and M.Sc. in
Agriculture and Plantation Crops
from the Post Graduate Institute of
Agriculture, University of Peradeniya
and M.Sc. in Organisational Behaviour.
He has a Ph.D. in Management and a
D.Sc. in Agriculture.

He had been the Chairman of The
Planters’ Association of Ceylon,

Board Member of the Sri Lanka Tea
Board, Tea Research Institute, Rubber
Research Board, Tea Small Holdings
Development Authority and the

Tea Council of Sri Lanka. He is the
Chairman of the Sustainability Working
Group and the Co-Chairman of the Sri
Lanka Tea Road Map Strategy 2030.
He serves in the Standing Committee
on Agriculture of University Grants
Commission.

8. ROHAN GOONETILLEKE

Mr. Eranga Rohan Peiris Goonetilleke
joined Hayleys Fabric PLC, as
Managing Director/CEO on the 1st of
March 2013, and was appointed to

the Group Management Committee

in the same month. He also serves as
Managing Director/CEO of South Asia
Textiles Limited with effect from April
2021. Prior to joining Hayleys Fabric
PLC, he was appointed as a Director of
Brandix X’pressions (Pvt) Ltd, and was
appointed to the Board of CLT Apparel
(India) (Pvt) Ltd in January 2011, a fully
owned subsidiary of Brandix Lanka
Ltd. During the period, 2003 to 2010
he was the Managing Director/CEO

of Textured Jersey Lanka (Pvt) Ltd,
prior to which he was the Managing
Director/ CEO of Linea Clothing (Pvt)
Ltd, a subsidiary of MAS Holdings
(Pvt) Ltd, and prior to that he was at
Carson Cumberbatch & Company Ltd
as the CEO of Elpitiya Plantations Ltd.
He received his higher education in
the United Kingdom qualifying as a
Graduate Engineer (B. Sc. Eng.).

9. DARSHI TALPAHEWA

Joined Hayleys Group in January
2010 and appointed to the Group
Management Committee in November
2015. Non-Executive Director Singer
Finance (Lanka) PLC . Lawyer by
profession, with a LL.B from the
University of Colombo and Attorneys-
At- Law with first class honours

from Sri Lanka Law College. Holds a
Master’s Degree in Human Resource
Management from the University of
Northampton. Also holds Master’s
Degrees in International Relations and
Law, from the University of Colombo.
Has had the unique opportunity of
working in the government, non-
governmental, private/corporate
sectors including the banking sector
and academia. Has responsibility for
Human Resources and Legal services
for the Hayleys Group.

10. PRAMUK DEDIWELA

Mr. Dediwela started his career

in January 1989 and has over 33
years of experience in the fields of
Marketing and Sales, Material and
Logistics, Finance, Manufacturing

and Administration as well as Human
Resources under Alumex Group.

He was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Alumex PLC and its
subsidiaries in December 2010, as the
Chief Operating Officer in November
2017 and as the Managing Director in
July 2018.

Mr. Dediwela is a Marketer cum
Financial Economist and holds a Master
in Financial Economics (University

of Colombo), Master of Business
Administration (University of Southern
Queensland), Post-Graduate Diploma in
Business and Financial Administration
(CA Sri Lanka/Cranfield - UK),
Postgraduate Diploma in Marketing
(Chartered Institute of Marketing - UK).

Mr. Dediwela is a member of the
Advisory Committee on Light
Engineering sector under EDB/ Ministry
of Industry & Supply Chain Management
and member of the Sri Lanka Economic
Association. He is a Council Member of
the Foundry Development & Services
Institute of Sri Lanka.

11. NIRAN RANATUNGA

Mr. Ranatunga was appointed to the
Group Management Committee in July
2018.

He commenced a career in tea tasting
in 1980 by joining John Keells Ltd.

as an auctioneer and a tea broker.
Subsequently was trained in tea tasting
and blending at UK’s Lyons Tetley and
R. Twinnings & Co. Ltd. Was a founder
member of Mabroc Teas (Pvt) Ltd. in
1988 and was appointed Commercial
Director in 1991, having undertaken
the responsibilities of marketing bulk
tea and branded teas in numerous
international markets. Mr. Ranatunga
was responsible for spearheading the
initiative to launch an ethical tea brand
of the world at the United Nations
Global Compact. He was promoted

as Managing Director of Mabroc Teas
in 2014 and serves on the boards of
Hayleys Plantation Services (Pvt) Ltd.
and Kelani Valley Instant Tea (Pvt) Ltd.
as well as serving on the Committee
of Management of the Tea Exporters
Association of Sri Lanka.
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12. CHOLIYA DE SILVA

Mr. De Silva was appointed to the
Group Management Committee in
July 2018 and is a senior finance
professional possessing over 30

years’ experience in diversified
conglomerates, multinational FMCG,
and investment banking. He is former
Finance Director of Coca-Cola
Beverages Sri Lanka Ltd and holds a
varied and multi-faceted international
working experience in New Zealand,
India, Nepal, Ethiopia, South Africa
and United Arab Emirates. He was a
governing Council Member of AAT

Sri Lanka from 2016 to 2019 and
represented various Committees of
AAT and CA Sri Lanka. He is a Board
Member of United Nations Global
Compact Network (UNGC) Sri Lanka
and act as advisor to Business and
Human Rights Working Group of
UNGC. His 30 years’ experience include
14 years at Nestlé and 9 years at Coca-
Cola of which 7 years was overseas
whilst working for these two entities.
Mr. De Silva is a Fellow Member of

CA Sri Lanka, Fellow Member of the
Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants, UK and a Fellow Member
of Institute of Certified Practising
Accountants of Australia. He also holds
a MBA from Postgraduate Institute

of Management, University of Sri
Jayewardenepura and has completed
an EDP in University of Stellenbosch
Business School, Cape Town, South
Africa and a Breakthrough Leadership
course in Ashridge Business School,
London, England.

13. ANDREW NG

Joined Dipped Products PLC in
October 2018 as Managing Director
and was appointed to the Hayleys
Management Committee. Prior to
joining Dipped Products PLC, was

the Vice-President of Medical Global
Operations of Ansell. Has over 25 years
of international glove manufacturing
experience of which 10 years in senior
managerial positions. Experience in
the areas of Engineering, Operations
and holds a Degree in Engineering
from the University of New South
Wales, an MBA from Deakin University
in Australia and a Master Black Belt in
Lean Six Sigma.

14. HASITH PREMATILLAKE

Joined Hayleys Group in 2018 and

was appointed to the Hayleys Group
Management Committee in October
2018. Currently serves as the Managing
Director of Fentons Limited and its
subsidiaries. Previously Mr. Prematillake
served as the Country Director.
General Manager of Ansell Lanka (Pvt)
Ltd and Chief Executive Officer of
Phoenix Industries Ltd. He also held

a managerial position at Chevron
Lubricants Lanka. He holds a Master of
Business Administration Degree (Merit
pass) from the University of Colombo
where he was awarded prestigious

Dr. Linus Silva Medal for Best Overall
Performance, B.Sc. Engineering Degree
(Hon’s.) from University of Moratuwa,
Fellow Member of the Chartered
Institute of Management Accountants,
Member of the Chartered Institute of
Marketing, Passed Finalist of CA Sri
Lanka and a Graduate of the British
Computer Society. He is also a certified
LLean Six Sigma Black Belt.

15. MAHESH WIJEWARDENE

Mr. Mahesh Wijewardene was
appointed to the Group Management
Committee and also as an Executive
Director and the Group Chief Executive
Officer of Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC and
its subsidiary companies with effect
from 1st November 2018. He was
appointed to the Singer (Sri Lanka)
PLC Board on 1st June 2006. He
counts for over 30 years of managerial
experience in diverse fields of business.

Mr. Wijewardene holds a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration
from the University of Southern
Queensland and received the Dean’s
Award for Qutstanding Academic
Achievement. He also holds a Diploma
in General Management from the Open
University of Sri Lanka.

He served as the past Chairman of
Ceylon Chamber of Commerce - import
section and Sri Lanka - China Business
Council. Mr. Wijewardene currently
serves in the Executive Council of Sri
LLanka Retailers’ Association and a
member of the International Chamber
of Commerce - Policy Committee.
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He serves as a Director of Singer
Industries (Ceylon) PLC, Singer Finance
(Lanka) PLC, Regnis (Lanka) PLC,
Regnis Appliances (Private) Limited,
Singer Digital Media (Private) Limited,
Singer Business School (Private)
Limited, Reality Lanka Limited, Domus
Lanka (Private) Limited and Equity
Investments Lanka Limited.

16 RAJEEVE GOONETILEKE

Joined Hayleys Group in September
2021 as a Group Management
Committee member. He is the
Managing Director of Hayleys Fibre
PLC and is responsible for all the
subsidiaries of the Eco Solution
sector. Prior to joining the Group he
has served Brandix as the CEO of
Brandix Apparel Solutions - Deep
Discounter, as the Supply Chain
Director of Glaxo Smithkline - Sri
Lanka and Country Head/ GM of MAS
Fashionline in Vietnam. He holds a
B.Sc. Eng (Mechanical) from University
of Moratuwa and a M.Eng - Industrial
Engineering from Asian Institute of
Technology - Thailand.

17 WASABA JAYASEKERA

Mr. Wasaba Jayasekera is the Managing
Director of both Hayleys Aventura
(Pvt) Ltd and Hayleys Consumer
Products Limited. He holds a
Bachelor’s Degree in Physical Science,
from the University of Kelaniya,

Sri Lanka and a Master’s Degree in
Business Administration from the
Postgraduate Institute of Management,
University of Sri Jayewardenepura. He
is a fellow member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka
and an Ordinary Life Member of the Sri
Lanka Institute of Marketing. He also
holds a diploma in Computer Systems
& Design from the National Institute

of Business Management (NIBM).

Mr. Jayasekera counts extensive
international and domestic experience
in the areas of marketing and sales,
finance and controlling, business
restructuring, development and
planning and information technology &
systems
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate governance is key to our growth and to building our future as it creates the necessary checks and balances to hold
leaders accountable for their performance and the diligent discharge of their fiduciary duties. As one of the oldest institutions
in the country, pre-dating even the Currency Board System which was the predecessor of the Central Bank of Sri Lanka, we

The World Of

Hayleys

Since1878

THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REPORT HAS
BEEN STRUCTURED ON THE
THEMES SET OUT IN THE IFC
TOOLKIT FOR DISCLOSURE
& TRANSPARENCY ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE.
THE COMPLIANCE TABLES
FOR THE CONTINUING
LISTING RULES OF

THE COLOMBO STOCK
EXCHANGE AND THE

CODE OF BEST PRACTICE
ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE ISSUED

BY THE INSTITUTE OF
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
OF SRI LANKA ARE GIVEN IN
ANNEX ' AND ANNEX II.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE OF HAYLEYS PLC

i
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understand that it is these checks and balances that have built resilience and driven progress to bring the Group to this place in
time. It has been the sacred duty of each successive leader to strengthen this framework and align it to the not just the needs of
the present but also for the foreseeable future. Put very simply, we believe in it, we strengthen it and we rely on it.

OVERSIGHT OF SUBSIDIARIES

SECTOR AUDIT
COMMITTEE

L

o

SHAREHOLDERS

SECTOR

Board of Directors

SECTOR INTERNAL
AUDIT

-
SECTOR MANAGING
DIRECTOR

"

SECTOR MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE

i

SECTOR LIFECODE CHAMPIONS

HIGHLIGHTS 2021/22

@® Launch of the Hayleys Lifecode
in January 2022 setting out the
Group’s ESG policy framework
and targets for 2030

9 .’ls-:|.

@® Strengthening the Boards of
identified sectors with their
own Remuneration Committee
and Related Party Transactions
Review Committees to meet
their growing business needs.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

THE BOARD COMPOSITION

Composition is key to effective functioning of the Board as we need people with sound credentials and domain expertise.
They must be able to articulate their opinions and exercise their informed judgement regarding matters set before the
Board with a broad understanding of its impacts on our businesses and our stakeholders. Diversity of skills, perspectives
and opinions enrich the deliberations which are a necessary part of good governance. Consequently, Board balance and
diversity are critical factors that are determined in consultation with the Board Nomination Committee who have oversight
responsibility for assessing the number, expertise and other attributes required to provide leadership to Hayleys PLC and its
subsidiaries.

GENDER DIVERSITY BOARD BALANCE AGE DIVERSITY
% % %
9 9
36
36 55
91 55
9
M Male M Executive M 40-50
B Female B Non-Executive M 50-60
Independent >60
COLLECTIVE SKILLS TENURE OF SERVICE
% %
15 15 18
8
15 45
18
8
38 18
M Shipping & Logistics m <
B Entrepreneurship B 3-5
Legal 5-9
" Financial >
B Hospitality
B Technical

COMMITMENT TO ESG

As leading corporate in Sri Lanka and an early champion of sustainability, Hayleys PLC has a strong governance framework
that has grown in complexity with the business needs of the Group and the evolution of both corporate governance and
sustainability. The Group’s commitment to going beyond regulatory compliance is guided by voluntary adoption of relevant
ESG frameworks and standards as given below. More recently, its commitment to ESG is codified in the Hayleys Lifecode
which was launched in January 2022.

We are the Hayleys Group @ Leadership & Governance e Unlocking Value ® Management Discussion & Analysis @ Financial Statements



Hayleys’ governance framework comprises the following:
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e N
REGULATORY

« Companies Act No.7 of 2007,

* Sri Lanka Accounting and
Auditing Standards Act No.15 of
1995

« Continued Listing Requirements
of the Colombo Stock Exchange

¢ Inland Revenue Act No. 10 of
2006 and amendments

¢ Inland Revenue Act No. 24 of
2017

¢ Customs Ordinance No. 17 of
1869

» Foreign Exchange Act No. 12 of
2017

* Industrial Disputes Act No. 43 of
1950

¢ The Shop and Office Employees
Act No. 15 of 1954

« Factories Ordinance No. 45 of
1942

* Finance Business Act No. 42 of
2011 and amendments thereto

VOLUNTARY STANDARDS,
CODES & FRAMEWORKS

» Code of Best Practice on
Corporate Governance issued
by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants 2017

* Integrated Reporting Framework

* Global Reporting Initiative
Standards

* Requirements of Environmental
& Social Certifications

* Quality standard certifications
obtained by companies

( )
INTERNAL DOCUMENTS

* Avrticles of Association
* Board Charter

* Hayleys Lifecode

* The Hayleys Way

* Board Sub Committee Charters

IMPLEMENTING THE FRAMEWORK
AND ENSURING THE INTEGRITY OF
NON-FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The Group Sustainability Division

has day to day responsibility for
implementing the ESG Framework and
ensuring that the metrics required to
assess progress are reliable. They are
supported by Lifecode Champions

in each sector who coordinate with
the centre and the sector and serve

as a contact point for the Group
Sustainability Division. Regular
meetings are conducted by the
Sustainability Department to ensure
that there is clear understanding about
the objectives and progress made.

Non-financial Information required for
ESG reporting is gathered through

an inhouse developed system “The
Cube” which collects the information
on material topics. Non-financial
information is input by the different
entities and can be extracted to
provide information for each location,
entity, sector, and the Group facilitating
a drill down in case of need.

The non-financial information is fed in
monthly or quarterly as preferred by
the entity. The Group Sustainability
Division reviews the information
quarterly and discusses progress
made with the relevant sectors.

The information is presented to the
Group Management Committee and
the Board on a quarterly basis and
more frequently as maybe deemed
necessary.

The information from the Cube is
subject to review by Management
Audit & System Review Department
(MA & SRD) who provide assurance to
the Audit Committee and Boards that
the internal controls over the Cube
function effectively.
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STRENGTHENING CORPORATE GOVERNANCE THROUGH THE HAYLEYS LIFECODE

As we grow, articulating our values, governance structures and mechanisms becomes
necessary to ensure that they function effectively across all our businesses, providing the
necessary assurance to the parent company. We also needed to fully integrate the ESG
frameworks with other policies. Commencing in 2020/21, we compiled an ESG framework
for the Group which we called the Hayleys Lifecode as it charts a new sustainable course
for Hayleys Group. Our sustainability targets were also linked to the same to ensure that all
employees understand our commitment to reach and perhaps surpass these goals. Here we
provide excerpts from this key governance document.

Structure and

; Oversight
Implementation and
maintenance of Group- —————— 100% compliance
wide Compliance Register to relevant laws

and regulations

Responsible and
responsive corporate

Driving accountability
through accurate,
comprehensive ESG
reporting and external

citizenry validation
Stakeholder Transparency
Engagement and Accurate
) Reportin
Meaningful P g
and impactful Internal and
stakeholder external reporting
K relationships on ESG factors
Implementing Enterprise Risk .
closed-loop feedback Management Ethics and
mechanisms for all - Culture
stakeholder groups Holistic process to

identify, measure
and mitigate ESG
risks

Implementing global ERM
best practices and nurturing
a culture of risk- conscious
decision making
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Full compliance to
the Hayleys Way

Cultivating an organisational
culture built on ethical,
sustainable business practices
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TRANSPARENCY AND ACCURATE
REPORTING

The Board of Hayleys PLC is committed
to facilitating transparency and
accurate reporting to its investors and
other market participants.

“THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FRAMEWORK SHOULD ENSURE
THAT TIMELY AND ACCURATE
DISCLOSURE IS MADE ON ALL
MATERIAL MATTERS REGARDING
THE CORPORATION, INCLUDING
THE FINANCIAL SITUATION,
PERFORMANCE, OWNERSHIP, AND
GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY.”

OECD Guidelines 2015

Financial and operating results
Quarterly financial statements and
the Annual Report serve as regular
communication of our financial
performance which is disseminated
through the Colombo

Stock Exchange. Material developments
that arise between these reporting
dates are announced through

the Colombo Stock Exchange

to facilitate equal access to

information by investors and market
participants. Additionally, we also
issue press releases on our quarterly
financial performance and material
developments that arise in the interim
period to facilitate timely dissemination
of information.

Related-party transactions

Related party transactions are reported
in line with the requirements of

the CSE Listing Rules. Each Group
company is expected to ensure that
effective processes are in place to
comply with the requirements of the
same and that all Board members
and key management personnel of
the company are aware of their roles,
responsibilities, obligations and duties
in this regard.
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Other Information

The Annual Reports of the Group and
listed companies of the Group should
provide information on the following:

» Company objectives
» Value created for stakeholders

* Environmental, Social and
Governance information

* Issues regarding employees and
other stakeholders

» Foreseeable risk factors

Information provided in the Annual
Reports must be accurate, reliable,
comparable and consistent. The
Annual Reports must also provide a
balanced view of the performance and
standing of the company, explaining
both positive and negative aspects in
a responsible manner. We encourage
public listed companies within the
Group to prepare Annual Reports
adopting international best practice
using reputed standards, codes and
frameworks.

STAKEHOLDER DIALOGUE

Hayleys Group’s stakeholder universe
is diverse and widespread reflecting
the depth and breadth of the Group’s
operations. These stakeholders can

Stakeholder Value

play a vital role in enabling the Group
to identify, mitigate and manage

ESG opportunities and risks before a
problem arises. Feedback received
also informs the Group’s materiality

The value propositions for the Group’s key stakeholders are set out below;

STAKEHOLDER ROLE & RESPONSIBILITY

Shareholders

Employees

satisfaction.

Customers
Business Partners

Community

assessment , ESG strategy and
reporting. This section sets out the
Group’s approach to stakeholder
engagement.

Deliver sustainable returns commensurate with the risk undertaken and long-term growth

Create an inclusive and dynamic work environment which values employee well-being and

Consistently deliver high-quality, innovative solutions with excellent customer service.
Create opportunities for long-term business growth and sustainable value creation.

Address the social and environmental impacts of our operations through responsible

business practices and drive meaningful change in communities.
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THE HAYLEYS WAY

This is the Ethical Road Map for all
employees of the Group including

its key management personnel and
sets out clearly the expectations

of all employees of the Group. It

also provides information on the
culture, grievance mechanisms and
commitment of the Group to create
a conducive work environment for
all employees. This code of conduct
is reinforced through the orientation
training which all employees joining
the Group undertake, typically within
one month of joining. It sets out
explicit statements on anti-corruption
and acceptable gifts.

It is based on the following principles:

«  The Hayleys Group is committed to
conducting its business operations
with honesty, integrity and with
respect to the rights and interests
of all stakeholders.

* All Hayleys companies and
employees are required to comply
with the laws and regulations of the
countries in which they operate.

«  Every employee shall be
responsible for the implementation
of and compliance with the Code in
his/her environment.

The Code of Conduct provides
guidelines for employees on the
conduct of its businesses and
operations in all the countries we
operate in.

Competition

R

Regulatory
Compliance
—_——
Conflict of
Interest

The World Of

Hayleys

Since 1878

Shareholders

P

Employees

Business

Integrity

THE HAYLEYS

Public Activities @

o—/
=
Corporate <l

Responsibility /

STRUCTURE & FUNCTIONING OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Hayleys has developed a governance
structure that has evolved over time
and is fit for purpose. The Board of
Hayleys PLC has line of sight to the
Group’s industrially and geographically
diverse operations as set out on pages
444 to 448. The Group comprises

179 companies which includes 15
public listed companies which are
categorised in to 12 sectors. 31 of the
Group companies are located overseas
in 14 countries which are part of the

12 sectors. The Group’s governance
structure is set out on pages 58 to 59
together with the composition of the
Board by role, gender, skills, age and

@
Environment

\;c

\_ Consumers

tenure. The names of the companies
organised by sector are set out on
pages 444 to 448.

Board Diversity & Qualification
Profiles of the Board members and the
Group Management Committee are set
out on pages 48 to 57 while page 60
provides information on the diversity
of the Board

Independence

The Board comprises 11 Directors

of whom 6 are Executive Directors
including the Chairman/Chief
Executive. Board balance is facilitated
by the presence of Non-Executive
Directors of whom 4 are independent

CORRUPTION.”

The Hayleys Way

“THE HAYLEYS GROUP AND ITS EMPLOYEES SHALL NEITHER RECEIVE NOR OFFER OR MAKE,
DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, ANY ILLEGAL PAYMENTS, REMUNERATION, GIFTS, DONATIONS OR
COMPARABLE BENEFITS THAT ARE INTENDED, OR PERCEIVED, TO OBTAIN UNCOMPETITIVE
FAVOURS FOR THE CONDUCT OF ITS BUSINESS. THE COMPANY SHALL COOPERATE WITH
GOVERNMENTAL AUTHORITIES IN EFFORTS TO ELIMINATE ALL FORMS OF BRIBERY, FRAUD AND

N
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Executive Directors

Mr. AM. Pandithage

Chairman & Chief Executive

Mr. S.C. Ganegoda

Mr. H.S.R. Kariyawasan

Mr. R.J. Karunarajah

Mr. R. Waidyaratne

Ms. J. Dharmasena

Non-Executive, Non-
Independent

Mr. K.D.D. Perera

Co-Chairman

Independent Non-

Dr. H.Cabral PC

Senior Independent Director

Executive Directors

Mr. M.H. Jamaldeen

Mr. K.D.G. Gunaratne

Mr. MY.A. Perera

Alternate Director

Ms. A.A.K. Amarasinghe

Directors. As the role of the Chairman
and Chief Executive are combined,
the Board has appointed a Co-
Chairman and a Senior Independent
Director to ensure sufficient balance
of power. The Co-Chairman is the
majority shareholder and the Senior
Independent Director is a President’s
Counsel ensuring an effective balance
of power.

The following Directors are deemed
independent having considered the
following matters:

*  Dr. H. Cabral PC served on the
Board of Hayleys PLC for a period

The World Of

Hayleys

179

companies

15

public listed companies

31

overseas companies located in

14 countries

12 sectors

exceeding 10 years.

* Mr. M. H Jamaldeen is an
Independent Non-Executive
Director of Hayleys PLC, and Ms.
I. Jamaldeen, an Independent
Non-Executive Director of The
Kingsbury PLC, a subsidiary of

Hayleys PLC, is the spouse of Mr. M.

H. Jamaldeen

The Board is of the opinion that the
above Directors conduct themselves
in an impartial manner on matters
deliberated by the Board and that
independence will not be affected by
the matters referred to above.

Nomination, Appointment &
Succession

The Nominations Committee assesses
the strategic demands of the Group as
well as the skills and competence of
the Board to determine the optimum
size, skills and other attributes needed
and makes their recommendations
accordingly. Profiles of requirements
are drawn up and potential candidates
are screened by the Nominations
Committee prior to recommendation
to the Board. The Board considers the
recommendations of the Nominations
Committee and recommends suitable
candidates for appointment or re-
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election by the shareholders at

the Annual General Meeting under
the advisement of the Nomination
Committee. Following details of
new Directors are disclosed on their
appointment to the Colombo Stock
Exchange and selected newspapers.

a. A brief resume of the Director

b The nature of his expertise in
relevant functional areas

c. The names of companies in which
the Director holds directorships or
memberships in Board Committees;
and

d. Whether such Director can be
considered ‘Independent’.

The Board has the power to appoint
Directors to fill any casual vacancies
that may arise during the year. The
Articles of Association require that
Directors appointed in this manner
hold office until the next Annual
General Meeting and seek election
by the shareholders at that meeting
ensuring shareholder participation in
the election of Directors.

One third of the Directors in office
retire at each Annual General Meeting
by rotation with the Directors

who have served for the longest
period since their appointment/re-
appointment retiring first. Retiring
Directors are eligible for re-election
and maybe recommended for re-
election by the Board. The profile of
Directors whose names are submitted
for election or re-election are
accompanied by a resume to enable
shareholders to make an informed
decision on their election. Provisions
of the Articles of the Company do not
require the Director who serves as the
Chief Executive to retire by rotation.
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BOARD WORK & COMMITTEES

Work of Boards

The Board bears ultimate responsibility for the performance of the Group and is accountable to the shareholders who receive
the Annual Report of the Company setting out the performance of the Company. The functions of the Chairman and Chief
Executive are vested in one person due to the diversity and scale of operations of the Group and the Board is of the view
that this is the most appropriate arrangement for Hayleys PLC. The Board has also appointed Mr.K.D.D.Perera as Co-Chairman
and Dr H Cabral, PC , Non-Executive Director functions as Senior Independent Director to facilitate Board balance. Company
secretarial services are provided by Hayleys Group Services (Pvt) Ltd., who are competent secretarial professionals registered
as company secretaries with the Registrar of Companies. The Roles and Responsibilities of the Board, the Chairman, Senior

Independent Director and the Company Secretary are given below.

Ve

ROLE & RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

Ensure formulation and implementation of business
strategy

Appointment of Chairman, Co-Chairman and Senior
Independent Director

Ensuring that Key Management Personnel have
the required skills, experience and knowledge to
implement strategy

Succession planning
Approval of budgets and major capital expenditure

Ensuring effective systems to secure integrity of
information, internal controls, business continuity and
risk management

Ensuring compliance with all laws, regulations and
ethical requirements

Ensuring that key stakeholder interests are
considered in corporate decisions

Ensuring that businesses are developed in a
sustainable manner and adoption of integrated
reporting framework

Ensuring adoption of appropriate accounting policies
and fostering compliance with financial regulations

Establishing a process for monitoring and evaluation
of progress on implementation of strategy, budgets,
plans and risks

Ensuring optimal resource allocation for sustainable
value creation

ROLE OF THE COMPANY SECRETARY
Facilitating the efficient conduct of Board meetings and ensuring that all proceedings of meetings are properly minuted

ROLE OF CHAIRMAN

Ensure that the Board is in control of the affairs of the
company

Efficient conduct of the Board Meetings

Ensure that there is a balance of power between Executive
and Non-Executive Directors

Ascertain views of all Directors

ROLE OF SENIOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Set corporate values facilitating an equitable balance between
key stakeholder interests

Uphold high standards of ethics, integrity and probity.
Support executive leadership whilst monitoring their conduct

Promote high standards of corporate governance and
compliance

Meet with Non-Executive Directors at least twice a year and
Executive Directors at least once a year to facilitate discussion
and communication of governance matters and communicate
same to Chairman

Be available to shareholders in case they have concerns which
cannot, or should not, be addressed by the Chairman or
Executive Directors

Act on the results of any performance evaluation of the
Chairman

Maintain sufficient contact with major, significant and minority
shareholders, assisting the Board to develop a balanced
understanding of their issues

Ensuring that all Board Committees are properly constituted and provided with clear terms of reference

Ensuring that an Annual General Meeting is held in line with regulatory requirements and that all notices, forms and
reports necessary for the meeting are disseminated with approval of the Board

Maintaining minutes of the Annual General Meeting

Maintaining the registers required by regulations

Filing of all statutory returns and documents with the Registrar of Companies

Advising the Directors with respect to their duties and responsibilities in compliance with regulatory requirements

Ensuring good relationships with shareholders

Making necessary disclosures on related parties and related party transactions

We are the Hayleys Group @ Leadership & Governance e Unlocking Value ® Management Discussion & Analysis @ Financial Statements




67

The Board held 14 meetings during the year and attendance at these meetings and meetings of Board committees of the
Board are given below:

Nomination
Committee

Remuneration
Committee

Audit
Committee

Board

Related Party
Transaction
Review
Committee

Directors

Mr. A. M. Pandithage 14/14 = = 12/12 _
Mr. K. D. D. Perera 714 - 2/2 6/12 .
Mr. S. C. Ganegoda 14/14 - = - 4/4
Mr. H. S. R. Kariyawasan 14/14 - = : i
Dr. H. Cabral PC 13/14 4/4 1/2 1/12 4/4
Mr. L. R. V. Waidyaratne 14/14 = - - -
Mr. M. H. Jamaldeen 13/14 4/4 2/2 - -
Mr. M. Y. A. Perera 14/14 4/4 2/2 - 4/4
Ms. J. Dharmasena 14/14 = = - -
Mr. R. J. Karunarajah 14/14 - - _ _
Mr. K. D. G. Gunaratne 14/14 3/4 = = =
Ms. A. A. K. Amarasinghe 9/14 - = . _
(Alternate Director to Mr. K. D. D. Perera)

Total 14 4 2 12 4

Committees
The Board is assisted in the discharge of its duties by the following committees of the Board.

Board Committee Areas of Oversight Composition

Audit Committee * Financial Reporting * Independent Non-Executive Directors - 4
Report of the Audit Committee is * Internal Controls
given on pages 297 to 298 * Internal Audit

» External Audit

Nominations Committee * Appointment of Key Management e Chairman -1
Report of the Nominations Personnel Independent Non-Executive Directors - 1
Committee is given on page 293 * Succession Planning Non-Executive Directors -1

Effectiveness of the Board and its
Committees
Code of Ethics

Remuneration Committee .
Report of the Remuneration
Committee is given on page 294

Remuneration Policy for Group

with particular reference to Key
Management Personnel

Goals and targets for Key Management
Personnel

Performance Evaluation

HR Policy

Organisation Structure

Independent Non-Executive Directors -3
Non-Executive Directors -1

Related Party Transaction Review -
Committee .
Committee Report of the RPTRC is
given on page 296

Related Party Transaction Policy
Disclosure of Related Party
Transactions

Independent Non-Executive Directors - 2
Executive Director -1




68 Hayleys PLC Annual Report 2021/22

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Role of Management

The Group Management Committee
is pivotal to the management of the
Group and is the apex management
committee of the Group. It is chaired
by the Chairman/Chief Executive

of the Board and comprises the
Executive Directors of the Group,

the Chief Financial Officer, the Head
of Human Resources Officer and 9
Sector Heads. Their profiles are set
out on pages 54 to 57 of the report.
This committee meets once a week at
present to conduct a detailed review
of the businesses of the Group and
makes recommendations to the Board
accordingly. The minutes of the Group
Management Committee are made
available to the Board as part of the
information pack.

4 N\

BOARD EVALUATION CRITERIA

« Strategies developed and
implemented

* Board image

¢ Compliance with laws and
regulations

* Quality of participation at
meetings

» Effectiveness of systems and
processes

G J

The HaySmart Committee appointed
with the onset of the pandemic

also comprises the same members
although the agenda is different. The
HaySmart Committee meetings started
out as daily meetings at the beginning
of the pandemic but have now reduced
to once a week as urgent issues were
addressed and performance was
stabilised. The task force continues

to be in place due to the volatility

and uncertainty of the operating
environment. Consequently, the

GMC meets four times a month and
more frequently as may be required,
ensuring that they are updated on
developments that affect the business
of the Group which has provided early

warnings of potential issues, facilitating
timely responses. It has also facilitated
synergies within the Group as sectors
were able to assist each other using
their expertise across a diverse sector.

Board Evaluation

The Chairman and Remuneration
Committee are responsible for
evaluating the performance of the
Executive Directors and Committees
through an annual self-evaluation of
its own performance. The responses
are submitted to the Chairman for
discussion at a Board Meeting. Board
evaluation criteria are given in the
adjacent box.

( 1\

COMMITTEES

Dipped Products PLC

Haycarb PLC

Hayleys Leisure PLC

The Kingsbury PLC

Kelani valley Plantations PLC

Hayleys Fibre PLC

Unisyst Engineering PLC

Alumex PLC

Talawakelle Tea Estates PLC

Hayleys Fabric PLC

Singer Finance (Lanka) PLC

Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC

Hayleys Consumer Products Limited

Hayleys Aventura Limited

Hayleys Agro Products Limited

Hayleys Advantis Limited

Fentons Limited

CONTROL ENVIRONMENT
Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for the
Group’s internal control and its
effectiveness. Internal control is
established with emphasis placed

on safeguarding assets, ensuring
availability of accurate and timely
information and imposing greater
discipline on decision making. It
covers all controls, including financial,
operational and compliance and risk
management. However, any system
can ensure only reasonable, and not
absolute, assurance that errors and
irregularities are prevented or detected
within a reasonable time.

Internal Audit

The Group’s Management Audit &
System Review Department (MA

& SRD) plays a significant role

in assessing the effectiveness of
controls and strengthening them
and establishing new controls where
necessary. The MA & SRD’s reports
are made available to the Chairman
& Chief Executive and the Chairman
of the Audit Committee. The Group’s
Management Audit & System Review
Department is responsible for internal
audit function. The Group also
obtains the services of independent
professional accounting firms other
than the statutory auditors to carry
out internal audits and reviews to
supplement the work done by the
MA & SRD. The Board has reviewed
the effectiveness of the system of
financial controls for the period up
to the date of signing the accounts.
There is a direct channel between the
Head of MA&SRD and the Chairman
of the Audit Committee without

the interference of any Directors or
Executives.

Audit Committee

The Board has established an Audit
Committee which has oversight
responsibility for considering how they
should select and apply accounting
policies, financial reporting and internal
control principles and maintaining

an appropriate relationship with the
external auditors. The composition of
the Audit Committee is as follows:

e Mr. MY.A. Perera - Chairman,
Independent Non-Executive
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e Dr. H. Cabral. PC - Independent
Non-Executive

e Mr. M.H. Jamaldeen - Independent
Non-Executive

«  Mr. KD.G.Gunaratne - Independent
Non-Executive

Hayleys Group Services (Pvt) Ltd,
serves as its Secretary. The Chairman
and Chief Executive, Group CFO,
General Manager-Finance and Head
of MA & SRD are invited to attend
meetings, and other Executive
Directors attend meetings as required.
The input of the statutory auditors is
obtained where necessary.

The Audit Committee reviews the
scope and results of the audit and its
effectiveness, and the independence
and objectivity of the auditors. They
also review the nature and extent

of non-audit services provided by

the auditors to ensure that auditors
are able to maintain objectivity and
independence. The Terms of Reference
of the Audit Committee have been
approved by the Board. This addresses
the purpose of the Committee, its
duties and responsibilities including
the scope and functions of the
Committee which are summarised in
the Audit Committee Report on page
297 which also provides the names of
the members of the Audit Committee.

Independence of the Auditors is
disclosed in page 298 under the
section on the “External Audits” in the
“Audit Committee Report” on pages
297 to 298 of this Report

The Audit Committee reviews internal
control issues and risk management
measures identified by MA & SRD
and evaluate the adequacy and
effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems including
financial reporting.

The Audit Committee of Hayleys
PLC maintains contact with audit
committees of the subsidiaries

through the annual Audit Committee
Forum which brings together all Audit
Committee members of subsidiaries
to discuss emerging concerns, trends
and potential areas for improvement.
The Audit Committee chairs of the
subsidiaries are also encouraged

to escalate matters to the parent
company Audit Committee chair
where deemed appropriate.

In FY 2021/22, the Audit Committee
increased focus on risk management
which moved up the agenda as

the uncertainty in the operating
environment increased during the year.
As a result, scrutiny of inventories,
receivables, cyber risk and working
capital management increased to build
resilience of the respective entities.
MA&SRD was required to assess
inventories and receivables to identify
potential areas of concern while cyber
security controls were strengthened
with assistance external consultants.
All sector audit committees were also
required to followed suit. Risk matrices
were reviewed with increased rigour
and expanded to include impacts

from operational aspects such as
supply chain management, financial
risk exposures and other operational
matters. Financial reporting processes
continued to improve with the
implementation of the SAP Business
Planing Consolidation module,
strengthening accuracy and timeliness
of financial reporting.

Risk Governance

A separate report on Risk Management
on pages 105 to 118 provides insightful
information on the Group’s governance
of risk.

Compliance

The Group’s policy framework
facilitates compliance with regulatory
requirements and voluntarily adopted
standards of best practice and which
are verified by MA & SRD. The Group
also has a whistle-blowing policy in
place which is clearly communicated
to all employees and the Audit
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Committee and Board receive
information in this regard. There were
no whistles blown during the year
under review.

External Audit

The Audit Committee reviews

the independence, the skills and
experience and the work of the
external auditors annually and
recommends appointment accordingly
to the Board. The Audit Committee
also monitors non-audit work done by
the external auditors to ensure their
independence. The Audit Committee
conducts an in-camera meeting with
the external auditors on completion
of the audit to identify any areas of
concern. The Report of the Board of
Directors provides the nature of non-
audit work carried out by the external
auditors for the entire Group together
with the amounts paid for services.
Further details of work undertaken by
the Audit Committee are set out in the
Report on the Audit Committee on
pages 297 to 298.

UPHOLDING RIGHTS OF
SHAREHOLDERS

The Board has well established
procedures in place to ensure

fair treatment of all shareholders.
Quarterly Financial Statements with
an accompanying review, the Annual
Report, timely announcements

to the Colombo Stock Exchange

of price sensitive information

and press releases ensure that all
shareholders have access to price
sensitive information. The Annual
General Meeting is the main forum for
engaging with shareholders and the
Group has a history of well attended
shareholder meetings. Further, a
track record of setting benchmarks
for corporate reporting affirms the
Group’s commitment to disclosure and
transparency. Assurance on financial
statements, sustainability information
and compliance with the Integrated
Reporting Framework supports the
reliability of the information contained
in the Annual Report which provides
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comprehensive information on relevant
matters to the shareholders. The
Reports and other information are
available on the Company’s website
and price sensitive information is

also available on the Colombo Stock
Exchange website.

Ownership & Control
Information on the twenty largest
shareholders is given on page 437.

Rights of Minority Shareholders
Individual investors are encouraged

to carry out adequate analysis or

seek independent advice in investing
or divesting decisions. They are also
encouraged to participate in General
Meetings of companies and exercise
their voting rights. Information is
disseminated to all shareholders in a
timely manner. Any information that
the Board considered as price sensitive
is disseminated to the shareholders by
way of announcements to the CSE and
press releases by either the Chairman
and Chief Executive or the Company
Secretaries as appropriate.

There are meetings with shareholders
(based on their requests) on matters
which are relevant and of concern to
the general membership. Voting of the
shareholders is critical in carrying out a
resolution at the AGM

Remuneration

The Remuneration Committee
determines the remuneration of the
Chairman/Chief Executive and the
Executive Directors and the Group
Management Committee (GMC)
members set guidelines for the
remuneration of the management
staff within the Group. The Report

and summarised terms of reference

of the Remuneration Committee
Report are set out on page 294. The
Remuneration Committee comprises
the following Non- Executive Directors
and the Chairman of this Committee is
appointed by the Board.

* Dr. H. Cabral, PC - Chairman,
Independent Non-Executive

Mr. K.D.D. Perera - Non-Executive

Mr. MY.A. Perera - Independent Non
Executive

«  Mr. M.H. Jamaldeen - Independent
Non-Executive

The Board as a whole determines the
remuneration of the NED’s who receive
a fee for being a Director of the Board
and additional fee for being a member
of a Committee. They do not receive
any performance related/ incentive
payments. Remuneration Committee
consults the Chairman about its
proposal relating to the remuneration
of other Executive Directors and have
access to professional advice from
within and outside Hayleys PLC, in
discharging their responsibilities. No
Director is involved in deciding his own
remuneration.

More recently, some sector holding
companies which are Groups in their
own right, have determined the need
to establish their own Remuneration
Committees to address the specific
concerns within the industry in which
it operates. These Remuneration
Committees liaise with the Hayleys
PLC Remuneration Committee on a
needs basis which is facilitated by the
Company Secretary, the respective
CEO and Corporate HR department.

( 1\

SUBSIDIARY REMUNERATION
COMMITTEES

Hayleys Fabric PLC

Singer Finance (Lanka) PLC
Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC

Level & Make Up of Remuneration
The Remuneration Committee
determines the combination of
remuneration needed to attract, retain
and motivate Executive Directors

and the GMC members of the quality
required to achieve corporate goals.
The Remuneration Committee ensures
that the remuneration of executives

of each level of management is
competitive and in line with their
performance. Surveys are conducted
as and when necessary to ensure that
the remuneration is competitive with
those of comparative companies. The
Remuneration Committee reviews data
concerning executive pay among the
Group Companies.

A performance based incentive has
been determined by the Remuneration
Committee to ensure that the total
earnings of the executives are aligned
with the achievement of objectives
and budgets of the Group companies.
Presently the Group does not have an
Executive Share Option Schemes. The
Remuneration Committee follows the
provisions set out in Schedule D of
the Code as required. No special early
termination clauses are included in the
contract of employment contract of
Executive Directors that would entitle
them to extra compensation. However,
any such compensation would be
determined by the Board of Directors.

Remuneration for Non-Executive
Directors reflect the time commitment
and responsibilities of their role, taking
into consideration market practices.
Non-Executive Directors are not
included in share options as there is no
scheme in existence.

The Report of the Remuneration
Committee is set out on page 294
which includes a statement on
Remuneration Policy. Please refer
page 343 for the total Directors’
remuneration.
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Investor Relations

The Chairman ensures the views of
the shareholders are communicated
to the Board as a whole. Discussions
are held with Institutional Investors,
involving the Chairman, and other
Executive Directors where necessary.
This process is supported by the
Strategic Business Development
Unit and the Corporate Affairs Unit.
During these meetings, the Directors
ensure protection of price sensitive
information that has not been

made available to the company’s
shareholders. The Institutional
Investors are encouraged to give
due weight to all relevant matters
relating to the Board structure and
composition.

Related Party Transactions

The Related Party Transactions Review
Committee of the Company has
oversight responsibility for related
party transactions of the Company
and its Subsidiaries. The Committee
composition is given on page 296 and
comprises two Independent Non-
Executive Directors and one Executive
Director. Additionally, the Chairman

of the Committee is an Independent
Non- Executive Director appointed by
the Board. Its operations comply with
the requirements of the CSE Listing
Rules and LKAS 24. The committee
has a written Terms of Reference and
procedures set in place to facilitate
discharge of their duties

The Company Secretaries maintain a
permanent record of such statement,
submissions, approvals and minutes.
The Committee ensures that the
Board is updated on the activities

of the committee and also review
and recommend the related party
disclosures to be included in the
Annual Report of the Company.

Some of the Companies of the Hayleys
Group have also established their own
Related Party Transaction Committees
to ensure that these are given due
attention considering the complexity
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DUTIES OF THE RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS REVIEW COMMITTEE
a. Establishing a procedure for documenting related parties

b. Obtaining a statement of related party interest on a quarterly basis, in
the event of change in status and prior to entering in to any transaction
that comes within the definition of a related party transaction

c. Provision of a list of related parties to Key Management Personnel
related to their areas of responsibility

d. Process for KMPs to capture and report any related party transaction

e. A procedure to identify and Directors to report recurrent and non-
recurrent related party transactions and obtain Board or shareholder
approvals as required by CSE listing Rules

f. Guideline and procedure to facilitate KMP dealings with recurrent
related party transactions

g. A procedure and definition of disclosures that are required to be
made on an annual basis, those requiring immediate disclosure,
those requiring shareholder approval and those requiring shareholder
approval by special resolution at an extra- ordinary general meeting

h. A process to identify related party transactions requiring immediate
disclosure as per CSE Listing Rules and to ensure that disclosures are in
accordance with the same

g J

and scale of operations. These Committees communicate with the Hayleys PLC
Related Party Transactions Review Committee on a needs basis on matters of
mutual concern.

SUBSIDIARY RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS REVIEW COMMITTEE

Singer Finance (Lanka) PLC

Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC

GOVERNANCE OF STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Stakeholder engagement is a pre-requisite for sound corporate governance

and the Group has a sound stakeholder engagement framework which is set

out on pages 84 to 87 of this report. The Board has also put in place grievance
mechanisms for workers and affected communities to raise their concerns without
fear of reprisal. These, and concerns of regulators are regular items on the Board
agenda even if there is a nil report to ensure that such matters are brought to the
attention of the respective Boards and escalated to the Group Audit Committee.

DIGITAL GOVERNANCE

Hayleys PLC and its subsidiaries are heavily dependent on Information Technology
for its business needs and have invested in putting in place the necessary
infrastructure, organisation structures, policies and processes for effective
governance over its digital infrastructure, systems and information assets. The
Board bears ultimate responsibility for setting this in place and is assisted by the
Audit Committee in this regard.
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THREE LINES OF DEFENCE MODEL
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The above is reinforced by the IT governance structures at sector level. Group Information Security Committee was formed
representing all Sectors to be aligned with Hayleys Information Security Framework. Sector Information Security Officers are
the conduit for communicating Group wide IT policies and nurturing a culture of IT risk awareness at sector level.

The Group wide IT policies are as follows:

Ve

Hayleys IT Security Policy

* Information Security Policy

* Information Security Organisation Policy

* Human Resources Security Policy

« Asset Management Policy

» Access Control Policy

» Cryptography Policy

» Physical and Environmental Security Policy

» Operations Security Management Policy

« Communications Security Management
Policy

* System Acquisition, Development and
Maintenance Policy

* Supplier Relationships Management Policy

* Incident Management Policy

« Information Security aspects of Business
Continuity Management Policy

* Information Security Compliance Policy

HAYLEYS
Acceptable IT Use Policy

* Acceptable IT Use

* Password Protection Standards

* Email Usage Internet Usage

* Monitoring

* VPN Acceptable Use

* Removable Media Acceptable Use
* Work From Home Guidelines

Group Access Policy

* Guidelines for web hosting
* Guidelines for secure web
development
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Hayleys Information Security Framework
IT Governance Strengthening Cybersecurity
In order to ensure IT investments generates business Below steps are taken to Strengthen Cybersecurity in the
values and to mitigate IT risks, Group IT Governance focus = group
on below four pillars : : :
P « Continuous improvements on the effectiveness of
* Strategic Alignment with Businesses current security measures.
*  Value Delivery * |nvested in scalable, cutting edge network infrastructure.
¢ Risk Management * Upgrade IT security protocols.
* Resource Management « Conducting cybersecurity awareness and phishing email
simulations.
. J

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF BEST PRACTICE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ISSUED BY THE INSTITUTE OF
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS OF SRI LANKA

Code Ref.

A. DIRECTORS

Al An effective Board
should direct, lead and
control the Company

A1 Regular meetings,
structure and process of
submitting information

Compliance and Implementation

The Board meets on a monthly basis and attendance at meetings is
given on page 67. Board packs are circulated one week prior to the
Board meeting and typically include the following information:

Financial and operational information including progress on agreed
Key Performance Indicators and information on the external operating
environment;

Financial statements for the relevant quarter and year to date
together with comparatives for the corresponding period of the
previous financial year and budgets;

Forecast performance for the financial year

A description of key risks including an assessment of their impact and
likelihood of occurrence, assessment of the previous quarter, how the
risks are managed and those accountable for monitoring or managing
risk;

Operational and financial compliance statements confirming
regulatory compliance and other matters considered necessary in
accordance with policies of the Group and Board.

These statements include information regarding breaches of internal
controls or fraud detected during the period together with any action
taken or confirm the absence thereof;

Report on number of calls to whistle blowing line or a confirmation
that there were no calls recorded

Information on human resources and capital expenditure

Share trading of the Company and related party transactions by key
management personnel

Documents to which the Company seal has been affixed

Resolutions on other matters referred to the Board

Compliance

v

Al2 Role & Responsibilities
of the Board

The Role and Responsibilities of the Board are inset on page 66 and
encompass those set out in the Code.
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Code Ref.

Al13 Actin Accordance with
laws

Compliance and Implementation

The Board has set in place a framework of policies set out on page 66 to
xX, procedures and a risk management framework to ensure compliance
with relevant laws, and international best practices with regards to the
operations of the Group. Directors have the power to obtain independent
professional advice as deemed necessary which is co-ordinated by the
Group Legal Department or Group Finance, as and when it is necessary.

Compliance

v

Al4 Access to advice
and services of Company
Secretary

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretarial function provided by Hayleys Group Service (Pvt) Ltd., who
are responsible for ensuring follow up of Board procedures, compliance
with rules and regulations, directions and statutes, keeping and
maintaining minutes and relevant records of the Group.

Hayleys PLC has obtained insurance cover for the Board of Directors and
key management personnel.

A5 Independent judgement

Directors bring independent judgment to bearing on decisions taken

by the Board on issues of strategy, performance, resources and

business conduct. Composition of the Board ensures that there is a
sufficient balance of power on the Board and that all Directors have the
opportunity to contribute. Many of the Board members are independent
professionals who are required to conform to professional codes of
conduct which require the exercise of independent judgement in
discharge of their duties.

A1.6 Dedicate adequate time
and effort to matters of the
Board and the Company

Dates of regular Board meetings and Board Sub-Committee meetings are
scheduled well in advance and the relevant papers are circulated a week
prior to the meeting giving sufficient time for review. There is provision to
circulate papers closer to the meeting on an exceptional basis.

It is estimated that Non-Executive Directors dedicate not less than 12
days per annum for the affairs of the Group and those Directors who are
also on Audit Committee dedicate a further 4 days for the affairs of the
Group

In addition they are available for any adhoc meeting or discussion at
anytime

A7 Calls for resolutions

Any Director can call for a resolution to be presented to the Board if
deemed necessary.

A1.8 Board induction and
Training

Directors recognise the need for continuous training and expansion of
their knowledge and skills to effectively discharge their duties. They are
encouraged to attend sessions of the Sri Lanka Institute of Directors
and other corporate forums on relevant matters. As independent
professionals, many of the Directors also conform to Continuing
Professional Development requirements of their respective professional
organisations. Board members are also given insights in to regulatory
changes that may impact the industry at Board meetings.

Audit Committee members receive updates on regulatory changes
relating to matters entrusted to the Committee on a semi-annual basis
to ensure that they are updated on regulatory requirements impacting
reporting and risk management processes. They are also given insights
in to organisation wide initiatives to strengthen internal controls, risk
management and financial reporting processes at the same meetings.
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Code Ref.

A.2 Chairman & Chief
Executive Officer

Compliance and Implementation

Functions of Chairman and Chief Executive are vested in one person as
the Board is of the opinion that it is the most appropriate arrangement
for Hayleys PLC considering the diversity and size of the Group. The
Board has also appointed Mr. K.D.D. Perera as Co-Chairman and Dr

H Cabral, PC, who is a Non-Executive Director functions as Senior
Independent Director to facilitate Board balance.

75

Compliance

v

A.3. Chairman’s role in
preserving good corporate
governance

See Role of Chairman in Corporate Governance Report.

A.3.1 Conduct of Board
Meetings

The Chairman ensures the following:

a. Development of an appropriate agenda for Board meetings with the
Company Secretaries taking into consideration recommendations
of the Directors, Best Practices in Corporate Governance, regulatory
and other compliance requirements, and business needs of the
company including performance review, resource allocation and risk
management

b. Sufficiency of information in Board packs and timely availability of the
same

c. Induction programmes for newly appointed Directors to acquaint
them with their duties and responsibilities and Corporate Governance
structure of the Group

d. Effective participation of Executive and Non-Executive Directors,

e. Directors are encouraged to seek additional information necessary
to engage in discussion of agenda items and to request inclusion of
matters of concern on the agenda

f. A Sufficient balance of power between Executive and Non-Executive
Directors

g. Views of Directors are obtained and the minutes reflect the
deliberations of the Board

h. Board’s control of the affairs of the Company and its obligations to
shareholders and stakeholders

A.4 Availability of financial
acumen

Refer Principle A.4. in Corporate Governance Report.

v

A.5 Board Balance

A.5.1 Majority of Non-
Executive Directors

There are only five Non-Executive Directors and hence, Executive
Directors form the majority of the Board. The Board is reviewing this
requirement at present with a view to compliance with the same.

The specialist
skills required

for managing

the diverse
interests of the
Group requires a
sufficient number
of Executive
Directors

A.5.2 If only 3 NEDs, they
should be independent

Of the 5 NEDs, 4 are independent of any material business relationships
subject to the disclosure made on pages 64 to 65.

v
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Code Ref.

A.5.3 Independence of
Directors

Compliance and Implementation

Independent Directors are independent of management and free of
business dealings that may be perceived to materially interfere with the
exercise of their unfettered and independent judgement.

The Chairman holds a meeting at least once a year with only the NEDs
without the presence of the Executive Directors. Directors’ concerns
regarding matters which are not resolved unanimously are recorded in
the minutes.

Compliance

v

A.5.4 Annual declaration by v

Directors The Board determines the independence of Directors on an annual basis
based on annual declarations submitted by the Directors and other

A.5.5 Annual determination information based on the requirements of the Code as set out in A.5.5.

of independence

A.5.6 Alternate Directors Ms. A.A.K. Amarasinghe act as an alternate Director to Mr.K.D.D.Perera in /
line with the Articles of Association of the Company.

A57 & A.5.8 Senior Dr. H. Cabral PC has been appointed as Senior Independent Director as v

Independent Directors disclosed in Al in the Corporate Governance Report. The role has been
expanded to 2 meetings a year with NEDs and 1 meeting with Executive
Directors on governance matters and communicating matters discussed
to the Chairman.

A.5.9 Annual In camera The Chairman holds a meeting with only Non-Executive Directors at least

meeting with NED once a year.

A.5.10 Recording of dissent Directors’ concerns on matters which have not been resolved v

in minutes unanimously are recorded in the Board minutes and Directors have the
opportunity to review minutes

A.6. Supply of Information The Chairman ensures that all Directors are briefed on issues arising at v

Board Meetings by requiring management to provide comprehensive
information including both guantitative and qualitative information for
the monthly Board meetings 7 days prior to the Board/Sub-Committee
meetings. The Directors have free and open access to Management at

all levels to obtain further information or clarify any concerns they may
have. They also have the right to seek independent professional advice at
the Company’s expense and copies of advice obtained in this manner are
circulated to other Directors who request it. Any Director who does not
attend a meeting is updated on proceedings prior to the next meeting
through:

«  Formally documented minutes of discussions.
¢ By clarifying matters from the Board Secretary.

¢ Separate discussions at start of meeting regarding matters arising for
the previous meeting.

« Archived minutes and Board papers accessible electronically at the
convenience of the Directors.

Directors also have an open invitation to attend the meetings of the
Management Committees and can interact with Senior Management
after Board meetings. Directors are provided with monthly reports on
performance, minutes of review meetings and such other reports and
documents as necessary. Minutes of meetings are circulated with the
Board packs for the next monthly meeting within the agreed time.
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Code Ref. Compliance and Implementation Compliance
A.7. Appointments to the Refer Nomination, Appointment & Succession in Corporate Governance ‘/
Board & reelection Report on page 293
A.8 Directors to submit
themselves for re-election
A.9 Appraisal of Board & The Chairman and Remuneration Committee are responsible for v
Committee Performance evaluating the performance of the Executive Directors and Committees
through an annual self-evaluation of its own performance. The responses
are submitted to the Chairman for discussion at a Board Meeting.
A0 Annual Report e v
fco dlsclo§e specncleld Reference
information regarding .
dirccionrs Profiles of Board members 48 - 53
Membership of sub-committees and attendance at 67
Board and Subcommittee meetings
Remuneration paid to Directors 343
Related party transaction and other business interests 413 - 416
Al Appraisal of the CEO Prior to the commencement of each financial year, the Board in v
Refer consultation with the Chief Executive, set reasonable financial and non
financial targets which are in line with short, medium and long-term
objectives of Hayleys, achievement of which should be ensured by
the Chief Executive. A monthly performance evaluation is performed
at which actual performance is compared to the budget. The Chief
Executive is responsible to provide the Board with explanations for any
adverse variances together with actions to be taken.
Directors’ Remuneration
B.1. Establish process Refer Remuneration Committee Report on page 294 v
for developing policy on
executive and director
remuneration.
B.2. Level & Make Up of Refer Level & Make Up of Remuneration Committee Report on page 294
Remuneration
B.3 Disclosure of The Report of the Remuneration Committee on page 294 provides a v
remuneration statement on Remuneration Policy. The total for Directors’ Remuneration
is given on page 344
Relations with Shareholders
C.. Constructive use of v
the AGM & Other General
Meetings Refer upholding rights of shareholders on pages 84 to 87
C.2. Communication with
shareholders
C.3. Disclosure of major Transactions, if any, which materially affect the net asset base of Hayleys

transactions

PLC, will be disclosed in the Quarterly / Annual Financial Statements.
During the year, there were no major transactions as defined by Section
185 of the Companies Act No O7 of 2007 which materially affect the
asset base of Hayleys PLC or consolidated Group asset base
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Code Ref. Compliance and Implementation Compliance

Accountability & Audit

D1 Accountability & audit The Board recognises its responsibility to present a balanced v
and understandable assessment of the Group’s financial position,
performance and prospects in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act No 07 of 2007. The Financial Statements included in this
Annual Report are prepared and presented in accordance with Sri Lanka
Accounting Standards. The Annual Report also conforms to the Universal
standard on Sustainability Reporting published by the Global Reporting
Initiative and the Integrated Reporting Framework published by the
International Integrated Reporting Council.

Hayleys PLC has complied with the reporting requirements prescribed by
the Colombo Stock Exchange.

The following specialised information requirements are also included in
this Annual Report:

¢ The Business model - on pages 82 to 83

¢« Operating environment - on pages 88 to 89.

*«  Opportunities & Threats - on pages 106 to 118.
¢ Risk Management - on pages 106 to 118.

« Stakeholder relationships on pages 84 to 87.

¢ The Capital Report on pages 232 to 283

*«  The Annual Report of the Board of Directors on the Affairs of the
Company given on pages 84 to 290 cover all areas of this section.

¢« The “Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities” is given on page 295.
¢ The Directors’ Statement on Internal Controls is given on page 292.

*«  The “Independent Auditors’ Report “on pages 300 to 303 For the
Auditor’s responsibility.

¢ The Financial Capital Review, the Value Creation Report on pages 232
to 239 and 82 to 83.

There has been no serious loss of capital to convene an EGM in terms of
the Companies Act.

D.2. Risk Management & Refer Control Environment on pages 106 to 118 v
Internal Control

D.3. Audit Committee Refer Audit Committee on page 297 to 298 v
D.4 Related Party Refer Related Party Transaction on page 296 v
Transactions Review

Committee

D.5. Code of Ethics Refer the Hayleys Way on page 64 v
D.5 Corporate Governance The Corporate Governance Report from page 58 to 80 and this Annex /
Disclosures I: Compliance with the Code of Best Practice on Corporate Governance

complies with the requirement to disclose the extent of compliance
with the Code of Best Practice on Corporate Governance as specified in
Principle D5.

E. Institutional Investors and  Please refer Investor Relations on page 239 v
Other Investors
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Code Ref. Compliance and Implementation Compliance
E.1 & F Encourage voting at Shareholders are encouraged to participate at the AGM and vote on v
AGM matters set before them and Hayleys PLC has a track record of a high
level of participation at its Annual General Meetings. All shareholders are
encouraged to participate and vote at the same.
E.2 Evaluation of All shareholders are provided sufficient information to facilitate and v
Governance Disclosures encourage effective shareholder participation including governance
matters.
Internet of Things & Cybersecurity
G ldentify connectivity and  This function was complied with by the Group Head of IT for the year v
related cyber risks under review.
G.2 Appoint a CISO A Group Information Security Deputy General Manager was appointed v
and allocate budget to and allocated a budget for cybersecurity
implement a cybersecurity
policy
G.3 Include cyber security in It is a regular agenda item on the Board agenda
Board agenda
G.4 Obtain periodic A firm of external consultants were engaged to review the effectiveness v
assurance to review of the Group’s cybersecurity risk management during the year.
effectiveness of
cybersecurity risk
management
G.5 Disclosures in Annual Please refer Digital Governance on page xx v
Report
Environment, Society & Governance
H Sustainability Reporting Sustainability principles are embedded in our business operations and v

considered in formulating our business strategy and reported in a holistic
manner throughout this report. Information required by the Code is
located as follows:

¢ Principle 1 - Reporting of Economic Sustainability on page 28

¢ Principle 2 - Reporting on the Environment on pages 271 to 283 of the
Capital Management Report

¢ Principle 3 - Reporting on Labour Practices on pages 242 to 253 of
the Capital Management Report.

¢ Principle 4 - Reporting on Society on pages 254 to 260 of the Capital
Management Report.

¢ Principle 5 - Reporting on Product Responsibility on pages 254 to
260 of the Capital Management Report.

e Principle 6 - Reporting on Stakeholder identification, engagement and
effective communication on pages 84 to 87.

e Principle 7 - Sustainable reporting to be formalised as part of the
reporting process and to take place regularly (About this Report)
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COMPLIANCE WITH CSE CONTINUING LISTING RULES

CSE Rule
Reference

Corporate Governance Principles

Compliance

Status

Hayleys’ Extent of Adoption

710.1(a) Non-Executive Directors Compliant Five out of eleven Directors are NEDs
710.2(a) Independent Directors Compliant Four out of Five Non-Executive Directors are Independent
710.2(b) Independent Directors Compliant All NEDs have submitted their confirmations on
Independence as per the criteria set by Hayleys PLC, which
is in with the regulatory requirements.
710.3(a) Disclosure relating to Directors Compliant The Board assessed the independence declared by
the Directors and determined the Directors who are
independent and disclosed same in item on pages 64 to 65.
710.3(b) Disclosure relating to Directors Compliant The Board has determined that all Non-Executive
Directors except for Mr. K.D.D Perera satisfy the criteria for
“independence” set out in the Listing Rules.
710.3(c) Disclosure relating to Directors Compliant Please refer pages 48 to 53 for the brief resume of each
Director.
710.3(d) Disclosure relating to Directors Compliant Disclosed the appointments of new Directors to the
Colombo Stock Exchange to be disclosed to the public.
Brief resumes of the Directors appointed during the year
have been provided to the Colombo Stock Exchange.
710.5 (a) Composition of Remuneration Compliant Please refer the Remuneration Committee Report on page
Committee 294 and Principles B1 to B3 on page 77 of this Corporate
Governance Report.
710.5(b) Functions of Remuneration Compliant
Committee ) ) ) o ]
: : : The remuneration paid to Directors is given in note 10 to the
710.5(c) D|scl‘osure in the Armgal Report Compliant financial statements on page 343.
relating to Remuneration
Committee
710.6(a) Composition of Audit Committee Compliant
7O AU Coniitiee |uneitions Coimellie: Refer Audit Committee Report on pages 297 to 298.
710.6 (c) Disclosure in the Annual Report Compliant
relating to Audit Committee
9.21& 9.2.3 Related Party Transactions Review Compliant The Functions of the Committee are stated in the Report
Committee of the Related Party Transaction Review Committee in
page 296.
922 Composition Compliant Please refer the Report of the Related Party Transaction
Review Committee in page 296.
924 Related Party Transactions Review Compliant Met 04 times during the Financial year 2021/22.
Committee Meetings
9.31 Immediate Disclosures Compliant Please refer Note 38 of the Notes to the Accounts on pages
413 to 416.
9.3.2(a) &  Disclosure of Non-Recurrent Compliant Please refer Note 38 of the Notes to the Accounts on pages
(b) and Recurrent Related Party 413 to 416.
Transactions
9.3.2(C) The Report by the Related Party Compliant Please refer the Report of the Related Party Transaction
Transaction Review Committee Review Committee on page 296.
9.3.2(d) A Declaration by the Board of Compliant Please refer the Annual Report of Board of Directors for an

Directors

affirmative statement of compliance of the Board on pages
284 to 290.
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VALUE CREATION MODEL

CAPITAL INPUTS

Financial Copital 52

VISION:
To be Sri Lanka’s corporate inspiration at all times

VALUES:
Shareholders’ funds: Honesty and Integrity, Accountability
Rs. 105.29 bn Yes, we CAN, Love for Humanity, Enduring Customer Value,
Debt: Rs. 171.93 bn Yes, we will WIN! Social Responsibility as a good corporate citizen, Innovation
Pages 234 to239 @
PROCUREMENT MANUFACTURED NURTURING OUR ENRICHING THE
Engage with an A diversified portfolio of Holistic approach to Identification of our
. extensive network of value-added products people management to impacts and measures
MaDUfaCtu_rmg plants supply chain partners catering to households, build mutually beneficial to preserve and enrich
05 countries in procuring a range businesses and relationships the environment
) of agricultural and governments Services
Property, plant and equipment non-agricultural input
including buildings, machinery & materials

equipment and vessels:
Rs. 11119 bn Pages 240 to 243 (@)

RESEARCH & MARKETING AND MANAGING OUR MANAGING SOCIAL
DEVELOPMENT DISTRIBUTION PHYSICAL AND DIGITAL IMPACTS
Product and process Distribute our products imisi Assessment and
32,840 employees innovation through through a network of %?;:gs\'m?aggiifjrleapg effectively manage
Skills, value and industry insights ongoing research and global partners enhance stakeholder social impacts, drive
o development relationships and initiatives to enhance
Organisational culture- Hayleys Way strengthen processes social value creation

Pages 244 to 253 @ D

@ @ ®

()
Q)

. . Eco Solutions Hand Purification Textiles Construction Plantations
Customer relationships: Protection Materials
>1.7 mn /\
Supplier relationships: @ . \g@/
15,392 suppliers Agriculture Consumer & Leisure Industry Inputs,  Transportation Others
Retail Power & Energy & Logistics

Pages 254 to 260 @

GROUP STRATEGIC PRIORITIES
_ ¥ Profitable ‘ Innovation and ‘ Value chain & ‘ Customer

Growth Digitalisation Community Focus
Our brand Development
Innovation capabilities
Systems, processes and standards
. . . RISKS & OPPORTUNITIES
Organisational capital

Pages 262 to 269 (&) ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL ISSUES ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES
GEOPOLITICAL ISSUES

Climate
Action

Inspired &
Dedicated Team

* Macro-economic « Skilled labour * Implications of climate
* Exchange rate dynamics . » Water scarcity

Population growth and

Land extent: 418.26 acres  Interest rate trends urbanisation » Degradation of natural
Water use: 6.59 m*mn + Inflation  Agricultural supply chains resources
Energy consumption: 5.06 mn GJ + Disposable income and livelihoods * Increasing energy costs
« Policy direction and stability ~ * Changes in consumer
behaviour
Pages 270 to 283 @ + Regulatory developments
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OUTPUTS

Fiber based products

\
Protective hand-ware

Q

Activated carbon

®

Fabrics

@

Aluminium profiles

Q

Tea, Rubber and value added Tea

©

Agricultural products

.

Consumer durables

®

Hotels and Resorts

@

Industry inputs

v

|
Transportation and Logistics services

|
MEP, Solar, BPO and Shared services

OUTCOME

Financial Capital

B

Sustainable shareholder returns commensurate with the risk undertaken

Profit After Tax: Return on equity: Dividends:
+Rs. 28.10 bn 27% Rs. 3.00 bn

Pages 234 to239 @
Manufactured Capital -

Strengthened manufacturing capabilities, technology and productivity

Capital expenditure: Asset turnover ratio:

+Rs. 14.04 bn 84%
Pages 240 to 243 @

™
L]

Human Capital

Attractive rewards and opportunities for skill and career development in a conducive
work, dynamic and inclusive environment

Payments to employees: Investment in training:

+Rs. 33.79 bn +Rs. 69 mn
Pages 244 to 253 @

Intellectual Capital

. J
Strengthen our organisational capital through honing our unigue skills and
capabilities
Investment in R&D: New products Products in the
+Rs. 429 mn launched: +749 pipeline: 160  pages 262 to 269 @)
Social & Relationship Capital “l 2{

Customers: Access to innovative, high-quality and sustainable products
Customer complaints resolved: 99%

Business partners: Opportunities for mutual growth which lead to socio-economic
empowerment

Payments to suppliers: Investment in supplier

+Rs. 237.69 bn development: +Rs. 132.08 bn  Pages 254 to 260 @)

Natural Capital :

Impacts generated through our value-creating activities and holistic measures to
enrich the environment

Renewable Energy
Solid waste generated: Emissions: Generated:

Pages 270 to 283
-23,120 MT -230,053 tCO,e  +185,875 MWh e ° @
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Hayleys understands the need for effective, open and transparent stakeholder engagement mechanisms with its diverse
stakeholders which aims to form and sustain mutually value adding relations. Given the depth and diversity of our
stakeholder relationships, the Group prioritises the stakeholders its stakeholder relationships, based on the those who could
potentially have the most significant impact on our ability to create value.

The Group’s stakeholder review process is set out below:

. Prioritise Based Conduct
i on Nature of Engagement and
Relationship Obtain Feedback m

Vv A j Vv

h I L :I: _|
Hﬂi‘b - u = = u

A % . N\ ~ /N

Stakeholder ".. Determine Method () Review

Mapping of Engagement Feedback

<3

GOVERNANCE OF STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Stakeholder Engagement is a key element within the Governance pillar of the Hayleys Lifecode, which includes specific
policies for employees, suppliers and communities that offer guidelines on the approach to stakeholder engagement. The
Hayleys Lifecode also sets out the engagement measures to adopted under each selected approach as set out below;

( ) * Satisfaction surveys
Consult/ _o «  Meetings/workshops
Collaborate » Stakeholder forums
\_ J *  Projects/ development programmes
4 N * Corporate reporting
»  Press releases Corporate website/social media platforms
Message —0 : :
* Marketing campaigns
\_ ) +  Newsletter/mass e-mail
4 N
+ Online/social media monitoring
Monitor —o
«  Tracking relevant research/news reports
N\ J
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ENGAGEMENT MECHANISMS
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SHAREHOLDERS

CUSTOMERS .

EMPLOYEES

SUPPLIERS & o
BUSINESS PARTNERS

GOVERNMENT .

COMMUNITIES

Annual General Meeting

Quarterly financial results released to the CSE

Investor road shows when required

Ongoing engagement with investment analysts, stockbrokers and media
Corporate website (ongoing)

Press releases through the CSE and media (ongoing)

Customer interaction at contact points (ongoing)

Engagement with marketing teams (ongoing)

Periodic customer satisfaction surveys in certain sectors

Print and electronic media publications as and when required (ongoing)
Digital engagement (ongoing)

Performance appraisals (annual)

Periodic satisfaction surveys

Periodic staff meetings

Quarterly CEO forums

Year-round event calendar including work life balance initiatives, sports activities and
cultural activities; these events were curtailed during the year, given restrictions on
gatherings

Annual award schemes

Chairman’s awards

CSR programmes (ongoing)

Supplier development initiatives (ongoing)
Periodic supplier reviews and assessments
Periodic meetings and written communication

Community engagement initiatives (ongoing)

Ongoing regulatory reporting in certain sectors
Consultations and meetings when required
Announcements to the CSE when required

Represents in various chambers

Meetings with beneficiaries of CSR initiatives and capacity building programmes
(ongoing)

Press releases and other publications (ongoing)
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STAKEHOLDER GROUP STRENGTH OF RELATIONSHIPS

&

%
wh

'.4

SHAREHOLDERS

811 institutional
shareholders and
13,387 retail
shareholders

CUSTOMERS

Our customer base
comprises individuals,
SMES and corporates
in Sri Lanka and across
the world

EMPLOYEES

32,840 employees

SUPPLIERS AND
BUSINESS PARTNERS

Linkages with extensive
network of suppliers
and business partners

GOVERNMENT

We engage with a
number of regulators
through our diverse
business sectors.

COMMUNITIES

We have nurtured
deep-rooted and
sustainable connections
with the communities
we operate in

Strong

27%

Return on Equity

Strong

90%
Average satisfaction
score (across sectors)

Strong

85%

retention rate

Good

63%
increase in supplier
payments

Good

Good

540,573

No. of CSR Beneficiaries

Implications of macro-economic environment on performance and
stability

Business continuity given COVID-19 led disruptions and macro-
economic stress

Strength of corporate governance and risk management practices in
navigating the shifts in the landscape

Contributions towards ESG related matters

Continued availability of products given possible interruptions to
manufacturing and distribution

Increased concerns on affordability given the prevalent inflation and
lower spending power

Responsible and sustainable business practices

New products offerings catering to emerging requirements

Job and financial security given prevalent crisis
Adequacy of remuneration given escalating inflation

Physical and mental well-being and measures to prevent isolation when
working from home

Opportunities for career and skill development

Sustainability of demand given uncertain conditions

Support in obtaining the necessary approval and fuel sources in
facilitating transportation

Continuity of relationships

Transfer of technical knowledge

Foreign currency generation given the country’s severe shortage of US
Dollars

Compliance to all relevant regulations, directions and guidelines

Contribute positively to the economy, society and environment and
support the achievement of macro-economic objectives

Employment creation within communities
CSR initiatives and capacity building programmes

Environmental preservation and minimising environmental impacts
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OUR RESPONSE

As discussed in further detail in the
Portfolio Review Chapter, Sectors
proactively sought to address the near
term risks stemming from the crisis while
continuing to build capabilities for the
future.

The Group launched the Hayleys
Lifecode, a holistic ESG framework
supporting integration of ESG practices
across the organisation

Despite the prevalent conditions, all
sectors ensured continuity of operations
throughout the year, which enabled
customers to access required products
as and when needed. Ongoing focus is
also placed on strengthening customer
proposition through innovation and value
addition

The Group maintained a high level of
engagement with employees across
the organisation, while adopting
comprehensive measures to support
their physical and emotional well-being.

Sectors worked proactively in supporting
the ecosystem of suppliers and business
partners through facilitating required
fuel supplies and increasing visibility over
future demand

The Group maintains a close and
transparent working relationship with
its regulators, to ensure compliance and
obtain clarification on issues if required.

In line with our long-term commitment
towards sustainability we strive to create
value for the communities we operate
in through meaningful and proactive
projects

CAPITALS IMPACTED

asl2gX

The financial performance is a result of
the culmination of all capitals

- 0O

The Sector leveraged its physical and
human infrastructure to ensure continued
service to customers

= ™
d. cen
Employee remuneration, investments

in training and safety have supported
higher satisfaction levels

=
an &
Ongoing investment in supplier

development and other forms of support
in ensuring business continuity

adli®gX

The Group’s value creation process
supports development and socio-
economic empowerment

=

an &

Ongoing investments in community
support and empowerment
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LINK TO LIFECODE

OO @OWEO® @OEO OO ©OOWGO OO

Optimise use of natural inputs

Stronger relationships and communities

Strong governance

Products with low environmental impact
Products that drive community
empowerment

Product responsibility

Pride in working for a sustainable
organisation

Engaged and inclusive work culture
Transparency and equity in employee

dealings

Propagation of environmentally friendly
practices

Community wellbeing across the supply
chain

Fair and equitable terms

Responsible environmental practices

Uplifting communities

Compliance, integrity and transparency

Responsible environmental practices

Uplifting communities

Compliance, integrity and transparency
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OPERATING LANDSCAPE

Given the depth and breadth of its operations, the Group is exposed to numerous socio-economic and environmental factors
stemming from the external operating landscape. We consistently monitor these dynamics to manage emerging risks and
leverage opportunities that could arise from the external landscape. The factors are discussed through the PESTEL analysis
given below. Trends related to the specific industry sectors are discussed in the Portfolio Review from pages 119 to 229 of this
Report.

-
POLITICAL

DOMESTIC POLITICAL UNCERTAINTY

* Rising social unrest amidst the prevalent economic challenges had led to political uncertainty in the last months of
the financial year and ensuing weeks. Political stability is a vital pre-requisite for addressing Sri Lanka’s economic
challenges and it is noteworthy that at the time of this Report going to print, a degree of political stability has been
restored.

~

GEOPOLITICAL DYNAMICS

* As a Group with a global footprint, dynamics in global geopolitics have a significant impact on operations, growth
and the risk landscape, although this is somewhat mitigated by the Group’s diversity. Key geopolitical developments
that shaped our operating environment during the year included:

1-  Russian/Ukranian conflict and its impact on global demand and supply chain dynamics
2- Potential slowdown in China
3- Long-term geopolitical dynamics of COVID-19 and inequality of access to pandemic relief

4- Cyber attacks, misinformation and targeted strikes

5- Power grabs and resultant economic and diplomatic consequences

Potential impact on Group Link to material risks & opportunities . Our strategic response

* Impact of Russian/Ukranian Geopolitical risk « Diversification of industry sectors,
conflict on prices and supply markets and operating locations
of commodities which in turn Cyber risk
affect our manufacturing sector *  Expanding supply chains with
businesses as well as impact on increased focus on developing
the Leisure and Plantation Sectors local suppliers

» Disruptions to global supply
chains stemming from the
slowdown in China

We are the Hayleys Group @ Leadership & Governance @ Unlocking Value e Management Discussion & Analysis ® Financial Statements
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MACRO-ECONOMIC VULNERABILITIES

Global economic growth firmed to 5.9% in 2021, mainly due to strong recovery from advanced economies, which
grew by 5% in view of unprecedented fiscal stimulus and an easing of restrictions. Emerging markets and developing
economies also grew by 6.5% supported by stronger commodity prices and a release in pent-up demand. The
outlook for 2022, however, remains uncertain given potential economic scarring from the Ukranian conflict,
inflationary pressures and rising COVID-19 infections in China.

Sri Lanka is currently facing an unprecedented economic crisis as COVID-19 led impacts converged with deep-
rooted economic imbalances and structural issues inserted considerable pressure on the country’s external sector.

The first quarter of 2021 witnessed strong rebound in economic activity, resulting in GDP growing by 3.7% in 2021
(2020: contraction of 3.6%). The surge in COVID-19 infections in the 2nd and 3rd quarters of the year led to a
slowdown in activity, which was further exacerbated by an increasing shortage of foreign exchange liquidity.

The sharp fall in tourism earnings and remittances, together with international debt servicing inserted
unprecedented pressure on the country’s external position. The crisis deepened in the last quarter of FY2022 and
ensuing months with shortages in essential items, fuel and medicine leading to social unrest and political instability.

The regulator allowed the free float of the exchange rate from March 2022, following which the Rupee depreciated
sharply reflecting overshooting by market participants; resultantly the Sri Lankan Rupee fell by 46% which in turn
has led to escalating inflationary pressures. Accordingly, y-o-y inflation measured by CCPI increased to 30% in April
2022.

Interest rates remained low for most part of the year, before gradually increasing in view of monetary policy
tightening, with AWPLR nearing 16% in April 2022.

The need for appropriate fiscal and monetary policy action is critical as the country pursues bridging facilities from
friendly nations and inter-governmental organisations. Sri Lanka is also currently negotiating an extended fund
facility (EFF) from the IMF, and the conditions entailing such a support program could pave way for long-term
macro-economic stability through bringing about much needed fiscal consolidation and structural reforms.

Potential impact on Group Link to material risks & opportunities | Our strategic response
* Disruptions to supply chains Macro-economic risk e Preservation of liquidity
relying on imported input
materials Interest rate risk * Leverage industry and
geographical diversity to build
¢ Sharp escalation in the increase of Exchange rate risk resilience

imported raw material prices
* Pursue increased penetration in

* Potential increase in borrowing export markets across key sectors
costs given the rise in market
interest rates * Expand local manufacturing and

reliance on local input material
¢ Slowdown in domestic demand
across key sectors

* Favourable impact on export
earnings
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OPERATING LANDSCAPE

NEW WAYS OF WORKING

The pandemic has completely redefined the workplace and ways of working, with organisations now under increasing

pressure to build more agile and adaptable operating models. This shift also has a baring on compensation schemes,
training propositions and measures to maintain employee morale

MIGRATION AND BRAIN DRAIN

The ongoing economic crisis in the country has led to a significant increase in migration levels, with young professionals

seeking career opportunities outside the country. This brain drain will adversely impact the country and organisations
over the short-to-medium term, given the exodus of talented, skilled and ambitious young people from the country.

INCOME INEQUALITY

The pandemic, followed by the country’s macro-economic crisis have widened income disparities as vulnerable
segments with relatively lower opportunities have borne the brunt of the economic downturn. This provides an
opportunity for organisations such as ours, which operate extensive supply and value chains to promote economic
inclusion through outgrower programmes, ethical procurement and capacity building among others.

EVOLUTION OF THE PANDEMIC

Sri Lanka experienced the 2nd and 3rd waves of the pandemic in 2021, with the emergence of highly transmissible
variants leading to periodic lockdowns. The country’s vaccination drive has largely been successful with nearly 75%
of the country vaccinated by end-2021 and most organisations facilitating vaccinations for its employees. Businesses
demonstrated strong adaptability to operating in conditions of limited mobility, deploying technology to engage with
both internal and external stakeholders.

SOCIAL & ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

Organisations are under increasing pressure to contribute towards addressing critical issues facing the world today,
particularly in the socio-economic and environmental arena. Businesses are thereby being called upon to deliver
on their ESG initiatives through committing to emission reduction strategies, nature-positive developments and
contributing to community empowerment and well-being among others.

Potential impact on Group Link to material risks & opportunities . Our strategic response

*  New work models while ensuring People-related risks « Facilitating remote working
employee morale and well-being and driving increasingly agile
is preserved Operational risk operating models

*  Opportunity to drive meaningful ¢ Launch of the Hayleys Lifecode
community change through the the Group’s comprehensive ESG
Group’s many outgrower and framework

capacity building programmes

* Need to embed ESG
considerations to strategy,
operations and every day decision
making

~
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TECHNOLOGY

The pandemic has accelerated the shift towards digital, with advances in technology and emergence of new capabilities
such as data analytics, robotics and artificial intelligence offering considerable opportunities for organisations to drive
efficiencies while adopting new ways of working have offered an unparalleled opportunity for organisations to drive
considerable improvements in efficiency, productivity and reliability

Potential impact on Group Link to material risks & opportunities | Our strategic response
*  Opportunities in enhancing the People-related risks ¢ Enhance the Group’s online
efficiency of manufacturing visibility
operations through automating IT risk
rocesses ¢ Increase employee and customer
P engagement through digital
i latf
* Transforming engagement platforms
with both internal and external * Drive efficiencies through
customers automation and digitalisation

*  Opportunity in embracing new
ways of working

N
ENVIRONMENTAL @

IMPLICATIONS OF CLIMATE CHANGE

*  The Global Risk Report (2021) by the World Economic Forum continues to rank natural disasters and failure to
prevent climate change implications as key risks facing the world today both in terms of impact and likelihood.
Erratic weather conditions, and natural disasters are becoming increasingly frequent across the world with severe
impacts on value chains, agricultural outputs, communities and businesses.

TRANSITION RISKS
* Transition risks are risks associated with transitioning to a low carbon economy including increasing reliance on
renewable energy and customers’ increasing preference for sustainably designed and manufactured products

Potential impact on Group Link to material risks & opportunities . Our strategic response

« Direct implications on the Operational risk ¢ Launch of a holistic ESG
Agriculture and Plantations Sector Framework- the Hayleys Lifecode
through impacting crop quality, Climate-related risk which harmonizes ESG integration
production volumes and yields across Group companies, with the

aim of managing socio-economic

* Impacts on Sectors such as and environmental impacts and

Hand Protection, Purification building resilience

and Eco Solutions which rely on

) ) *« Numerous environmental
agricultural supply chains

initiatives conducted by Sectors
(Refer to pages 270 to 283 for

* Adverse implications on Sectors further information)

which rely heavily on natural
resources such as Textiles and
Hand Protection
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OPERATING LANDSCAPE

LEGAL
=

POLICY DEVELOPMENTS
Key regulatory developments impacting the Group’s operations during the year included the following:

«  Monetary policy measures
* Import restrictions on selected non-essential items

*«  The ban on the import of chemical fertilizer and crop protection materials

*«  Wage hike in the plantation sector

Potential impact on Group Link to material risks & opportunities | Our strategic response
« Tightening monetary policy stance Government Policy e Pursue increased penetration in
has led to a gradual uptick of export markets

interest rates which will lead to an Exchange rate risk
inevitable increase in the Group’s
borrowing costs Interest rate risk

* Enhance local manufacturing
footprint

¢ Ongoing negotiation with banks

* Import restrictions on consumer to obtain favourable rates
durables and consumer
electronics have had a sharply
adverse impact on Singer

* Proactive inventory planning and
working capital management

e Propagation of sustainable

* The Plantation and Agriculture agriculture practices in the
sectors affected by the ban on Plantation and Agriculture sectors
import of chemical fertilizer and
crop protection materials @ ‘ @ @

* A near 35% increase in
plantation sector wages sans

link to productivity will result in a
significantly higher labour bill

We are the Hayleys Group @ Leadership & Governance @ Unlocking Value e Management Discussion & Analysis ® Financial Statements
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DETERMINING MATERIAL MATTERS

Hayleys PLC conducts a comprehensive materiality assessment annually, with the engagement of all business sectors. The
process facilitates regular review and update of material topics which are material to the Group’s stakeholders and value
creation, in view of changes in both the internal and external operating environment. The assessment is conducted at Sector
level and aggregated at Hayleys PLC, with each topic weighted using a suitable metric based on the importance of the
Sector’s impacts to the Group.

The process adopted for assessing material issues is presented below:

-
A list of possible material issues has been selected as process parameters and a
reference point in conducting the materiality assessment. These are determined
by the Group Sustainability Division based on,

ESTABLISH 1 Discussions with Sector leadership teams
PROCESS ) )
PARAMETERS 2 Evaluation of the Group’s business model and strategic aspirations
3 Guidelines recommended by local and international corporate reporting
frameworks including IR Framework and GRI Standards
The issues are prioritised at Sector level using the following filters to assess the
relative importance of the topics to stakeholders and the importance to the
organisation.
FILTERING TESTS
Organisational impact Importance to stakeholders
SECTOR LEVEL Financial impact Customers
PRIORITISATION OF o Innovation opportunity Employees
MATERIAL TOPICS
Reputation Shareholders
Externalities Suppliers
Strategic link Business Partners
Risk Government
Communities

Sector level materiality matrices are aggregated at Hayleys PLC level; in

doing so, each material topic is weighted using a suitable metric based on

AGGREGATION the importance of the Sector to the Group. The following metrics are used in
o attaching weights to sector level material topics.

AT HAYLEYS PLC
LEVEL

« Economic topics: Sector revenue contribution to the Group

» Social factors: Headcount of the Sector relative to the Group

« Environmental factors: Weighted based on relative impact to the Group’s
carbon footprint, water consumption and land usage

Changes to the Reporting Boundary: Following its acquisition by Hayleys Fabric PLC in April 2021, South Asia Textiles Ltd.
was added to the financial, non-financial and integrated reporting boundary.
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DETERMINING MATERIAL MATTERS

MATERIALITY RADAR

Material topic

Customer
satisfaction

®

Q
(o)
©

Corresponding GRI /NGRC
principle

Materiality
compared to
2020/21

Link to UN

SDG

Reporting boundary

The Group’s customers across
its business sectors

Pandemic-led

The Group’s operations and its

disruptions environment
Economic GRI 201-Economic Performance - 10 3350 The Group’s broader impacts
impacts & GRI 203-Indirect economic = and communities
livelihood impacts
development ECONT, ECON2
ECONG6
Product GRI417-Marketing and labelling - The products and services
quality and SOCL18 - manufactured and/or

responsibility

distributed by the Group

Macro-
economic
vulnerabilities

New topic

Reporting boundary relates to
the Group’s employees

Employee well-
being

GRI 403-Occupational Health and
safety

(4]

Reporting boundary relates to
the Group’s employees

We are the Hayleys Group @ Leadership & Governance @ Unlocking Value e Management Discussion & Analysis ® Financial Statements



Material topic

Corresponding GRI /NGRC
principle

Materiality
compared to
2020/21

Link to UN
SDG

95

Reporting boundary

7. People GRI 401-Employment SOCL2 - DES Refers to the Group’s
Proposition GRI 402-Labour management m direct employees across its
relations operating locations
SOCL2
GRI 404-Training and education
SOCL7
8. Compliance ENVT22 - - Relates to the compliance of
SOCL12 all entities within the Group
9. Availability - - The Group’s operations in Sri
of foreign ° Lanka
exchange
10. Principal - - - Our local and international
Relationships principals across key business
sectors
11. Best practices GRI 204:Procurement practices - - Relates to the Group’s key
along supply supply chains, primarily in Sri
chains Lanka
12. Customer ECON4,SOCLMN - - The Group’s customers across
Health and its business sectors
Safety
13. Innovation GRI 416: Customer Health and Relates to the Group’s product
Safety and process innovations
14. Managing GRI 301-Materials ENVTI, ENVT2 (B PR The reporting boundary

Environmental
Impacts

GRI 302-Energy

GRI 303-Water & Effeulant
GRI 304-Bio-diversity

GRI 305-Emissions

GRI 306-Waste

ENVT8
ENVTILENVTI2

v

13 v 15 oo
Ol

12 s
CONSURPTION
ADPRODCTON

includes the Group’s direct
environmental impacts

(@ 0]
15. Government - New topic - The Group’s operations in Sri
policy including Lanka
import
restrictions
16. Access to - New topic - The Group’s operations in Sri
interrupted Lanka
energy
17. Tax GRI 219-Tax - - All operations
18. Local GRI 413-Local communities - 10 Relates to the communities

communities

G

with whom the Group
engages and broader
communities in operating
areas

19. Manufacturing
capabilities and
operational
efficiency

The Group’s manufacturing
operations in Sri Lanka and
overseas
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STRATEGY AND RESOURCE ALLOCATION

Sectors adopt unique strategies which reflect the risks, opportunities and core competencies of each business; however, the
overall strategic direction is underpinned by six, Group-wide long-term pillars which are formulated by the Strategic Business
Development Unit (SBDU) at Hayleys PLC and cascaded to the Sectors under the leadership of the Group Management
Committee.

-
PORTFOLIO GROWTH

To have a balanced investment portfolio in terms of risk returns and growth to ensure sustainable profitability and
liquidity

Strategic drivers

ORGANIC
GROWTH

BRAND
DEVELOPMENT

INORGANIC
GROWTH

~ ¢ Penetration of new markets and deeper relationships in STRATEGIC ALIGNMENT TO SDGS
g existing markets Renewable energy generation
8 through the Industry Inputs, Power &
cg + Capacity expansion through investments and acquisitions Energy Sector
§ * Emphasis on enhancing customer experience and retention PP Continued value creation to
T ,\/" stakeholders through revenue and
% » Offer wider product portfolio L] profit growth
RESOURCE ALLOCATION KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
o Capital expenditure Rs. 14.04 mn KPI Performance
o in 2021/22
g Extensive relationships with customers and distribution New customers 1.78 mn
o
o partners Acquisitions 2
(=
= No. of sectors which 4
4 expanded capacity
)
= Revenue growth 40%
EBIT growth 29%
Short-term Medium to long-term
e Preserve liquidity and management inventory given » Strategic focus on strengthening our
potential disruptions to supply chains presence in export markets
«  Work proactively with eco system to ensure continuity of * Pursue opportunities for inorganic growth

supplies for manufacturing
*  Expansion of local and regional
manufacturing footprint

M
o
~
N
I
o
N
S
(o]
Y
X
(o]
[e]
=
S
o
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N
INNOVATION AND DIGITALISATION @
Adapting to the dynamic digital age by utilising technology and social media to create new revenue streams by

introducing innovative solutions and products have a balanced investment portfolio in terms of risk returns and growth
to ensure sustainable profitability and liquidity

Strategic drivers

R&D AND
INNOVATION

DIGITAL
PRESENCE

PROCESS
AUTOMATION

DIGITAL
ENGAGEMENT

* Several sectors made considerable progress in widening STRATEGIC ALIGNMENT TO SDGS

value-added product portfolios through innovation ST Fostering innovation that is

. Facilitated working from home & sustainable and addresses key social
and environmental challenges
* Proactive digital media marketing and monitoring which

enables identification of customer complaints and
suggestions

» Virtual customer tours by DPL and Haycarb PLC

* Full implementation of Business Process Consolidation
including MIS and budgeting processes

Initiatives in 2021/22

» Cost savings generated through automation and
mechanisation

RESOURCE ALLOCATION KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
@ Investment in R&D capabilities: Rs. 429.35 mn 749

new products launched
Investment in digital infrastructure: Rs. 546.93 mn 160

products in the pipeline

Sustainable product and process innovation
(refer to pages 261 to 269)

n
0
Q
s
()]
(e]
S
o
()]
(=

=
=
7}
©
Q

=

Short-term Medium to long-term
»  Ongoing focus on leveraging R&D capabilities to e Process automation across key sectors
strengthen offerings across key sectors

*  Enhance the Group’s online and social media presence

Outlook for 2022/23
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STRATEGY AND RESOURCE ALLOCATION

e N
VALUE CHAIN AND COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIPS @
Creating a secure, sustainable and efficient value chain and uplifting livelihoods and empowering commmunities

Strategic drivers
SCUHP:II;\IY SUPPLIER ETHICAL PROPAGATING
DEVELOPMENT PRICIN TAINABILITY
EXPANSION o CING SUs
* Increased focus on expanding local supply chains given STRATEGIC ALIGNMENT TO SDGS
S disruptions to global networks = Supporting vulnerable segments
g «  Supporting continuity of supplier operations through il thrgugh proviqling opportunities for
N provision of fuel and continued injection of liquidity socio-economic empowerment and
£ CSR activities
o * Investments in supplier development programs to build
£ capacity and propagate sustainable practices Bl Continued value injection to local
:S @ supply chains through procurements
c
RESOURCE ALLOCATION KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Payments to suppliers:. Rs. 237.70 bn Continued disruptions to international supply
chains compelled the Group to seek increased
Investment in community engagement Rs. 311.23 mn reliance on local supply chains, investing in
capacity building and development across key
ﬁ supply chains.
5’ KPI Performance
o in 2021/22
o
g Total suppliers 15,392
5 No. of new suppliers 335
[}
= Suppliers developed 2,422
Increase in supplier value 63%
injection
Small scale suppliers 10,527
Local procurement Rs. 104.58 bn
= Short-term Medium to long-term
N * Increase focus on local sourcing * Continued investments in development of
8 suppliers
(: *  Exploring the possibility of replacing imported material
<) ) . :
< with locally sourced inputs * Plans to expand the environmental and
8 social assessment of suppliers
=y
=]
(e}
_J
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CUSTOMER FOCUS @

Enhancing experiences for every customer, from the rural farmer to the global consumer through excellence in
product quality and service

Strategic drivers

QUALITY AND
RESPONSIBILITY

CUSTOMER
SATISFACTION

CATERING TO
EVOLVING NEEDS

* Expansion of customer base with entry into new markets STRATEGIC ALIGNMENT TO SDGS
+ Ongoing engagement through digital platforms F= Encouraging sustainable
o'e) consumption habits among
+ Customisation of products to cater to specific customer customers through offering
needs responsible product solutions

*  Employee training on customer engagement and service

Initiatives in 2021/22

RESOURCE ALLOCATION KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Continued engagement by our front line employees 1.78 mn
New customers

Customer surveys conducted 90%
Average customer satisfaction

99%

Complaints resolved

Compliance to numerous quality and safety certifications

@
©
©

0
n
()
S
O
o
S
o}
(@)
=

=
3
n
©
Q

=

Short-term Medium to long-term
* Provide assurance on customers on ability to continuously * Geographical diversification
serve their requirements
* Strengthening customer management
» Drive customer acquisition in new markets while pursuing skills
increased penetration in existing markets

Outlook for 2022/23
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STRATEGY AND RESOURCE ALLOCATION

INSPIRED AND DEDICATED TEAM @

Creating a dynamic team to steer the "World of Hayleys" to be Sri Lanka's corporate inspiration at all times
Strategic drivers
ATTRACTION

AND
RETENTION

EMPLOYEE
WELL-BEING

AGILE WORK TRAINING &

PLAN DEVELOPMENT

* Vaccination drive across all Sectors and operating locations STRATEGIC ALIGNMENT TO SDGS

including engagement to dispel myths regarding obtaining T Nurture a dynamic, inclusive
the vaccination ﬁ/‘ and rewarding work culture for

« Ongoing investment training focus on leadership employees ensuring continued value
development, technical skills and soft skills creation to employees

» Strengthened remuneration in view of prevalent conditions

»  Commenced the Management Trainee programme

N
N
~
=
N
o
N
=

7]

(]
2
=}
P
=

[=

+  Enhanced communication

RESOURCE ALLOCATION KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
@ Payments to employees: Rs. 33.79 bn KPI ‘ Performance
ﬁ ‘ in 2021/22
o @ Investment in training and development Rs. 68.81 mn Total employees 32.840
o
o Vaccination rate 99% (2 doses)
o
g Average training hours/ 757
5 employee
g Retention rate 85%
Female representation (%) 35
Profit per employee Rs. 0.86 mn
Short-term Medium to long-term
*  Enhance engagement with employees to maintain morale « Enhance employee productivity through
and prevent isolation given the general increase in anxiety efficiency drive
levels

* Nurture a performance driven culture

Outlook for 2022/23
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( )
CLIMATE ACTION @

Strive to protect, enhance and sustain the wider ecological system we operate within

Strategic drivers

REDUCE REDUCE
CARBON CARBON BIODIVERSITY WATER

FOOTPRINT FOOTPRINT PRESERVATION CONSERVATION

* Launch of Hayleys Lifecode- with Sector and Group-level STRATEGIC ALIGNMENT TO SDGS
N targeps and action plans to achieve a 30% reduction in CO2 Increase reliance on renewable
E emissions by 2030 energy to drive reductions in the
= + Launch of "Project Kirulu" organisation-wide tree planting carbon footprint
= initiative 13 e
” Solar roof installation and services
g + Several sectors engaged in the generation of renewable L 4 offered by Hayleys Fentons
E energy
= UFE - . . .
c «  Pursue options for recycled and renewable raw materials 1521 Support biodiversity preservation
> - through tree planting
* Increase rainwater harvesting —
RESOURCE ALLOCATION KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Investment in environmental initiatives: Rs. 55.72 mn KPI ‘ Performance
" in 2021/22
@ :
o Investment in solar roof systems Rs. 981.32 mn Reliance on renewable 67%
8’ i energy
= @ 1,200 trees planted under the Kirulu programme : :
= Sustainable water sourcing 53%
g Waste to landfill 1,609.22 MT
§ Changes in,
z Energy intensity -10%
Water intensity -12%
Emission intensity -20%
= Short-term Medium to long-term
=i * Several sectors pursuing options of increased reliance on ¢ Sustainable products and solutions which
8 solar energy offer greener solutions
~
f * Lifecode related training across all sectors ¢ Pursue continued reductions in carbon
8 footprint through process innovation
s » Continuation of tree planting initiative
(0]
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COMMITMENT TO THE SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOALS (SDG)

Our Approach: Through the Group’s ESG Framework, the Group intends to link its ESG aspirations to the SDGs in which it can

make the most significant contribution. This was completed for the Environmental Pillar of the ESG Framework, which was
launched during the year. A summary of the Group’s contribution to the selected SDGs are presented below; these initiatives

are discussed in detail in subsequent sections of this Report.

SDG 1: NO POVERTY

1 NO
POVERTY

vt

headcount index amounting to 4.1% in 2016.

Sri Lankan context: Sri Lanka’s poverty levels have recorded gradual decrease in recent decades, with the poverty

Relevant SDG targets

Target 1.1: By 2030, eradicate extreme poverty for all people everywhere,
currently measured as people living on less than $1.25 a day

Hayleys’ contribution

Nearly 20,000 suppliers and out-growers
supported

Target 1.4: By 2030, ensure that all men and women, in particular the poor
and the vulnerable, have equal rights to economic resources, as well as
access to basic services, ownership and control over land and other forms
of property, inheritance, natural resources, appropriate new technology and
financial services, including microfinance

House for every plantation worker’ initiative
supports 304,911 estate workers and
community through a holistic proposition.

2 e

SDG 2: ZERO HUNGER

(44 Sri Lankan context: Prevalence of undernourishment of 7.6%, with 17.3% prevalence of stunting among children the

age of 5 years.

Relevant SDG targets

Target 2.3: By 2030, double the agricultural productivity and incomes of
small-scale food producers, in particular women, indigenous peoples, family
farmers, pastoralists and fishers, including through secure and equal access
to land, other productive resources and inputs, knowledge, financial services,
markets and opportunities for value addition and non-farm employment

 Hayleys’ contribution

+Agriculture Sector’s research into
developing high quality planting materials,
crop nutrition and protection solutions.

+Plantation sector’s efforts to drive
productivity improvements in estates

Target 2.4: By 2030, ensure sustainable food production systems and
implement resilient agricultural practices that increase productivity and
production, that help maintain ecosystems, that strengthen capacity for
adaptation to climate change, extreme weather, drought, flooding and other
disasters and that progressively improve land and soil quality

+Climate smart agriculture solutions by the
Agriculture Sector

ExATon SDG 4: QUALITY EDUCATION

]

complete the GCE Advanced level examination

Sri Lankan context: Sri Lanka’s literacy rates are among the best in the region although 13.8% of the population

Relevant SDG targets

Target 4.3: By 2030, ensure equal access for all women and men to affordable
and quality technical, vocational and tertiary education, including university

Hayleys’ contribution

Equal opportunity employer in offering skill
and career development

Target 4.4: By 2030, substantially increase the number of youth and
adults who have relevant skills, including technical and vocational skills, for
employment, decent jobs and entrepreneurship

7.57 average training hours per employee

Skill development for fabricators, out-
growers and fashion entrepreneurs
(through Singer)
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GENDER
EQUALITY

SDG 5: GENDER EQUALITY

g

Relevant SDG targets

103

Sri Lankan context: Labour force participation among women is relatively low at 36

Hayleys’ contribution

5.5 Ensure women'’s full and effective participation and equal opportunities for
leadership at all levels of decision-making in political, economic and public life

35% female representation rate, 11% female
representation in management level

5.c Adopt and strengthen sound policies and enforceable legislation for the
promotion of gender equality and the empowerment of all women and girls at
all levels

Equal opportunity employer, with policies
in place for anti-sexual harassment, non-
discrimination and grievance handling.

CLEAN WATER
AND SANITATION

SDG 6: CLEAN WATER AND SANITISATION

v

Sri Lankan context: 81% of Sri Lanka’s population has access to safely managed drinking water services

Relevant SDG targets

Target 6.1: By 2030, achieve universal and equitable access to safe and
affordable drinking water for all

Hayleys’ contribution

190,000 litres of water purified through 19
projects under the Puritas Sath Diyawara
project

Target 6.3: By 2030, improve water quality by reducing pollution, eliminating
dumping and minimising release of hazardous chemicals and materials,
halving the proportion of untreated wastewater and substantially increasing
recycling and safe reuse globally

46% of all used is recycled through effluent
treatment plants

Target 6.4: By 2030, substantially increase water-use efficiency across
all sectors and ensure sustainable withdrawals and supply of freshwater
to address water scarcity and substantially reduce the number of people
suffering from water scarcity

Increased focus on water recycling with 9%
of water recycled in 2021/22 24% increase
in water consumption and 12% reduction in
water intensity

00D HEALTH
ANDWELLBEING

SDG 3: GOOD HEALTH AND WELL-BEING

e

Sri Lankan context: Maternal Mortality Rate of 36 per 100,000 live births

Relevant SDG targets

Target 3.1: By 2030, reduce the global maternal mortality ratio to less than 70
per 100,000 live births

SDG 7: AFFORDABLE AND CLEAN ENERGY

 Hayleys’ contribution

The Plantation Sector offers a “womb-to-
tomb” proposition for estate employees
which includes pre-natal and post-natal
care

Sri Lankan context: 100% electrification with 37% of energy generated through renewable energy including hydro

and non-conventional renewable energy sources

Relevant SDG targets

Target 7.2: By 2030, increase substantially the share of renewable energy in
the global energy mix.

Hayleys’ contribution

67% of the Group’s total energy
requirements fulfilled by renewable energy
Accounts for 3% of the country’s total
renewable energy generation

Target 7.3: By 2030, double the global rate of improvement in energy
efficiency

10% reduction in energy intensity during
the year
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COMMITMENT TO THE SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOALS (SDG)

DEGENT WORK AND

/\/ SDG 8: DECENT WORK AND ECONOMIC GROWTH

“' Sri Lankan context: Unemployment rate of 4.8%, with female unemployment relatively higher at 6.9%.
Relevant SDG targets Hayleys’ contribution
Target 8.2: Achieve higher levels of economic productivity through Group-wide focus on innovation and value
diversification, technological upgrading and innovation, including through a addition with over 749 new products
focus on high-value added and labour-intensive sectors introduced during the year, with R&D spend
Target 8.5: By 2030, achieve full and productive employment and decent Equal remuneration for men and women at
work for all women and men, including for young people and persons with a 11 ratio
disabilities, and equal pay for work of equal value
Target 8.6: By 2020, substantially reduce the proportion of youth not in Youth skill development through Fabricator
employment, education or training training, The Singer Business School and

Agricultural Training School

(i SDG 11: RESPONSIBLE CONSUMPTION AND PRODUCTION
E Sri Lankan context: The country lacks a coherent national waste management policy, with only an estimated 50%
n éﬁ of waste generated collected.

Relevant SDG targets Hayleys’ contribution

Target 12.2: By 2030, achieve the sustainable management and efficient use of Comprehensive waste management policy
natural resources in place across the Group with the aim of
driving reductions in waste to land-fill

Target 12.5: By 2030, substantially reduce waste generation through 7% land-fill waste while over 63% of waste
prevention, reduction, recycling and reuse is recycled and re-used

13 v SDG 13: CLIMATE ACTION
@ Sri Lankan context: Sri Lanka remains highly vulnerable to climate related risks and was ranked 6th on the
Climate Risk Index of the UNDP.

Relevant SDG targets Hayleys’ contribution
Target 13.2: Integrate climate change measures into national policies, The Group has set a target of reducing its
strategies and planning Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions by 30% by

2020. The carbon footprint is monitored
across all Sectors and reported to the GMC
on a quarterly basis.

SDG 15: LIFE ON LAND
= Sri Lankan context: Sri Lanka’s forest cover has reduced gradually over the years due to an estimated

= deforestation rate of 11%. The forest cover was estimated at around 17% in 2019.

Relevant SDG targets Hayleys’ contribution

Target 15.1: By 2020, ensure the conservation, restoration and sustainable use Green belt and Wetland biodiversity

of terrestrial and inland freshwater ecosystems and their services, in particular = zone implemented by the Textile sector
forests, wetlands, mountains and drylands, in line with obligations under Biological corridors established by the
international agreements Plantation sector in order to develop a self-
sustaining ecological model.

Target 15.2: By 2020, promote the implementation of sustainable management >49,000 trees planted during the year
of all types of forests, halt deforestation, restore degraded forests and
substantially increase afforestation and reforestation globally
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RISKS & OPPORTUNITIES

AS A DIVERSIFIED
CONGLOMERATE, WE ARE IN
THE BUSINESS OF TAKING RISKS
TO SEIZE OPPORTUNITIES.
THAT IS HOW WE GROW. THE
BOARD HAS PUT IN PLACE

THE RISK MANAGEMENT
FRAMEWORKS THAT SUPPORT
RISK AWARENESS AT ALL
LEVELS OF THE ORGANISATION,
FACILITATING A DISCIPLINED
APPROACH TO IDENTIFYING,
MEASURING, MONITORING

AND MANAGING RISKS AND
OPPORTUNITIES.

A DISRUPTED RECOVERY

FY 2021/22 was a year of stops and
starts as the pandemic continued to
disrupt the recovery with new waves
and variants which resulted in negative
economic growth for the country in the
2nd quarter of the financial year. The

RISK GOVERNANCE

nationwide vaccination programmes were largely successful enabling a return to a
semblance of normalcy by November 2021. The policy environment was uncertain
and proved to be challenging as in the instance of the ban on agrochemicals
which was subsequently reversed due to the adverse consequences. Inflation was
a global concern but in Sri Lanka the pace and level of inflation was significantly
above global averages, mainly driven by food inflation with non-food inflation
playing a supporting role. Increasing prices of commodities including oil and other
inputs resulted in macroeconomic stress in developing economies, particularly in
the external sector. Supply chain disruptions and an exponential increase in freight
costs were a key concern for manufacturers, making working capital management
a key priority. Continuing stress made credit risk a key concern as well. Retaining
talent pools will be critical for the country to progress as global markets open up
with shortages of labour across many categories.

Sovereign rating downgrades, a growing trade deficit and debt repayments

made foreign exchange liquidity and foreign exchange rate volatility were an ever
present concern during the year. Management of the exchange rate during the first
11T months of the financial year and the subsequent 46% devaluation of the rupee
in March 2022 was a shock to the system which continued throughout April as

the currency devalued by a further 22%. The widening trade deficit and dwindling
foreign exchange reserves gave rise to shortages of fuel which then resulted in the
introduction of nationwide power cuts, further disrupting businesses which were
already stressed in many ways. The unexpected interest rate increase in April 2022
by 700 bps was another shock albeit necessary to curtail inflation. The resultant
social unrest and political instability continues to be a key concern as we move
into another financial year.

The Board has ultimate responsibility for management of risk and are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharge of

this duty. The diverse business sectors of the Group have high levels of autonomy in driving their businesses with Group
governance structures playing a key role in harmonising policies, sharing best practices, guiding strategic direction, managing
risks and optimising resource allocation across the Group as depicted below.

Discharges accountability for effective risk management by establishing risk
management structures, policy frameworks, monitoring risk and providing guidance on

Hayleys
Board

Hayleys PLC
& 17 Audit
Committees

Group Management
Committee

Hayleys PLC Corporate

Management

Strategic Business Units

management of risk

Audit Committees review risk registers and ensure that Boards are apprised of top
and emerging threats

The GMC reviews Group level impacts of risks to determine necessary action
including recommendations to Boards on resource allocation. Frequency of
meetings has increased to 4 times a month.

These central functions review and constructively challenge risk
assessments of sectors and support and monitor mitigation activities

Strategic business units are responsible for the sustainable growth
and profitability of their businesses and are supported by Group
functions.
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RISKS & OPPORTUNITIES

COoVID-19

GOVERNMENT POLICY

Signs that the pandemic is nearing
endemicity are welcome relief but the
gradual increase in numbers in the USA/
China give cause for concern, keeping the
pandemic on our risk radar.

Refer risk no. 13 on pages 114 to 115

GEOPOLITICS

The Russo-Ukraine war has dampened
global growth forecasts and added

to inflationary pressures due to the
anticipated fuel and food shortages.
Sanctions in place also have a direct
impact on some businesses.

Refer risk no. 1 on pages 110 to 111

CYBERSECURITY

Cybersecurity continues
to remain as a key risk due
to the increased threat
levels and dependency on
information technology
Refer risk no. 23 on pages 116
to 117

CONSUMER DEMAND

& BEHAVIOURS

All these factors will
combine to change
consumer behaviours
throughout the world and
predicting trends will be

key to managing finite
resources.

Refer risk no. 5 on pages 110 to 111

CLIMATE CHANGE

Extreme weather events have been on
the rise varying from floods to droughts.
Any extreme weather event can push the
country further into crisis.

Refer risk no. 3 on pages 110 to 111

We are the Hayleys Group e
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Government policy is key to how we do
business. Policy direction is critical to
managing risk. Given the current level of
economic stress, policy plays a key roles
in shaping outcomes, not just for the year
ahead but in the medium term as well.
Refer risk no. 2 on pages 110 to 171

RELIABLE ACCESS TO ENERGY

All business and homes require
energy for continued operations.
This needs to be secured without

delay as it has a significant impact
on the country’s productivity.

Refer risk no. 15 on pages 114 to 115

TALENT RETENTION

The extreme economic stress
can motivate skilled talent to
migrate for employment
causing a brain drain

Refer risk no. 18 on pages 114 to 115

AN ECONOMY IN STRESS

For businesses located in Sri Lanka,

this is the main concern. The past two months
have seen corrective action being implemented
but there is more to be done to see a clear path
forward. The progress of discussions with the IMF

and other countries for bilateral assistance will
be key. As warned by the Prime Minister, the next
few months are critical and likely to be difficult.
Maintaining stability during this time is essential.

These are taking place at a time for stress for

the world economy as well which makes
the road to recovery even more

rough and more urgent.

(=
INFLATION &
WAGE PRESSURES

Soaring inflation
will increase pressure
on wages, increasing

economic hardship
for the people
Refer risk no. 6 on pages 110 to 117

lTRADE FLOWS & SUPPLY CHAINS

Growth in world trade is expected to
moderate to 5% in 2022 as supply chain
disruptions increase due to the Russo-
Ukraine war. Freight costs and capacity are
expected to remain a key concern during
this year as well.

Refer risk no. 14 on pages 114 to 115

FOOD SECURITY

The agriculture policies have resulted in poor
vields, threatening the food security of the country
which also has no means to secure imports. This is

happening against a backdrop of world shortages of
wheat and other food items leaving little headroom
for securing additional supplies.
Refer risk no. 14 on pages 114 to 115

Leadership & Governance @ Unlocking Value e Management Discussion & Analysis ® Financial Statements
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A STRUCTURED APPROACH
The Group adopts the three lines of defence model with clear segregations of duties.

(1) (2) (3)
e N Eﬁ N\ EE N

¢ Individual Businesses * Sector Level Boards & Audit * Hayleys PLC Board & Audit
¢ Risk Identification, Acceptance SIS SN
& Mitigation * Risk Monitoring & ¢ Assurance & Policy Formulation
Management

*«  Group Management Committee

The Group adopts the COSO Framework in assessing potential risks which are ranked and prioritised based on impact and
likelihood of occurrence. The risk management process is as follows;

Determining Determining e . . e .
Material Aspects Materials Aspects !de!'\tlfylng IEK Monitoring risk Mltlgat.lng/ .

indicators Managing Risk
for Each Sector for Group

INTEGRATED THINKING & EFFICIENT RESOURCE
ALLOCATION

Different Group functions monitor external developments and

a variety of internal factors for early warning signs of threats
and opportunities to align plans and ploys accordingly. The
following functions come together at Group level to identify
risks and opportunities to mitigate and manage them. The Group
Management Committee plays a critical role in providing insights
in to diverse areas of expertise, enabling early identification of
potential risks, sometimes when it’s just a whisper. The diagram
below sets out the effective risk management structure of
Hayleys Group, reflecting the evolving nature of this increasingly
important function.

RISK
- MANAGEMENT
% FRAMEWORK
o
2

DEPARTMENT & AREA OF FOCUS

Management Audit & System Review Department (MA&SRD)
Manage risks at a strategic level whereas MA&SRD approach it
primarily from a risk mitigation and management perspective

Responsible for collating risk registers, constructively challenging
them and presenting to Group Management Committee, Audit
Committee and the Board.
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Strategic Business Development Unit
* Monitoring the PESTEL factors
to identify new opportunities as
well as assess risks related to the
opportunities

* Review risk from a portfolio
perspective

PESTEL ANALYSIS

Political
Economic
Social
Technological
Environmental
Legal

\§

Group Treasury
«  Management of foreign exchange
risk and interest rate risk

*  Managing Group liquidity and
funding, including cost of funding

Group Finance & Sustainability
*  Manages Group financial
performance and resilience

* Review and monitor non-financial
indicators to identify areas of
concern and opportunities to
optimise resource allocation

Group Procurement

*  Manage risks across the supply
chain and ensure availability of raw
materials

* Ensure that finished goods are
shipped out on time

Group Human Resources

* Managing risks relating to human
resources through effective
recruitment and monitoring
processes

Group Insurance

*  Managing the financial risks relating
to group employees and other
assets through insurance covers.

Group IT

+ Responsible for safeguarding
the digital infrastructure and
information assets of the Group

* Surveillance to assess control

e Cybersecurity

The dynamic risk landscape has seen
risk move to the top of the GMC,
Audit Committee and Board agendas
throughout the Group. The Chairman
himself spends a significant amount of
time with the heads of the Corporate
functions to determine potential

risk areas and prioritise them. The
experience of the past two years
have proved valuable in maintaining
a disciplined approach towards risk
management. It taught us to tide over
the short term and drive growth in
our businesses with the support of
willing teams across the Group. This
approach of understanding the risks,
opportunities, impacts and outcomes
to drive optimal resource allocation
across all our businesses is firmly
entrenched in our businesses and
epitomises the integrated thinking of
the Board, the Group Management
Committee and the leadership teams
across all our sectors.

STRATEGIC RISKS

The strength of the Hayleys Group
lies in its diversity across industry
sectors and its geographical reach
across business locations and revenue

markets. However, this also increases
the number of risks it is exposed to
although the impact is cushioned due
to diversification as observed in the
past three years. The following graphs
provide insights into the Group’s
diversification of risks.

INDUSTRY DIVERSITY

TOTAL ASSETS COMPOSITIONS

4
17 8
F oS
15 8
3
3 4
4 6
20
M Eco Solutions B Consumer & Retail
M Hand Protection M Leisure
Purification Products B Industry Input &
[ Textiles Power and Energy
W Construction Materials Transportation &
M Plantations Logistics
Agriculture [ Others

TOTAL LIABILITIES COMPOSITIONS

%

Eco Solutions W Consumer & Retalil
Hand Protection M Leisure
Purification Products M Industry Input &

Textiles Power and Energy
Construction Materials Transportation &
Plantations Logistics
Agriculture [ Others
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REVENUE COMPOSITION

%

18 4 3 3
20 n 1l
20
1 1 10
48 25 2
n 1
7 9
3
1 6 3 3 A
7 25
13 13 5 7
W Asia (excluding Sri Lanka) M Eco Solutions W Consumer & Retail M Eco Solutions W Consumer & Retail
M Australia M Hand Protection M Leisure M Hand Protection M Leisure
Europe Purification Products M Industry Input & Purification Products M Industry Input &
[ United States of America [ Textiles Power and Energy W Textiles Power and Energy
M Africa I Construction Materials ' Transportation & M Construction Materials 8 Transportation &
M Indirect exports M Plantations Logistics M Plantations Logistics
Sri Lanka Agriculture %1 Others Agriculture % Others

The Group’s reputation is a critical factor for the Group, carefully nurtured over 144 years managed at all levels of the Group.
Embedding stakeholder engagement and ESG principles into all our businesses has been a key initiative that serves to
mitigate the reputation risk through a shared Lifecode. Innovation has always featured prominently in our success, driving
our growth as reflected in Intellectual Capital on pages 262 to 269. Understanding consumer behaviour is a key part of our
business as our products must be relevant to customers.

OUR TOP RISKS

Risks are assessed in line with the adjacent matrix and a score is obtained for each type of risk, facilitating identification of
common risks, aggregation and prioritisation. These are presented to the Group Management Committee, Audit Committee
and the Board and used for decision making including the strategic direction of growth and resource allocation. This year, we
present our risks in two time horizons based on the assumption that the country will recover from its present economic crisis.

Time Horizon: 1 Year Time Horizon: 3 Year

_ 5,20 _ 6,9, 23
High High
> >
- -
= 2 14
3 1,3,18 3 25 1,3, 4, 5,
g Med g Med 15, 21
o o
[+ 4 [+ 4
o o
12,17,19 4,1, 22, 10,13 12,17, 18, 7,11,13, 24, 10, 16, 20
Low | | 23,24, 25 Low | 49 22 25
Low Med High Low Med High
IMPACT IMPACT
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RISKS & OPPORTUNITIES

HAYLEYS GROUP - RISK ASSESSMENT MATRIX
One Year Time Horizon

Probability = Risk
(Probability
X Likelihood)

Severity
Impact on of
Business Occurrence

No. Risk Exposure Description of Risks & Potential Impact

Geo Political
Risk

52% of Group turnover is derived from exports

As an investment company, it depends on dividends from
subsidiaries

Tea export business exposure to Russia and Middle East
can impact dividends from the sector

Local Political
Risk

48% of Group turnover is derived locally
Manufacturing facilities are located throughout the island
Majority of the workforce are local

Unstable political environment can have a significant
impact on operations, and negatively impact dividend
income

Environment
Risk

The Group owns biological assets in the plantation sector
which are heavily dependent on favourable weather
patterns.

Additionally, the agriculture sector is directly impacted by
weather patterns.

A number of other sectors are also directly or indirectly
impacted by climate change in varying degrees.

Increased calls for tighter environmental regulation by
climate change champions.

Increased
Competition

Players in the Asian region have ramped up production
with production growth outplacing the uptick in
demand resulting in intense price competition.

This will likely impact both export market and the
domestic market exerting pressure on both top and
bottom lines

Subdued Demand for products may weaken in markets due to the

Demand reduced disposable incomes/current political & economic
situation in SL and buildup of inventory during the year,
impacting top line growth.

Economic Economic instability due to higher budget deficit, higher

Risk current account deficit, high unemployment, higher

inflation and balance of payment deficits may lead to
possible downgrading of country’s sovereign credit
rating. this can have an adverse impact to companies
business operations and its cross-border transactions and
international trade businesses
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5 Year Time Horizon

Severity Probability ' Risk Rationale for
Impact on of Change
Business Occurrence

Action Plan/Mitigating Activities

Diversified export markets
Focused growth in selected markets
Increased penetration in stable markets

Revenue diversification in export and local operations

Maintained at the
same rate due to
Russo-Ukrain war

Coordinated response on environmental risks by Group
sustainability and sector sustainability champions

Setting environmental targets to be achieved by 2030
Group environmental policies revised and implemented

Investment in reducing the Group' s carbon and water
footprint with improved access to market

Increase environmental certifications
Strengthen environmental management system

Drive responsible consumption practices throughout the
Group

Increase employee environmental consciousness through
training and other initiatives.

Cautiously optimistic
that a bailout from
the IMF and other
multilateral agencies
will set the country
on the right path to
recovery

We expect this
to be a relatively
low priority for
policymakers as
they strive to get
the economy on
track, deferring
a coordinated
response to the
environmental
threats

Aggressive client acquisition in export markets

Increased focus on strengthening presence in export
markets

Diversification of export markets

Differentiated customer value proposition in domestic
market

ESG compliance and certification to gain access to
markets and also drive strategic differentiation

We expect regional
competition to
intensify as we grow
and level up in global
markets

Diversification across market and product categories
Forward contracts with key buyers
Focus on new customer acquisition

Explore feasibility of establishing distribution presence in
key export market

Consumer demand
will have moderate
growth and flexible
strategies will align
our own growth to
cater to the new
norms

Diversification of the affected sectors to operate in
environments beyond Sri Lanka to reduce the over
dependency on the local economy

Group maintains strong relationships with relevant
stakeholders, lobby groups and banking partners
which plays a vital role in influencing progress towards
economic stability within the country.

We expect the Group
to build resilience

to economic cycles
to weather the low
to moderate growth
forecasts for the
global economy
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One Year Time Horizon

No. Risk Exposure Description of Risks & Potential Impact Severity Probability Risk

Impact on of (Probability
. Business . Occurrence x Likelihood)

Liquidity « Financial stress and impaired ability to meet future debt
and financial obligations
stability 3 3
8 Interest Rate  + Interest rate volatility will have a significant impact on
Risk the Group, increasing the costs of finance and minimising
profits. This can also lead to a change in credit ratings.
3 3
9 Foreign e 52% of group turnover is derived from exports
Currency and . R4y material imports will be negatively impacted from
Exchange LKR depreciation
Rate Risk ) .
a : * Therefore, exchange risk fluctuation can have both a
positive and negative impact on dividend income 3 3
* The regulator has imposed a restriction on forward
exchange contracts for foreign currency purchases.
* Due to high dollar shortage difficulty of remitting the
principal balances both in Airlines and shipping lines
CREDIT RISK
10  Counterparty <« Company has provided corporate guarantees to
Risk subsidiaries of the Company
* A default by any of these subsidiaries can result in liability
exposure 3 1 3
1 Credit Risk * Increasing working capital cycle stressing cashflow
management
« Potential losses due to impairment of receivables 2 1 2
* Inability of banks to honour fair USD and LKR deposits
honour timely manner
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5 Year Time Horizon

Action Plan/Mitigating Activities Severity Probability Risk Rationale for

Impact on of Change
 Business . Occurrence

* Increase oversight on liquidity by Board and GMC
* Management of liquidity by Group Treasury

* Strong cashflow generation during the year

« Strengthened financial stability

Group efforts to
build financial
resilience to weather
potential shocks is
expected to reduce
the liquidity risk

* Debt repayment utilising divestment of low yielding
investments

* Use of both fixed and floating rate instruments when
debt funding is structured

* Refinancing of long-term loans at low interest rates

* Maintain an appropriate mix of floating rate and fixed rate
debt structure

« Use of interest rate swaps in maintaining a proper mix of
floating rate debt Vs fixed rate debt

* Close monitoring of interest rate movement with an
intention of restructuring the debt mix (fixed Vs floating
and LTL Vs STL)

Stabilisation of
interest rates and
our own resilience
is expected to
moderate the risk

* Growth in export revenue
* Matching of forex receivables with forex payables

* Use of synthetic forward foreign exchange contracts
within Group Companies in hedging payables and
receivables when there is a mis-match

* Use of currency swaps in managing the forex risk
associated with forex debt

* Close monitoring of forex movements with an intention of
adopting appropriate hedging mechanisms

* Monthly evaluation of net open exposure for forex

The Group plans

to grow its export
businesses to restore
its former position as
a net exporter

« Corporate governance and regular monitoring of
performance of these subsidiaries

We do not expect

a change in the
level of risk as these
guarantees maybe
replaced by others
in the course of
business

* Implement Group Credit Risk Management Policy
* Oversight of sector liquidity by Group Treasury

* Increased rigour over receivables by all Audit Committees
and sectors

» Strengthened credit processes across businesses sectors

We will strengthen
credit controls to
manage this risk
which is expected to
increase.
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No. Risk Exposure Description of Risks & Potential Impact

OPERATIONAL RISK

12 Reputational Company is considered as a leading conglomerate in Sri
Risk Lanka and overseas
Negative PR due to foreseen or any unforeseen event can
have a significant impact on Company
13 Business Subsidiary business interruption mainly due to COVID 19
Interruption outbreak
Risk Health and safety of employees
Business interruption will have a negative impact on
subsidiary performance and will impact dividend payout
14  Increasing Commodity price are expected to increase by 30% in
raw material 2021/22 as demand picks up with countries emerging
prices and from the pandemic. This will exert pressure on margins as
discontinuation headroom for passing on price increases is limited in the
of key supply current economic environment.
chains
15  Access The foreign exchange liquidity crisis has led to a shortage
to steady of all type of fuel disrupting logistics and increasing costs
supplies
of fuel and
energy
16  Continuous Export company margins are eroded due to increased
increase of costs of freight making exports less attractive
freigr_\t rates Reduction of shipping and freight space due to higher
and limited demand and non availability of containers
availability
of shipping
space
17 Employee Loss of working hours, loss of lives, increase in costs
Health
and Safety
including
Occupational
Health
18  High staff Due to high staff turnover of skilled employees the
turnover and tourism industry has been severely impacted.
Employee Migration is a significant contributing factor
Relations

Disputes may result in trade union actions
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5 Year Time Horizon

‘ Action Plan/Mitigating Activities ‘ Severity ‘ Probability Risk ‘ Rationale for

Impact on of Change
 Business . Occurrence

Focused PR management
Integrating ESG Framework throughout all businesses
Upward movement in credit rating

Business diversification
Employee vaccination

Remote working and work formm home to maintain social
distancing

Internal COVID task force have been appointed to
manage risk

This is non-
negotiable in setting
the risk appetite

Daily monitoring of raw material prices
Forward booking where possible

Build up of sufficient inventory while balancing liquidity
and other constraints such as potential for price volatility
due to new waves of pandemic and order pipelines

Expanding upstream supply chains

Pandemic will remain
on our risk radar
even though we
expect the COVID-19
pandemic to reach
endemicity this year

As the world goes
into ecological
overshoot, supply
issues are likely to
remain a key concern

Daily monitoring of fuel quantities and prices
Storage capacities for fuel have been increased

Build up of sufficient inventory levels at all companies/
factories

Task force has been appointed and regular meetings to
manage both space and rates.

Expert knowledge of Group Freight Management to
resolve any rate/space issues.

Consolidation of shipments to get best rates.

While the shortages
are expected to be
resolved in the near
term, costs of fossil
fuels are expected
to increase with the
gradual withdrawal
of fuel subsidies

Comprehensive safety protocols in place to manage the
COVID-19 pandemic

Occupational health and safety certifications throughout
the Group facilitate prevention of serious injuries

High levels of health and safety awareness nurtured as
part of the Group culture

We expect this

to ease over the
medium term as
issues get resolved

Employee health
and safety is critical
to us and necessary
actions are taken

to minimise risks to
them

Progressive HR policies

Maintaining cordial relationships with employees across
all employee categories

We expect the brain
drain to abate with
economic recovery
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One Year Time Horizon

Probability = Risk
of (Probability
Occurrence  x Likelihood)

Severity
Impact on
 Business

No. Risk Exposure Description of Risks & Potential Impact

Legal Risk

19 Possible legal fees, fines, penalties and payouts
20 Compliance * The operations of the Company should be compliant
Risk based on local regulations and laws

» Currently each division is responsible for meeting
compliance requirements (e.g. CAU regarding accounting,
treasury dept. regarding credit facilities, IT for software
registration)

* There is no compliance officer overlooking overall
compliance for the Company

21 Data * Data risk is the potential loss related to data
Protection « An Information Protection Policy is in place
Risk and IT . : )
* Current challenges faced by us obtaining timely licenses
Governance ) )
due to some partners not having USD to pay for licenses.
22 Information « Use of cloud base applications and platforms. Services
System can be affected due to global geopolitical situation.
Availability « Availability of the Infrastructure. Services can be affected
Risk due to Infrastructure failure.

e Current shortage of technology equipment as well as
shipment delays resulting non-availability of certain
critical technology components.

23 Cyber Cyber Attacks or Ransomware attacks. Group System

Security Risk

availability and welbsites can be affected due to such
attacks.

INVESTMENT RISK

24 Investment e The probability or uncertainty of losses rather than
Risk expected profit from investment

* Hayleys PLC's primary investment is in shares of
subsidiary companies and associates. Expected return is
dividends.

* Geo political, economic, sector specific or company
specific issues which can have a negative impact on
subsidiary performance, thus impacting expected returns
for Hayleys PLC

ENVIRONMENT RISKS

25 Extreme Damages to property and loss of lives
weather
events

We are the Hayleys Group @ Leadership & Governance @ Unlocking Value e Management Discussion & Analysis ® Financial Statements
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5 Year Time Horizon

‘ Action Plan/Mitigating Activities ‘ Severity ‘ Probability Risk ‘ Rationale for

Impact on of Change
 Business . Occurrence

Timely action and follow up

We expect this to

remain manageable
due to our
compliance culture

Regular training

Comprehensive policy framework
Certifications

Internal audits

We expect this to
remain manageable
due to our
compliance culture

Data Protection Policy
Have a Insurance Policy
Negotiating with relevant Partners to pay on time.

Efforts will be
made to maintain
these risks within
manageable levels

Mitigation activities in place.
Obtain a Cyber Security Insurance Policy
Hiring of certain IT equipment

Efforts will be
made to maintain
these risks within
manageable levels

Have appropriate tools and teams to mitigate the risk.

Insurance policies are in place for computer hardware
Business continuity plans

Efforts will be made
to maintain cyber
threats at this level

Hayleys PLC investments are diversified

Review of budgets, performance of each sector on a
regular basis

Investment risk
is maintained at
a manageable
level through
diversification

Regular safety review meetings

Monitoring sustainability report for H&S incidents and
identifying increasing trends

Annual check of effectiveness of fire extinguishers
Adequate insurance arrangements

We expect climate
change to be a

key concern as
extreme weather
event become more
frequent
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RISKS & OPPORTUNITIES

ACQUISITIONS

The Group has a strong history of

INVESTMENT IN
RENEWABLE ENERGY

growth through acquisition and has
a finely-honed team in place for the
purpose with the expertise required.
A strengthened cashflow position
supports our aspirations for growth
together with a strong talent pool of
leaders and aspiring leaders who are
eager for opportunities for growth.
The year under review saw the
acquisition and turnaround of South
Asia Textiles enhancing the capabilities
of the Textiles sector.

N

DIVERSIFICATION

Strategic investments
to further diversify the
Group geographically
and by investing

into emerging

sectors. Geographical
diversification also
enables movement

to sources of raw
material, markets, more
favourable business
climates and cost
structures. Itis also a
potential opportunity to
further strengthen the
value proposition of the
Group to customers.

OPPORTUNITIES
An analysis of the PESTLE factors, Group
risks and its resources have identified

the following potential areas and
opportunities for growth.

EXPAND CAPACITY

A
(2@
Investments in expanding

capacity where thereis a

sustainable growth forecast is
also an option, as it enables us

to leverage our knowledge and
expertise to drive volume growth.

TALENT PIPELINE & SUCCESSION HONOURING OUR

COMMITMENT TO ESG

v

Growth in world trade is expected to
moderate to 5% in 2022 as supply chain
disruptions increase due to the Russo-
Ukraine war. Freight costs and capacity
are expected to remain a key concern
during this year as well.

Government policy is key to how we do
business. Policy direction is critical to
managing risk. Given the current level of
economic stress, policy plays a key roles
in shaping outcomes, not just for the year
ahead but in the medium term as well.

The Group has a portfolio of
investments in renewable energy and
there are opportunities for investments
in this sector in line with the country’s
long-term power generation plan.
Additionally, the increasing cost of fuel
and electricity will reduce payback
periods of investments in alternative
energy solutions at manufacturing
locations, supporting investments

in solar energy that will reduce
dependency on the main grid and fuel.
information technology

DIGITALISATION

The agriculture policies
have resulted in poor
yields, threatening the
food security of the
country which also has

no means to secure
imports. This is happening
against a backdrop of
world shortages of wheat
and other food items
leaving little headroom
for securing additional
supplies.

SUSTAINABLE
INNOVATION

Soaring inflation will
increase pressure on
wages, increasing
economic hardship
for the people

EXPAND PRESENCE ALONG
VALUE CHAIN

-

All these factors will combine to change
consumer behaviours throughout the
world and predicting trends will be key
to managing finite resources.

We are the Hayleys Group @ Leadership & Governance @ Unlocking Value e Management Discussion & Analysis ® Financial Statements
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INFORMATION WE SHARE IN OUR PORTFOLIO REVIEW

OPERATING

LANDSCAPE

High level
overview of the
developments
that shaped the
relevant industry
landscape during
the year.

STRATEGY &
RESOURCE
ALLOCATION

The Sector’s key
strategic priorities
during the year,
the resources
allocated for each
strategy and

how we measure
progress

INTEGRATED
PERFORMANCE
OVERVIEW

Concise yet
comprehensive
overview of
the Sector’s
financial, social,
environmental
and economic
performance

COMMITMENT
TO HAYLEYS
LIFECODE GOALS

The Sector’s
alignment to
Sustainable
Development
Goals and
progress made
to the aspirations
of the Hayleys
Lifecode

PLANS &
OUTLOOKS

The future
operating
dynamics of the
industry assessed
through a PESTEL
framework and
our plans for the
future, classified
as immediate/
short-term plans
and medium/long-
term plans.

PORTFOLIO REVIEW

Ve

Eco Solutions

pages 121 to 130

Agriculture

pages 179 to 188

Hand Protection

pages 131 to 140

Consumer & Retail

pages 189 to 198

Purification

pages 141 to 148

Leisure

pages 199 to 206

Textiles

pages 149 to 158

Industry Inputs, Power & Energy

pages 207 to 216

Construction Materials

pages 159 to 168

Transportation & Logistics

pages 217 to 226

Plantations

pages 169 to 178

Others

pages 227 to 229
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PORTFOLIO REVIEW

o

ECO SOLUTIONS

The Eco Solutions is Sri Lanka’s pioneering and leading manufacturers of value-added coconut fibre
products, with a global reputation for quality, innovation and tailor-made solutions.
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ECO SOLUTIONS

MARKET POSITION

Sri Lanka’s leading Products sold Array of over
manufacturer in over 80 1,000 products
of value-added countries in 70 markets
coconut fibre
products

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND STABILITY

&) &)

REVENUE PAT
Rs. 11.13 bn Rs. 1.50 bn
(+42%) (+127%)
& 2.

ASSETS LIABILITIES
Rs. 17.52 bn Rs. 8.14 bn
(+34%) (+57%)

The Sector delivered the highest profitability in its operating
history, supported by strong volume growth and increased
penetration in new markets

INCREASING RELIANCE ON RENEWABLE ENERGY

tCO,e %
6,000 70
4,000 60
2,000 50
0 0
2019 2020 2021 2022

M Renewable energy M carbon footprint
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STRATEGIC PRIORITIES 2021/22

&, ©

Market diversification Backward integration and Supporting employee Strategic focus on eco-
and new product effective management of safety and well-being fibre segment
development upstream value chain

ECONOMIC IMPACT

USD 43.67 mn 80% Significant local
Foreign exchange generated Local sourcing value addition

NEW MARKETS AND NURTURING
PRODUCTS HUMAN CAPITAL

Strategic focus on ensuring health
and safety of employees and

achieved 100% vaccination rate

o 1 °

New markets

Rs. 0.44 mn
Training investment

—O 69

New customers

W Ccu r 46
Promotions

-0 43

New products
Rs. 854.17 mn

Value to employees
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ECO SOLUTIONS

SECTOR OVERVIEW

A
BH

—

BRUSHWARE

Pioneer in the brush market,
catering to both the local and
international markets

Contribution to Sector
Revenue: 17%
PBT: 7%

Performance 2021/22
Revenue: 20% growth
PBT: 159% growth

FLOOR COVERING

Manufacturer of coir, rubber, and
flocked door mats

Contribution to Sector
Revenue: 24%
PBT: 14%

Performance 2021/22
Revenue: 32% growth
PBT: 322% growth

S
( 1\
ECO FIBRE

Manufactured a range of value-
added coir fibre products

Contribution to Sector
Revenue: 59%
PBT: 79%

Performance 2021/22
Revenue: 36% growth
PBT: 126% growth

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT

Coconut fibre based finished products
exports from Sri Lanka recorded strong
growth during the year, with volume
and value increasing by a respective
19% and 32% in 2021. COVID-19 led
disruptions continued to impact
operators during the year, affecting
access to market, operations and
supply chain partners during the year.
Meanwhile, product cost increased in
view of the surge in freight costs while
lead time to customers lengthened

in view of shipping constraints

and disruptions to global logistics
networks. Despite these challenges
demand remained resilient and posted
strong recovery towards the latter part
of the year, with the Eco-Fibre Sub-
Sector demonstrating strong potential
for growth.

VALUE ADDED FIBRE-BASED
PRODUCT EXPORTS

Rs. mn
35,000
30,000
25,000
20,000
15,000
10,000

5,000
]

Coir Coir mats Moulded  Tawashi
brooms and rugs coir brushes

and brushes products
for use in
horticulture

2018 W 2019 [ 2020 W 2021
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+12%
Coconut crop

+13.7%
Average retail
price of coconut

+13%
Growth forecast
(2021-2026)

STRATEGY & RESOURCE ALLOCATION

125

Developments in 2021/22 . Implications on the Sector @

Sri Lanka’s coconut production reached
a record-high during the year supported
by favourable weather patterns and
conducive temperature.

Prices of coconuts remained elevated
for most part of the year, due to
increased demand from industries.
The Maximum Retail Price imposed for
coconuts were revoked in June 2021

The long-term outlook for eco-fibre
products remains positive, supported
by increased prevalence towards eco-
friendly products and more stringent
environmental regulations in major
export markets

+ Easing of local supply chain
disruptions, given the increase in supply
of input materials

- Increase in cost of raw materials and
cost of production

+ Strong growth potential in eco-fibre,
particularly in growing media

The Sector’s strategy during the year was consistent with the growth agenda it has pursued in recent years and centered
on entering new markets, seeking increased penetration in existing markets and widening the product portfolio through
ongoing innovation. Disruptions to both supply chains and distribution networks during the year, resulted in the lengthening
of lead times, which prompted the Sector to effectively manage both the upstream and downstream value chains through
proactive demand planning, inventory build-up and close engagement with customers. The Sector also leveraged its strong
R&D capabilities to drive continued innovation, thereby facilitating entry into new markets and driving increased penetration

of existing markets.

.
STRATEGIC PRIORITY RESOURCES ALLOCATED E

Market diversification
through pursuing entry
into new markets

Effective management
of upstream and
downstream value chain

New product
development with
strategic focus on the
eco-fibre segment

@ Rs. 163.21 bn
Sales & marketing expense

Rs. 100.04 mn

Investment in backward
integration

5 Heads
Strength of R&D team

>11

New markets entered

69

Customers acquired

75

New suppliers added

43

New products launched

47

Products in the pipeline
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ECO SOLUTIONS

INTEGRATED PERFORMANCE REVIEW

-
A SECTOR FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
—=== 10% volume growth
——— Rs. mn Rs. mn
2500 20,000
" ™
9 Rs. 854.17 bn payments to 844 employees 1900
s B 15,000
Lz) 1300
) 10,000
‘Et : 2: 69 new customers acquired 700
T
E- 100 5,000
o 62‘{ Rs. 8.86 bn (+63%) payments to suppliers - .
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
X Operating profit — Revenue — Total assets
. 65% reliance on renewable energy consumed = PBT _ Total liabilities
_

The Sector recorded strong top line
growth of 42%, driven by penetration
into new markets, robust demand for
eco-fibre products and development of
new products. Operating profitability
was affected by the increase in the
price of raw materials, resulting in

the Earnings Before Interest and Tax
(EBIT) margin narrowing to 6% from
8% the year before. Overall profitability
was, however, supported by exchange
gains arising from the depreciation of
the Rupee towards the latter part of
the year. Resultantly, the Sector’s Pre-
Tax-Profit increased by 132% to Rs.1.77
bn during the year.

In recent years, the Sector has focused
on diversifying its markets and made
significant progress in penetrating
new markets across several regions
including Europe and South America.
The Sector’s manufacturing operations
in India have also aided entry into new
markets while mitigating risks through
geographical diversification. Revenue
from new markets amounted to Rs.
14715 mn during the year.

The Sector’s product strategy in recent
years has centered on expanding

the eco-fibre range for which we see
significant growth potential. Grow
bags delivered good growth during the
year, supported by the Sector’s ability
to manufacture a range of customised

offerings suited for specific markets.
Research and development capabilities
continue to be a vital element of the
Sector’s competitive edge and during
the year we launched 43 new products
including a rice seedling pad which
has seen an encouraging response
fromn markets pursuing mechanised
agriculture. The Sector has continued
to leverage its R&D capabilities to
formulate innovative products that
offer sustainable solutions to address
emerging environmental challenges
such as soil erosion, waste to landfill
and limited availability of land for
cultivation.

Following the surge in COVID-19
infections during the year and
resultant lockdowns, the Sector

sought to ensure the well-being of
employees through establishing

a dedicated Taskforce to lead
COVID-19 mitigation efforts. The
Sector successfully obtained the
COVID safety certification from SGS
Lanka and achieved a vaccination

rate of 100% (both doses) among

its employees. Investments were
directed towards enhancing employee
facilities while strategic emphasis

was placed on ensuring the safety of
our employees through facilitating
vaccinations and offering ongoing
support for all infected employees and
their families. Meanwhile, given the
increase in operational activity, the
Sector absorbed contract workers to
the permanent cadre.

A SUSTAINABLE PRODUCT PORTFOLIO

4 N N

Erosion control
products which
preserves soil
quality

Seedling pads
facilitating
mechanised
agriculture

4 N N

Growing media
encourages
cultivation in

areas of limited
arable land

Eco friendly
mats featuring
biodegradable

properties

\_ J )
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As a Sector which is reliant on agricultural raw materials, we are inevitably
exposed to vagaries in weather patterns which can in turn lead to volatile

prices and interruptions to supply. In addressing this challenge, the Sector has
increasingly sought backward integration, seeking to develop inhouse fibre
extracting capabilities while expanding local sourcing channels. Recent efforts

to increase reliance on local material and thereby eliminate the use of imported
palmyrah fibre through expanding our collection centres paid dividends during the
year, with nearly 80% of the Sector’s raw materials now sourced locally. This also
enables the Sector to drive economic empowerment through supporting over 100
livelihoods, most of which are in economically vulnerable areas.

The Sector has increasingly focused on renewable energy, as part of its emission
reduction journey. During the year, energy generated from bio-mass sources
accounted for 65% of total energy consumption, enabling the Sector to reduce
reliance on fossil-fuel based energy sources. While the Sector’s carbon footprint
increased by 20% due to increased operational activity, carbon intensity (as
measured by emissions per turnover Rs. mn) declined by 15% during the year.
Ongoing efforts to rationalise water consumption led to a 12% decline in the
Sector’s water use during the year, water intensity declined by a sharper 38%
during the year.

STAKEHOLDER VALUE CREATION

EMPLOYEES
Rs. 854.17 mn
(+27%)
Payments to employees Rs.mn
3,500
Rs. 120.12 mn
Investment in safety 3,000
Proactive measures to mitigate the 2500
risk of cross infection and support 2000
well-being
1,500
........................................................... o 1000 o
SUPPLIERS 500
Rs. 8.86 bn o
Payments to suppliers 2021 2022
B Employees
10% M Government

[ Shareholders
W Capital as lenders
Value retained

Small-scale suppliers

Ensured continued value injection
to our suppliers through ethical
procurement practices

127

QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE TRENDS

Rs.mn Rs.mn
3,500 1,200
3,000 1,000
2,500 800
2,000

600
1,500
1,000 400
500 200
0] (0]
Ql Q2 Q3 Q4
[ Revenue
— PBT

SHAREHOLDERS
24%

Return on equity °
Rs. 339.72 mn
Dividends for the year
Achieved highest profitability in the
Sector’s operating history

GOVERNMENT
USD 43.67 mn

Foreign exchange
generated

The Sector’s operations have
significant local value addition
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ECO SOLUTIONS

PROGRESS AGAINST LIFECODE GOALS FOR YEAR 2030 AND ALIGNMENT TO SDG

Supplier

58% increase in payments
to suppliers with 44%
development consisting of small-scale

15% reduction in emission At least 70 suppliers in the area
bl intensity supported by suppliers
€D/ increased energy efficiency developed from

the area

Customer
management
65% customer
coverage for
satisfaction
surveys

Energy and
Emissions

10% reduction 65 customer surveys

conducted during
the year and 97% of
complaints resolved

Water Engaged

team
management S
1% redgct'\on i 0.5% reduction in
38% re-ducthn In ) water iﬂtensity annual attrition 3% employee turnover
water intensity driven rate High retention rates reflecting
by increased focus on

ncre the Sector’s strong employee
optimising water usage value proposition

OUTLOOK & PLANS

The Sector is expected to be relatively resilient to the ongoing economic crisis given its limited reliance on imported raw
materials. Key downside risks stem from shortages in fuel and interruptions to energy supply, which could impact continuity
of our operations as well as our suppliers. Meanwhile the rising interest rate scenario is expected to impact profitability
through higher finance costs in the short-to-medium term. Demand is expected to remain robust with strong growth potential
in selected product categories, such as growing media, erosion control and horticulture. While global logistical challenges
arising from shipping constraints are likely to prevail in the short-term, the Sector has taken proactive measures to address
these challenges through forward integration and engaging closely with customers to ensure that lead times are manageable.

As one of Sri Lanka’s leading exporters in the fibre-industry, we are keen to support the country’s economic recovery through
local value addition and the generation of valuable foreign exchange income. The Sector will therefore seek aggressive
penetration of new markets, leveraging its R&D capabilities to drive introduce new products catering to emerging market
requirements. Capacity expansion plans are on the cards and the Sector intends to invest close to Rs.1.7 bn in expanding its
rubber and polymer product range. The Sector’s short, medium and long-term risks and opportunities are summarised below:

We are the Hayleys Group @ Leadership & Governance @ Unlocking Value ® Management Discussion & Analysis ® Financial Statements
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Political instability
o——=a ey

& Fluctuations in raw material prices

& Shortages in fuel supply

Labour shortages in agricultural supply chain
[

Implications of climate change on raw material supply
[

Regulations pertaining to foreign
L exchange earnings

Political

Environmental

Legal

Favourable exchange rate 2

Growth potential in new products and markets 9

Rapid urbanisation o

Mechanisation of agriculture

Cultivation in urban areas
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ECO SOLUTIONS

Response and Plans

Short-term Medium-to-long term

* Rationalise front-end supply chain strategy *  Market development through forming new partnerships

) o ) with major distributors in key markets

* Focus on service excellence to optimise lead times

*  Pursue growth in the South American market * Enhance value added portfolio through capacity

) ) : . i d R&D

*  New product launches in planting materials business expansionan

« Launch of new products/varieties in horticulture exports « Expansion of Indian manufacturing plant
and landscaping

*«  Develop and promote own-branded products

Financial objectives

Short-term financial objectives Medium to long-term financial
objectives

ROCE 27% ROCE 30%

ROE 16% ROE 20%

Gearing <50%
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PORTFOLIO REVIEW

Dipped Products PLC is a global leader in protective hand-wear serving close to 5% of the global demand
for natural and synthetic-latex based household and industrial gloves. The Group manufactures an array
of high-quality, innovative and sustainably manufactured gloves which are sold in over 70 countries

across the world.
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HAND PROTECTION

MARKET POSITION

Among the top USD 82 mn of 5
household and Sri Lanka’s glove manufacturing
industrial glove exports facilities in
manufacturers in Sri Lanka and
the world Thailand

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND STABILITY

&) &)

REVENUE PAT
Rs. 37.86 bn Rs. 4.05 bn
(+25%) (-8%)
E
ASSETS LIABILITIES
Rs. 35.30 bn Rs. 19.24 bn
(+28%) (+17%)

The Sector delivered the highest revenue in its operating history,
driven by 10% volume growth and a favourable product mix

STRENGTHENING OUR MANUFACTURED CAPITAL

Rs. 3.11 bn
Capital Expenditure
2020
2021
2022

0 1,000 2000 3000 4,000 Rs.mn
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STRATEGIC PRIORITIES 2021/22

Capacity expansion
across all key product
categories

New product development
focusing on supported
gloves, premium offerings
and sustainable products

Expansion of local
supply chain

Q

Acquisition of new
customers in the
European region

MANAGING OUR ENVIRONMENTAL FOOTPRINT THROUGH RESOURCE EFFICIENCY

O\ 1%

Water recycled

i

93%

Reliance on renewable energy

24%

Reduction in water intensity

NEW
PRODUCTS

—0 20

new products

—o 5
Patents applied

—0 Rs. 317.32 mn
Revenue generated
fromm new products

20%

Reduction in carbon intensity

NURTURING
HUMAN CAPITAL

Certified as a

GREAT PLACE TO WORK

Rs. 15.34 mn

Training investment

+35

Promotions

Rs. 4.35 bn

Value to employees

133
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HAND PROTECTION

SECTOR OVERVIEW

@)

@)

@)

-

N__/ A ( N/ 1 ( N_/ A
4 manufacturing facilities Distribution arm in ltaly, supplying Manufacturing facility in Thailand
producing a range of household our products to the European producing disposable gloves
and industrial gloves market
Contribution to Sector
Contribution to Sector Contribution to Sector Revenue: 19%
Revenue: 46% Revenue: 35% PBT: 27%
PBT: 60% PBT: 13%
Performance 2021/22
Performance 2021/22 Performance 2021/22 Revenue: 16% growth
Revenue: 23% growth Revenue: 22% growth PBT: 27% growth
PBT: 23% growth PBT: -69% growth
g J - J g J
OPERATING ENVIRONMENT RUBBER CULTIVATION IN SRI LANKA
Global demand for disposable gloves
moderated from the record-highs of Kg mn Rs/kg
the previous year reflecting increased 85 500
inventory holding by customers in the 400
first year of the pandemic. Demand 80
for household and industrial gloves, 300
however, remained robust during
the year, due to a general increase 75 200
in hygiene and safety awareness 100
following the outbreak of the

pandemic. While demand dynamics
remained generally favourable to the
Sector, pandemic-led disruptions to
both global and local supply chains
together with a sharp increase in the
cost of input materials resulted in an
escalation in costs. This was further
exacerbated by the shortage in foreign
currency and sharp depreciation of
the Rupee, which affected our packing
material and other suppliers relying on
imported materials.

6] 0
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

@ Production — Cost of production
— Colombo Auction Price (RSS1)
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31%
Increase in rubber
prices (RSS1)

+47%

Increase in Sri

Lanka’s rubber
glove exports

4

13%
Growth forecasted
(2021-2026)

STRATEGY & RESOURCE ALLOCATION

135

Developments in 2021/22 . Implications on the Sector @

In line with the escalation in global natural
rubber prices, domestic prices at the
Colombo Rubber Auction along with the
FOB prices increased significantly during
the year.

Export of rubber products including
gloves, recorded strong growth during
the year, emerging as Sri Lanka’s third
largest exporter after garments and tea.

With stocks gradually depleting across
the distribution channels, demand is
expected to gain momentum in 2022,
with strong growth expected in the
supported glove category

-Direct impact on cost of production
and profitability margins

-Implications on price competitiveness
in the global market

+ Opportunity to support Sri Lanka’s
foreign exchange crisis through
generating export income

+DPL is aptly positioned to capitalise
on opportunities presented by the
anticipated growth in supported gloves
+Opportunity to pursue growth in new
markets

The Sector successfully navigated the numerous external challenges that prevailed during the year, to continue operations
uninterrupted and ensure that customer requirements were fulfilled in a timely manner. Supply chain disruptions for natural
latex, were addressed through increasing reliance on local farmers through expanding the DPL Firstlight network. The Sector
worked closely with its ecosystem of suppliers, supporting them through dollar payments and favourable terms to ensure
their continued commercial sustainability. Meanwhile, the marketing strategy centered on prioritising the demands of our
long-term customers, despite a surge in demand from new customers at a higher price point. The Sector also pursued new
customer acquisition, through the appointment of four new agents in selected regions, with emphasis on driving increased
penetration in supported gloves. In catering to emerging dynamics, the Sector also invested over Rs. 3.11 bn in increasing and
enhancing manufacturing capacity during the year.

STRATEGIC PRIORITY RESOURCES ALLOCATED E

Capacity expansions in
all 5 manufacturing lines

Development of new
products, focusing
primarily on supported
and premium gloves

Secure supply chain
through expanding the
local farmer base

@ Rs. 3.11 bn
Capital expenditure

Rs. 231.20 mn

Investment in R&D

2,392
New farmers added to DPL
Firstlight network

N

16%

Capacity expansion

20

New products developed

5

Patents applied

66%
Local procurement (2020/21: 64%)

Rs. 14.14 bn

Payments to local suppliers (+41%)
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HAND PROTECTION

INTEGRATED PERFORMANCE REVIEW

-
T SECTOR FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
——=- 10% volume growth
g Rs. mn Rs. mn
40,000 6,000
} , o 35,000 5,000
ﬂ’ Rs. 300 mn cost savings through operational efficiencies 20000 ,
< hd 25,000 4,000
(§) 5
z ™ 20,000 3,000
‘z’: Rs. 4.35 bn payments to 2,177 employees =on
— b ’ 2,000
LI.II: 10,000
x _ 5,000 1,000
o -4 34 new customers acquired o o
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
) Operating profit — Total assets — Revenue
- 93% reliance on renewable energy m PBT — Total liabilities
_

The Sector recorded a revenue
growth of 25% supported by

timely capacity expansions which
facilitated volume growth of 10% and
aggressive customer acquisition in
selected markets. Profitability was
also supported by strategic focus

on high-value products such as
electrician’s gloves, which enabled
the Sector to sharpen its competitive
edge while supporting profitability
margins. The Sector also engaged in
an organisation-wide efficiency drive
which generated savings of Rs. 300
mn through implementation of over
150 projects aimed at reducing costs,
minimising waste and reducing energy
consumption. The Thailand operation
performed commendably during the
year, although demand for disposable
gloves moderated. Profitability was
however, adversely affected by cost
escalations resulting in PBT and PAT
declining by a respective 10% and 8% to
Rs.5.01 bn and Rs.4.05 bn.

The Sector benefits from strong
research and development capabilities
which has enabled it to consistently
introduce new products catering to
emerging requirements. During the year,
the Sector introduced 20 new products
comprising 3 unsupported ,6 supported
gloves and 11 disposable gloves offering
several unigue features. The Sector also

applied for 5 new patents including

1 at the World Intellectual Property
office. DPL also marked entry into a
new product vertical with the launch
premium sports gloves, a segment
which presents significant potential for
growth.

On the people front, emphasis was
placed on supporting the physical and
mental well-being of our employees
through facilitating vaccination drives,
mental health awareness sessions

as well as ongoing investments in

CAPACITY EXPANSION

Dipped Products PLC
Production line to manufacture
electrician’s gloves above and
beyond traditional

D P L Universal Gloves
Capabilities to produce
new designs and an
extensive range of
supported gloves

Dipped Products (Thailand)
Productivity
improvements in all 9
production lines above and
beyond traditional

stringent safety protocols. People
development was a key priority during
the year, with the Sector investing

Rs. 15.34 mn, offering more than
27,000 training hours in leadership
development, lean management,
marketing and sales among others.
During the year, the Sector successfully
obtained the Great Place to Work
(GPTW) Certification, attesting to the
strong value proposition offered to
employees. DPL also shared the gains
of its strong financial performance with
its employees.

D P L Premier Gloves
Increase in
unsupported glove
capacity

Hanwella Rubber
Products

New natural rubber
production line
with the capacity
enhancement
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We worked closely with its ecosystem of farmers and suppliers in ensuring their
commercial sustainability, which in turn was essential to securing our supply chain.
The Sector expanded the DPL First light program with the addition of 2,392 new
farmers in Kegalle, Ratnapura, Hambantota and Kurunegala. The program continues
to play a vital role in empowering livelihoods through skill development, distribution
of fertilizer and propagation of good agricultural practices. Local procurement
accounted for 66% of our procurement during the year, with Rs. 14.14 bn injected to
the local supply chain.

The Sector has made significant progress in adopting sustainable manufacturing
methods and continues to make inroads in reducing the environmental footprint
of its operations.

Through its reliance on biomass to power its boilers, renewable energy
accounted for 93% of the Sector’s total energy consumption. In line with capacity
expansions during the year, the Sector directed parallel investments towards
enhancing its effluent treatment and water recycling facilities. This included Rs.
100 mn investment in the Sector’s largest effluent treatment plant (ETP) at the
Universal Gloves factory, tripling the recycling capacity in the Hanwella facility
and conversion of chemical treatment method to biological methods at Premier
Gloves. As a result of these initiatives, the recycled water quantity increased

during the year, while 10% of total water withdrawn was recycled. With customers’

increasing preference towards socially and environmentally sustainable products,
the Sector commenced the use of bio-degradable packaging for a certain
products and intends to expand this over the short-to-medium term.

STAKEHOLDER VALUE CREATION

EMPLOYEES
Rs. 4.35 bn (+55%)

Payments to employees

Rs.mn
Rs. 2.00 mn 16,000
Remuneration per employee 14.000
Enhanced remuneration and
. } 12,000
incentive schemes to employees
through annual increments and 10,000
bonus payments. 8,000
o (¢
LOCAL RUBBER FARMERS 4000
2,000
4,500+
Farmers trained 0
2021 2022
Rs. 6.01 mn B Employees
Worth of fertilizer distributed W Government
[ Shareholders
- .
Rs. 2.70 mn Capital as lenders

Value retained
Payments to farmers

Offered a holistic value
proposition through DPL Firstlight
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QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE TRENDS

Rs.mn Rs.mn
15,000 2,000
12,000 1750

1,500
9,000
1,250
6,000
1,000
3,000 750
0] 500
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
[ Revenue
— PBT

SHAREHOLDERS

o (&

Return on Equity

Rs. 1.20 bn
Dividends for the year

Rs. 37.86 bn
Achieved highest revenue in the
Sector’s operating history

CUSTOMERS
96%

Customer satisfaction rate

Emphasis on fulfilling the
requirements of our long-term
customers by sacrificing short-

term gains for long-term
relationships
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HAND PROTECTION

PROGRESS AGAINST LIFECODE GOALS FOR YEAR 2030 AND ALIGNMENT TO SDG

through use of energy
efficient machinery and
manufacturing methods

1% reduction in GHG
emissions achieved through
93% reliance on renewable

energy to power boilers il

13 i

O/

Water
utilisation

50% waste water
recycled

Energy and
Emissions
25% reduction

Enhance

Biodiversity by

5 times

Supplier

11% wastewater recycled
through enhancing capacity
of effluent treatment plants

"

100 trees planted in
partnership with the
Kirulu project

safety and relationships
o\ 78% reduction in injuries well-being 40% screened for 40% suppliers assessed for
3 iRl Comprehensive health and “0 “workplace environmental =

oy

safety guidelines in line with
Health and safety certifications

injuries

including ISO 45,001

SASB DISCLOSURES
Table: Household and Personal Products Standard- Sustainability Disclosure Topics & Accounting Metrics

ACCOUNTING METRIC

criteria

UNIT OF

m social and environmental
practices through training and

capacity building programmes

associated with DPL Firstlight

DISCLOSURE/Pg. reference

MEASURE
Water (1) Total water withdrawn (m?3), 1,781,210
Management (2) Total water Consumed 1,781,210 (withdrawn quantity is
(3) Percentage in regions with High or Extremely High Percentage  consumed)
Baseline Water Stress (%) Not Applicable
Description of water management risks and - DPL manufacturing operations
discussions of strategies in place to manage those risks are not in regions of high water
stress
Product Revenue from products that contain REACH Rs. mn The sector does not use such
Environmental, substances of very high concern (SVHC) substances in our products
Health, and )
Safety Revenue from products that contain substances on the Rs. mn The sector does not use such
A ETEEE California DTSC Candidate Chemicals List substances in our products
Discussion of process to identify and manage No such processes with such
emerging materials and chemicals of concern materials and chemicals concern
Revenue from products designed with green Rs. mn Rs. 171.62 mn
chemistry principles (Products: Interface ECO, Xtralite
Prime)
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ACCOUNTING METRIC UNIT OF DISCLOSURE/Pg. reference
MEASURE
Packaging (1) Total weight of packaging MT 5,661
Lifecycle (2) Percentage made from recycled and/or renewable % 55
Management materials
(3) Percentage that is recyclable, reusable, and/or % 86
compostable
Discussion of strategies to reduce the environmental - * When purchasing priority is
impact of packaging throughout its lifecycle given for packaging which is

made using recycled material.

» Priority for the suppliers those
who adhered to Eco friendly
manufacturing processes.

» Priority for the products which
can be recycled easily or

biodegradable.
Environmental Amount of palm oil sourced, percentage Metric Not applicable
& Social certified through the Roundtable on tons (),
Impacts Sustainable Palm Oil (RSPO) supply chains as Percentage
of Palm Oil (a) Identity Preserved (%)

Supply Chain (b) Segregated
(c) Mass Balance
(d) Book & Claim

ACTIVITY METRICS

Units of products sold Number 275Mn Pairs
Total weight of products sold MT 15,000
Number of manufacturing facilities Number 05

OUTLOOK & PLANS

We are cognizant of the inevitable pressures that can stem from the ongoing macro-economic crisis in the short-term. Key
risks for the Sector include supply chain disruptions, escalation in the costs of imported materials, interruptions to energy
supply and the increase in interest rates which would result in higher finance costs. That said, as discussed in the table

below, the Sector has taken proactive measures to address these challenges and we are confident of fulfilling all customer
requirements in a timely and satisfactory manner. Demand dynamics remain strong, with selected product segments including
supported gloves and value-added products presenting significant potential for growth.

Despite the immediate-term pressures, measures taken by the Central Bank of Sri Lanka to stabilize the external sector,
together with fiscal consolidation and structural reforms in line with the recommendations of the IMF-supported program are
expected to facilitate a gradual recovery of the economic over the medium-to-long term. (Refer to pages 22 to 23 for further
details on the economic outlook). Accordingly the Sector remains optimistic on medium-to-long term growth prospects and
will maintain focus on its strategic priorities, consistent with the agenda followed in 2021/22.

Having recently expanded production capacity by 16% supported by strengthened research and development capabilities
and exciting new product propositions DPL is well positioned to capture emerging growth opportunities in the industry. The
Sector will accordingly pursue increased penetration in Supported gloves through new customer acquisition and deepening
relationships with existing customers. Sustainable manufacturing will also be a key priority, as we seek to further reduce our
carbon footprint, reduce water withdrawal and explore avenues for sustainable packaging in line with the Hayleys Group’s
long-term environmental aspirations set out in the Hayleys Lifecode. The short, medium and long-term outlook and plans in
place to respond to the emerging risks and opportunities are presented below:
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HAND PROTECTION

<-mmn

© Political instability

Political

Higher energy costs and interruptions to fuel supply
O

3 Supply chain disruptions

13 Increase in interest rates

Growth opportunities in supported gloves .

Favourable exchange rate .

cSocial unrest in the country

Implications of climate change on
raw material supply

Environmental

Changes in tax law

Increased stringency of safety and hygiene regulations

Response and Plans

Short-term Medium-to-long term

e Pursue aggressive growth in existing * Increased focus on use of
and new markets recycled input materials and
environmentally friendly

* Leverage relationships with banks in ) }
packaging materials

facilitating continued imports of input
materials *  Development of a favourable
product mix with increased focus

* Increase reliance on local suppliers
PP on value-added products

through the DPL Firstlight programme

* Increase buffer stocks of fuel to
ensure continuity of production and
increase reliance on renewable energy

* Proactively monitor interest rate
movements and engage with banks to
mitigate potential impacts

*  Support our eco-system of suppliers
through providing access to foreign
currency through our export income

Financial objectives

Short-term Medium to long-

targets _term targets

Revenue growth  ROCE>15%
39%

ROE 20% Borrowings <50%
Gearing 35%
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PORTFOLIO REVIEW

U
PURIFICATION

Haycarb is a global leader in the manufacture of coconut shell based activated carbon, with a strong
reputation for innovation, quality, technical excellence and sustainability. The Sector is also a leading
provider of water and waste purification systems in Sri Lanka and the Maldives.
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PURIFICATION

MARKET POSITION

A global leader in Leading provider Portfolio of
coconut shell based of water and over 1,000
activated carbon waste purification products and at
with a market share in Sri Lanka, the the forefront of
of 16% Maldives and the innovation
region

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND STABILITY

&) <)

REVENUE PAT
Rs. 32.75 bn Rs. 3.71 bn
(+29%) (+4%)

ASSETS LIABILITIES
Rs. 38.16 bn Rs. 18.91 bn
(+66%) (+88%)

Focus on innovation which increased value added carbon products and
development of existing and new markets, and efficient execution of an
uninterrupted supply chain were key to growth and profitability

STRENGTH OF OUR INNOVATION

Innovation capabilities
Rs. mn

2022

2021

¢} 5 10 15

[ | Products in the pipeline [ | New products developed
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STRATEGIC PRIORITIES 2021/22

Q

Innovation in the value Penetration of new markets Effective supply chain Operational
added-product portfolio and applications management excellence

MANAGING OUR ENVIRONMENTAL FOOTPRINT

o,
10% @ 26%
Reduction in water intensity Reduction in energy intensity
Il
‘ @
r

32%

Reduction in emission intensity

r
. COMMUNITY NURTURING
VALUE CREATION HUMAN CAPITAL
Caring for our team and
Rs. 13.78 bn ensuring their safety in
(+70% y-0-y) tainiti
Payments to suppliers uncertain times
Rs. 0.91 mn
0 Rs.72.75 mn Training investment
Investment in supplier
development
. +42
O Rs. 28.40 mn Promotions
Investment in Puritas Sath
Diyawara, Going Beyond Rs. 3.47 bn
and Hospital projects Value to employees
0 99%

Customer retention
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PURIFICATION

SECTOR OVERVIEW

P

(@:

4 N\

\_“
SRI LANKAN OPERATIONS

Manufacture of coconut-shell
based activated carbon

Contribution to Sector
Revenue: 36%
PBT: 50%

Performance 2021/22
Revenue: 38% growth
PBT: 27% growth

-

\_"

OVERSEAS MANUFACTURING

Manufacturing facility in Thailand
& Indonesia

Contribution to Sector
Revenue: 28%
PBT: 34%

Performance 2021/22
Revenue: 15% growth
PBT: 20% decline

~

( )
OVERSEAS MARKETING

Marketing arm engaged in
distribution

Contribution to Sector
Revenue: 30%
PBT: 15%

Performance 2021/22
Revenue: 63% growth
PBT: 28% growth

9
ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEERING

Provider of water and waste
purification systems

4 N\

Contribution to Sector
Revenue: 6%
PBT: 1%

Performance 2021/22
Revenue: 0% growth
PBT: 78% decline

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT

Global demand for activated carbon has remained resilient, upheld by
increasingly stringent environmental regulations, improved drinking water
treatments and emphasis on health and safety in the aftermath of the pandemic.
As a manufacturer and marketer of coconut-shell based activation, the Sector

is directly exposed to dynamics in the coconut industry. Sri Lanka’s coconut
production reached a record high supported by favourable weather conditions
in both 2020 and 2022. Coconut is also exposed to climate risks as extended
dry spells can affect yield. Meanwhile, disruptions to global supply chains and
congestion on shipping lines have led to a surge in freight rates, difficulty in
securing shipping space and extended lead times.

COCONUT PRODUCTION

Nuts (mn) Rs/nut

5,000 80

70
4,000 60
3,000 50

40
2,000 30
1,000 20

10

0] (0]

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

W Coconut production — Average FOB price
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+12%
Sri Lanka’s
Coconut production

+14%
Increase in average
retail price

8%
Anticipated
growth

STRATEGY & RESOURCE ALLOCATION

Developments in 2021/22

Sri Lanka's coconut production increased
to a record high, following a contraction

in 2020. However, the increase demand
from the industrial sector, particularly for
processed products continued to surpass
supply levels

Cost of coconut and coconut-based
products increased during the year,
mainly due to higher demand from

coconut-based industries.

Growth is expected to be driven by
increasingly stringent regulations on
industrial discharge, stringency of air
pollution regulations and pandemic-
driven prevalence towards hygiene and
cleanliness.

145

Implications on the Sector @

+Adequate supply to support
production volumes in Sri Lanka

- Negative impact on profitability
margins, given difficulties in
immediately passing on cost increases

+Opportunities for growth in high value-
added products

+Development of new products across
key application sectors

Innovation and new product development continue to be a key pillar of the Group’s strategy and a key source of competitive
strength. During the year, our R&D efforts were focused on driving innovation in higher value-added products such as hard
carbons, impregnation products and wood catalytic carbons. Hard carbons are used in emerging battery technology and
remains a key area of priority given significant potential for growth; during the year considerable focus was placed on fine-
tuning the manufacturing process and developing markets. The Sector also continued to pursue increased penetration in

key markets such as USA and Europe while also venturing into new markets. Disruptions to local and global supply chains
remained a key challenge during the year; the Sector leveraged partnerships built through the Haritha Angara initiative to
secure its local supply chain while working with the Hayleys Group’s global task force on shipping to ensure shipping space on

a timely basis.

STRATEGIC PRIORITY RESOURCES ALLOCATED E

Innovation focused on
higher value-added
products

Proactive management
of supply chain and
distribution networks

Operational excellence
and efficiency

Rs. 123.92 mn
Investment in Research &

Development
@ Rs. 13.78 bn
Payments to suppliers

Productivity
focused culture

N

14

New products developed

10

Products in the pipeline

68

New suppliers added

26%
Yield improvement of the vertical
kiln programme in Thailand
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PURIFICATION

INTEGRATED PERFORMANCE REVIEW

e R
et Sales volumes 46,422 MT SECTOR FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
— Rs. mn Rs. mn
5,000 40,000
(7)) e o/ hinhe ; 35,000
a ] 32% high-value products added to the portfolio 4,000
< 30,000
O 3,000
z ™ ' 25,000
z p & 53 new customers acquired 2,000 20,000
r 15,000
E I , HeRe 10,000
a —— Rs. 13.78 bn (+70%) payments to suppliers 5 =506
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Il ) ) ) (¢) ti fit — Total ts —R
= Rs. 1.68 bn capex in expanding capacity = PgTera MRS _thgl I?:Z?Iitsies evenue
_ J

The Sector’s revenue increased by
29% to Rs.32.75 bn supported by
increased penetration of value-

added products and strong growth

in the American region. The sharp
increase in raw material costs and
freight rates, however, adversely
affected profitability margins, with

the Sector’s Profit Before Interest &
Taxation declining by 31% to Rs.3.08
bn during the year. Overall profitability
was supported by exchange gains
following the devaluation of the Rupee,
resulting in the Sector’s Profit Before
Tax increasing by 4% to a record high
of Rs. 4.64 bn. The performance of
the Environmental Engineering arm
was below expectations due to the
downturn in the economy and will face
further challenges due to suspension
of government-funded infrastructure
projects in Sri Lanka.

During the year, the Sector’s

local supply chain was affected

by pandemic led disruptions and
strategic emphasis was placed on
securing access to inventories, thereby
ensuring uninterrupted production.
We continued to work closely with our
suppliers in supporting them through
first pandemic-led challenges and
subsequently the economic crisis.

We made considerable progress in

the Haritha Angara initiative and

the improving the yield of vertical
charcoaling kilns which aim to promote
environmentally-friendly charcoaling,

thereby reducing the carbon footprint
across our supply chain. During the
year, we added 50 new ‘Haritha
Angara’ pits bringing the total to
almost 400 and empowering over 230
suppliers across the island.

We strengthened our value proposition
to employees during the year,
adopting comprehensive measures

to ensure well-being and enhancing
remuneration and rewards in view of
the prevalent conditions in the country.
Vaccination drives were conducted in
all three countries where we operate,
resulting in nearly 99% of our total
employees obtaining both vaccines.
Our Sri Lankan facilities have also
obtained the Certificate of Conformity,
Covid-19 Management System SLS
1672: 2020 from SLSI - Sri Lanka.

We also strengthened employees’
financial security by offering the
highest increment applicable under the
collective agreement.

As an organisation with an extensive
manufacturing footprint, the

Sector is committed to reducing

the environmental impacts of its
operations and across its supply
chain. Measures adopted in our
manufacturing process includes
modification to the air treatment
process in the pellet plant and driving
circularity through conversion of waste
gas. The green charcoaling initiatives
described above have also resulted in

the considerable reduction of carbon
emissions. The Sector is also exploring
options for installing solar systems,
with the aim of increasing reliance

on renewable energy and driving
towards its carbon footprint reduction
aspirations.

The Sector invested Rs. 28.4 mn in
community engagement initiatives
during the year. It is the driving force
behind the Hayleys” Group’s flagship
CSR project Puritas Sath Diyawara
through which we provide access to
190,000 litres of purified water per day
to over 43,800 people in 23 villages
affected by Chronic Kidney Disease.
The Sector also continues to maintain
the sea turtle conservation project

in the Kirigalbe Turtle Conservation
Centre in the Kumana National Park.

QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE TRENDS

Rs.mn Rs.mn
10,000 2,500
8,000 2,000
6,000
1,500
4,000
2,000 1000
(0] 500
Ql Q2 Q3 Q4
I Revenue
— PBT

We are the Hayleys Group @ Leadership & Governance @ Unlocking Value ® Management Discussion & Analysis ® Financial Statements



STAKEHOLDER VALUE CREATION

EMPLOYEES
Rs. 3.47 bn (+33%) Rs.mn
Payments to employees 12000
99% 10,000
Employees vaccinated
. 8,000
Focus on ensuring safety of employees
in manufacturing facilities while 6,000
strengthening remuneration schemes
........................................................... o 4,000
FARMERS/OUTGROWERS 2,000
Rs. 13.78 bn (+70%) o
Payments to suppliers 2021
B Employees

Ensured continued value injection
to the rural economy through
procurement of coconut shells

M Government

[ Shareholders

[ Lenders of capital
Value retained
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SHAREHOLDERS

23% éh,

Return on equity

Rs. 861.66 mn

Dividends for the year

Achieved highest profitability in the
Sector’s operating history

GOVERNMENT

USD 68.90 mn

2022 Exports generated

58%

Local value addition

The Sector has significant local
value addition given its reliance
on local raw materials

PROGRESS AGAINST LIFECODE GOALS AND ALIGNMENT TO SDG

12% reduction in emission
carbon footprint driven
by process innovation

13 s
Acion

D

Emissions

25% reduction

Water
Management
10% reduction in
water intensity

10% reduction in total water
consumption

Through improvements

to washing processes and
technology

Biodiversity
Increase
biodiversity cover
to 10 times of the
building area

100 trees planted under the
Hayleys’ "Kirulu" programme

Procurement
At least
1supplier
development
programme

30 suppliers supported
through the Haritha
Angara initiative

Engaged team
Zero fatal injuries
to be recorded in

the year
v Zero fatal accidents

Reflecting strategic focus on
ensuring employee well-being
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PURIFICATION

OUTLOOK & PLANS

The Sector is expected to be relatively resilient to the immediate challenges presented by the economic crisis. While the
energy crisis presents a considerable risk to manufacturing activities, the Sector has taken pre-emptive efforts to equip all
plants with generators which are able to run 24X7, should power cuts be extended. As an export-driven company, we are
committed towards supporting Sri Lanka’s economic recovery through the continued generation of foreign exchange to the
country. We are cognisant of the impacts of the economic crisis on the financial security and purchasing power of our Sri
Lankan employees and will continue to support them through strengthening remuneration schemes. Our growth strategy will
focus on the value-added range of products as we seek to expand our penetration through new distributorships

< | Ep

& Political instability

Political

Favourable exchange rate o

Supply chain implications
o
- Shortages in fuel supply
@ Interest rate increase

Opportunities in new markets

& Implications of climate change

Environmental

Increasing stringency of

I environmental regulations
O

Financial objectives

Response and Plans

Short-term Medium-to-long term Short-term Medium to long-
«  Business development through  + Increase contributions from value financial term financial
market expansion of new added carbons through innovation and objectives objectives
products, identifying new partnering with customers Sales growth >8%  ROI>16%
leflieeTieine . Explore opportunities in the ROCE >14% ROCE>14%
¢ Increased resgarch and regeneration business Gearing <50%
development in value added ) )
*  Expansion of Haritha Angara across all
products

operating locations

e Process improvements,
automation and system
improvements

* Increased local procurement of
charcoal and shell

* Re-engineering and automating
manufacturing systems
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PORTFOLIO REVIEW

@)
TEXTILES

Hayleys Fabric PLC is Sri Lanka’s pioneering fabric manufacturer supplying a range of knits and fabrics
for leading global fashion brands. Having acquired and consolidated the operations of South Asia Textiles
Limited in April 2021, the Sector is now the largest textile manufacturer in the country.
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TEXTILES

MARKET POSITION

i

Sri Lanka’s Supplier of Portfolio of
largest textile innovative high- end-to-end
manufacturer quality fabric for solutions from

leading global design to
fashion brands manufacture

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND STABILITY

&) &)

REVENUE PAT
Rs. 31.67 bn Rs. 2.69 bn
(+117%) (+270%)

ASSETS LIABILITIES
Rs. 36.71 bn Rs. 26.91 bn
(+217%)

(+264%)

The Sector delivered the highest profitability in its operating
history, reflecting the consolidation of South Asia Textiles Ltd and
strong volume growth during the year

ECONOMIC IMPACT

© USD 147.83 mn

Export income generated

O Rs. 4.99 bn
Overall value distributed

O Rs. 8.59 bn

Payments to local suppliers
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STRATEGIC PRIORITIES 2021/22

& L

Innovation and value Capacity expansion Embedding social
addition through acquisition and environmental
sustainability

MANAGING OUR ENVIRONMENTAL FOOTPRINT

@) 60%
Chemicals Level 3 ZDHC certified

151

Productivity and
operational excellence

71%

Reliance on renewable energy

25%

Reduction in water intensity

Investment in CSR

—0 >1,100

Product Variants

—© 98%
Revenue generated
through INNO

—0 46
Certifications

23%

Reduction in carbon intensity

COMMUNITY NURTURING
VALUE CREATION HUMAN CAPITAL
Rs. 2.37 mn Rs. 2.90 mn

Training investment

42

Promotions

Rs. 3.13 bn

Value to employees
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TEXTILES

SECTOR OVERVIEW

(&) -

e \ N N~/ )
HAYLEYS FABRIC PLC SOUTH ASIA TEXTILES
Fabric manufacturer Fabric manufacturer, acquired by

Hayleys Fabrics in April 2021
Contribution to Sector

Revenue: 65% Contribution to Sector
PBT: 73% Revenue: 35%
PBT: 27%

Performance 2021/22
Revenue: 45% growth
PBT: 229% growth

& J . J
OPERATING ENVIRONMENT TEXTILE AND APPAREL EXPORTS

The global textile and apparel industry

is a competitive and fragmented USD mn

market, with key suppliers being 1,200

China, Bangladesh, Pakistan, Turkey 1,000

and Egypt. The Industry was among
the hardest hit from the pandemic, as
global fashion brands curtailed orders 600
amidst lockdowns and outlet closures.

800

The industry has in recent months 400
demonstrated signs of recovery as 200
global brands recommenced orders 0
driven by the materialisation of pent- 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

up demand and surge in e-commerce
channels. In Sri Lanka, the apparel
and textile sector plays a vital role in
the country’s economy, contributing
44% to total exports in 2021. The
country is a preferred destination

for apparel sourcing given its track
record of quality and timely delivery
together with its strong social and
environmental practices.
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Developments in 2021/22 . Implications on the Sector @

Growth was driven by strong recovery

+23% of orders from the USA and other major +Robust demand conditions
% Growth in garment markets, with the increase in textile and +Opportunities to pursue growth in new
and textile exports garment exports contributing more than markets and product categories

40% to the total increase in exports

Customer preference is increasingly
Sustainability shifting towards environmentally
consciousnhess produced and ethically sourced textiles
and garments

+Leverage our strong track record in
sustainability to sharpen competitive
edge and build brand

Global growth will be driven by

. +4% normalisation of activity after several + Continued opportunities to penetrate
‘0 . . . . .
. years of pandemic-led restrictions and new markets and deepen relationships
Anticipated global . i : _
the anticipated surge in e-commerce in existing markets
growth
channels

STRATEGY & RESOURCE ALLOCATION

The Sector’s strategy in recent years has centered on positioning itself as a supplier to world-class retailers and attracting
these brands through a superior value proposition. This was actioned through the development and launch of INNO- several
years ago, the Sector’s innovative, value-added fabric brand. Strategic focus has been placed on directing R&D efforts
towards strengthening the INNO proposition and widening the product portfolio. The brand has gained significant traction,
with the Sector successfully attracting several tier 1 brands and recording strong growth in volumes. During the year under
review, the Sector also pursued capacity expansion with the acquisition of the South Asia Textiles Ltd for a consideration of
Rs. 3.61 bn. The Sector swiftly sought to consolidate operations and further capital investments followed, as we upgraded the
manufacturing infrastructure, information systems, environmental management frameworks and technology. The loss-making
South Asia Textiles was turned around to be a profitable entity within one month of acquisition which has increased the
Sector’s manufacturing capacity by 45%, positioning it for strong growth to cater to emerging demand.

N

STRATEGICBRIGRITY T G et

Ongoing focus on 380
expanding the INNO Rs. 39.39 mn New products
portfolio through Investment in R&D 40
leveraging R&D capabilities . o
capabilities Products in the pipeline
. A @ Rs. 3.61 bn
apacity expansion wit Acquisition cost o,
the acquisition of South 45 A’_ i
Asia Textiles Rs. 2.29 bn CElREEy @ RRTEIon

Capital expenditure

Embedding environmental Rs. 805.82 mn 71%

sustainability to our Largest roof solar system in Reliance on renewable energy
process to drive Sri Lanka with a capacity of Conversion of South Asia Textiles to
reductions in our footprint 4.6 MW 90% renewable energy

N J
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INTEGRATED PERFORMANCE REVIEW

s N
"-'-'____ 107% revenue growth in the INNO portfolio Syl P A 2
——— Rs. mn Rs. mn
3,500 40,000
7 2 80% sales of Hayleys Fabrics generated through Tier 1 3,000 35,000
.|
< customers 2,500 30,000
gz) 2,000 25,000
2 ™ 20,000
Rs. 3.13 bn payments to 2,915 employees 1,500
z Y 15,000
I.ul.ll. 1,000 10,000
u 500 5,000
o 380 new products developed . .
L 4
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
. Operating profit — Total assets — Revenue
P 71% reliance on renewable energy = PBT _Total liabilities
_ J

The Sector delivered an exceptional
performance, demonstrating strong
resilience and agility to the numerous
challenges that prevailed during the
year. Revenue increased by 117% to

Rs. 31.67 bn, reflecting contributions
from South Asia Textiles as well as
continued volume expansion of INNO
which accounted for over 98% of
revenue during the year. Gross profit
margins were somewhat affected by
the sharp increase in raw material
costs reflecting pandemic-led
disruptions to supply chains. However,
profitability was preserved through
increased contributions from value-
added products, reflecting a richer
product mix. Overall, the Sector’s Profit
Before Tax more than tripled to Rs. 3.16
bn during the year.

During the year, strategic focus was
placed on strengthening the Hayleys
Fabric brand, by leveraging on the
unique product features such as
innovation, quality and sustainability
associated with the INNO brand. The
Sector’s efforts to develop sustainable
fabrics with natural dyes and recycled
yarn took centre stage in its market
efforts for Tier 1 customers, which in
turn enabled the Sector to increase
penetration among global retailers. We
anticipate South Asia Textiles Ltd to
also benefit from the improving brand

image of INNO, together with strong
management capabilities which will
allow it to gain traction among Tier 1
customers. Given the conditions that
prevailed during the year, the Sector
maintained proactive engagement with
customers in aligning their strategies
on fabric structures, allowing flexibility
in lead times and ensuring fast turn-
around strategies.

The Sector placed considerable

focus on driving productivity and
efficiency improvements, resulting in
Hayleys Fabrics delivering increased
volumes without investments in new
dye machines. During the year, the
Sector focused on establishing shorter
process methods and routes, reducing
re-processing due to colour failure,
strengthening production monitoring
tools and frequent reporting to

the leadership team on efficiency
indicators.

Sustainability is a key element of
our DNA and vital to our brand and
competitive edge. We are acutely
aware of the escalating implications
of climate change and are cognisant
that a holistic strategy is essential

in building climate resilience while
reducing the carbon footprint of our
own operations. Hayleys Fabrics was
accordingly the first fabric mill in

Sri Lanka to commit to the Science-
Based-Target-Initiative by UNGC,
World Wide Fund for Nature and
World Resource Institute. The Sector
has continued to drive improvements
in its environmental footprint through
increasing reliance on renewable
energy, water recycling, biodiversity
preservation and sustainable
innovation. During the year, we
invested in setting up Sri Lanka’s
largest single roof-top project with a
generation capacity of 4.6 MW, which
is expected to generate around 22% of
the Company’s requirement and result
in a near 8% reduction in the carbon
footprint.

As a Sector which uses chemicals

in its manufacturing process,
organisation-wide measures have been
implemented to ensure the use of safe
and sustainable chemicals. The Sector
adheres to the ZDHC (Zero Discharge
of Hazardous Chemicals) global
initiative and has been compliant since
2015. We have also committed to the
roadmap to zero programme, which
strives to reduce the chemical footprint
in line with the global objectives of
building a toxic-free global fashion
industry. All the chemicals and dyes
we use are certified as ZDHC level

1, while 60% have obtained level-3
compliance.
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UNIQUE VALUE PROPOSITION TO CUSTOMERS
The Sector has successfully attracted and deepened relationships with
Tier 1 customers through offering a unique value proposition centered on
the following vital elements.

s N

Innovation

Over 1,100
products offered
through INNO

~N

Quality

Quality levels
maintained over
95% >91% right the

Ve

On-time delivery

3 day turnaround
for speed orders
>90% on-time

N

Sustainability

71% reliance on
renewable energy

Responsible
disposal of waste

Product

responsibility and
transparency

Compliance
to a range of

first time delivery
<2% customer Flexible storage
complaints
(. J L J \C
( N\ N\

certifications
\§ J /
STAKEHOLDER VALUE CREATION
EMPLOYEES
Rs. 3.13 bn (+111%)
Payments to employees Rs.mn
8,000
77%
Retention rate 7,000
Focus on integrating the two 6,000
organisational cultures of Hayleys 5000
Fabrics and South Asia Textiles and '
managing organisational behaviour 4,000
o 3,000
2,000 -
COMMUNITIES 1000
Rs. 2.37 mn 0
Community investments 2021 2022
B Employees

7,000

Beneficiaries

We support communities through
employment generation, local
procurement and strategic CSR
projects

M Government

[ Shareholders

I Lenders of capital
Value retained

155

QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE TRENDS

Rs.mn Rs.mn
10,000 2,000
8,000 1,500
6,000

1,000
4,000
2,000 500
(0] 0]
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

M Revenue
— PBT

The Sector’s raw materials consist of
yarn, greige, dyes and chemicals; as
an agriculture linked output, the yarn
supply chain is directly exposed to
risks of climate change which includes
fluctuations in availability, quality and
pricing.

SHAREHOLDERS

o (&

Return on equity

Rs. 519.35 mn

Dividends for the year

Achieved highest profitability in the
Sector’s operating history

GOVERNMENT

USD 147.83 mn
Export income generated

Direct generation of export income




156 Hayleys PLC Annual Report 2021/22

TEXTILES

PROGRESS AGAINST LIFECODE GOALS FOR 2030 AND ALIGNMENT TO SDG

1:1 green to building ratio
Established a 9 acre Biodiversity
park and planted 5000+ trees

within this financial year at the
factory premises and out of the
factory premises.

Biodiversity
Increase
cover 1time the
area occupied by
the Group

through investments in
solar power generation o

Community
relationships
Increase CSR
beneficiaries by
50%

Increase
reliance on
renewable
energy to,
23% reduction in emission 90%

L r
23%re W
intensity through ()
increased reliance on ] 1

renewable energy il

7,000 beneficiaries
supported through
community engagement

. programme

Engaged
team
Targeted average
training hours
of 5.31

Health, safety
and well-being
Provide accident
free environment
to all employees

1.53 training hours/per employee
Through focus on leadership
training, technical training,
COVID-19 awareness training

Zero significant accidents
and no fatalities

SASB DISCLOSURES

Table: Apparel, Accessories and Footwear Standard- Sustainability Disclosure Topics & Accounting Metrics

ACCOUNTING METRIC UNIT OF DISCLOSURE/Pg.
MEASURE reference
Management Discussion of processes to maintain compliance with restricted N/A Refer to page 154
of Chemicals substances regulations
in Product ) i )
Discussion of processes to assess and manage risks and/or N/A Refer to page 154

hazards associated with chemicals in products

Environmental Percentage of % 1) 95% of Tier 1
Impacts in the (1) Tier 1 supplier facilities and suppliers
Supply Chain (2) supplier facilities beyond Tier 1in compliance with wastewater

discharge permits and/or contractual agreements 2) All suppliers

(Tier 1) Comply with
the environment
management system

Percentage of % N/A
() Tier 1 supplier facilities and

(2) supplier facilities beyond Tier 1 that have completed the
Sustainable Apparel Coalition’s Higg Facility Environmental
Module (Higg FEM) assessment or an equivalent environmental
data assessment
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ACCOUNTING METRIC UNIT OF DISCLOSURE/Pg.
MEASURE reference
Labour Percentage of % 100%
Conditions (1 Tier 1 supplier facilities and Complied with 09
in the Supply (2) supplier facilities beyond Tier 1 that have been audited to a labour principles of
Chain labour code of conduct, International Labour
(3) percentage of total audits conducted by a third-party auditor Organisation
Priority non-conformance rate and associated corrective action Rate No incidence non-
rate for suppliers’ labour code of conduct audits conformity incidents.
Description of the greatest N/A No such risk factors
M labour and identify
(2) environmental, health, and safety risks in the supply chain
Raw Materials 1) List of priority raw materials; N/A Main material used is
Sourcing for each priority raw material: (2) environmental and/or social Yarn, greige, Dye &
factor(s) most likely to threaten sourcing, (3) discussion on chemical.
business risks and/or opportunities associated with environmental Yarn/Greige - RM price
and/or social factors, and (4) management strategy for addressing (Forward booking)

business risks and opportunities

(1) Amount of priority raw materials purchased, by material, and MT 33,479
(2) amount of each priority raw material that is certified to a third-
party environmental and/or social standard, by standard

Number of (1) Tier 1 suppliers and Number 71
(2) suppliers beyond Tier 1

OUTLOOK & PLANS

The Sri Lankan apparel industry is poised to benefit from the shift from China to other parts of the world including South
Asia. The country also continues to be recognised as a niche manufacturer with a strong edge in innovation, value addition,
sustainability and quick turnaround times. Sri Lanka’s strong track record was further bolstered during the pandemic, in which
the country swiftly commmenced production of face masks; against this backdrop, we are confident that our customers will
continue source from Sri Lanka despite prevalent challenges arising from the country’s economic situation.

The Sector is aware of the immediate challenges that are inevitable in the face of the current crisis and has taken pre-emptive
measures to ensure uninterrupted production and on-time delivery to customers. Interruptions to fuel have been addressed
through increasing our inventory and installing generators which can be used during power outages. The Sector is also
working very closely with its suppliers in obtaining the inventory required on a timely basis to ensure continuity of production.
The Sector’s short, medium and long-term risks and opportunities are summarised below:
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«<m - cEp

& Political instability

Political

Interest rate
o

Favourable exchange rate o

o Foreign currency liquidity issue

Increased demand for sustainable products

Product and process innovation

Implications of climate change
o

& Increasing stringency of environmental regulations I

]
8
c
@
£
<
S
>
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Response and Plans Financial objectives

Short-term Medium-to-long term Short-term Long-term

« Retention of Tier-1 customer base « Capacity expansions through financial goals financial goals

» Drive further reductions in carbon gjrsailsi?)rjwoe;r’;ts\(;ir;;ufssiaa%jxtiIes ROCE 16% ROCE 16%-18%
footprint = ROE 27% ROE 24%-27%

*  Development of higher value

; - i Gearing 57% Gearing 49%-57%
added innovative synthetic

* Retain sustainability and innovation

leadership in the country .

¢ Reduce cost of imported greige by

. - i i . ntin fficien n
increasing internal knitting capacity Comitiues Siicieney 2me

productivity improvements
through training and development

* Ongoing focus on sustainability
issues
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PORTFOLIO REVIEW

N

CONSTRUCTION
MATERIALS

ALUMEX is Sri Lanka’s leading manufacturer of aluminium extrusions, offering a range of high quality,
innovative products to the residential and industrial segments. The Sector has leveraged its access to
international proprietary systems and learnings derived through compliance to global aluminium quality
certifications to develop world-class capabilities in product design and manufacture.




160 Hayleys PLC Annual Report 2021/22

CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS

MARKET POSITION

Market leader Approved
in aluminium applicator of
extrusions with leading global
a share of over powder coating
50% brands

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND STABILITY

&) &)

REVENUE PAT
Rs. 9.52 bn Rs. 1.15 bn
(+62%) (+37%)
ASSETS LIABILITIES
Rs. 12.07 bn Rs. 8.11 bn
(+57%) (+73%)

The Sector delivered the highest profitability in its operating
history, supported by 27% volume growth

LEVERAGING OUR MANUFACTURED CAPITAL
Rs. 747.49 mn
Capital Expenditure

Capacity utilisation levels

2022
2021

License holder
of leading global
aluminium
proprietary
systems

0% 20% 40% 60%
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STRATEGIC PRIORITIES 2021/22

@ &

Increased penetration New product Efficiency and cost Increase reliance on
of export markets development focusing on management

value-added products and
customised solutions

recycled raw materials

MANAGING OUR ENVIRONMENTAL FOOTPRINT THROUGH RESOURCE EFFICIENCY

20%

Reduction in energy intensity

50%

Reliance on recycled aluminium

24%

Reduction in water intensity

VALUE CREATION ACROSS
ECO SYSTEM

—O Rs. 10.84 bn (+193%)

Supplier payments

—O Rs. 3.50 mn (+75%)
Fabricators & VTA Training

—0O Rs. 393.00mn (+653%)

Commissions paid

189

New products

NURTURING HUMAN CAPITAL

Our employee value proposition centres
on people development, attractive reward

schemes and meaningful engagement

HUMA

N CAPITAL INDICATORS

Rs. mn

3,500
3,000
2,500
2,000
1,500

1,000

500

(0]

1F

Remuneration Value added Net profit
per employee per employee per employee

2021 [ 2022

- @ NEW PRODUCTS AND BRANDS
= The Sector leveraged its Intellectual Capital to launch,

ALCO

Brand

Alumex Building System (ABS)
Accredited Proprietary System

161
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OPERATING ENVIRONMENT

Demand for aluminium extrusions is being driven by increasing preference for
lightweight, durable and corrosion resistant products, with customised extrusions
offering significant opportunities for growth. Industry performance is typically
correlated to the construction sector, which in Sri Lanka posted recovery in

2021, following a sharp contraction in 2020. Demand growth was supported by
renewed activity in housing and the resumption of projects, although supply-side
challenges including shortage of imported materials, disruptions to global and
local supply chains and the sharp escalation in costs hindered industry growth.
Key external variables which impacted the Sector’s performance are listed below:

+1.9%
Construction
Sector growth

46%

Depreciation of
SLR/USD (End- of
month exchange
rate)

+50.8%
Global aluminium
prices

QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE TRENDS

Rs.mn Rs.mn
3,500 800
3,000 700
2,500 600
2,000 500

, 400
1,500 200
1,000 200
500 100
o] o]
Q1 Q3 Q4
I Revenue
PBT

Developments in 2021/22 . Implications on the Sector @

Demand dynamics were favourable
given resumption of economic activity
following the first wave of the pandemic,
although persistent supply-side
challenges hindered stronger recovery.

With market forces allowing to
determine the exchange rate from
March 2022, the Rupee fell drastically in
the last few weeks of the financial year.

Global aluminium prices surged owing to
supply limitations in China and increased
demand due to resumption of economic
activity in most Advanced countries.

+Favourable demand from both
residential and industrial segments
-Slowdown in activity towards the latter
part of the financial year reflecting
increasing macro-economic stress and
weaker sentiments

-Sharp escalation in imported

raw material costs and resultant
increase in product price will erode
competitiveness through increased cost
+Translation gains on export earnings in
the short-term

-Escalation in material inputs and
potential margin pressure
-Increased stock holding costs
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STRATEGY & RESOURCE ALLOCATION
The Sector pursued aggressive growth in export markets, acquiring new customers and deepening relationships in key
markets such as the UK, Canada, Australia, USA, New Zealand and lItaly. This growth was achieved through deploying
unutilised capacity to manufacture customised value-added products and light engineering solutions and the launch of the
Sector’s own proprietary system, Alumex Building System (ABS). In the domestic market, the Sector focused on expanding
its value-added range of products. We also launched a new brand, ALCO, with the aim of capturing market share in the
generic segment, while Alumex will continue to target the premium segment. Ongoing focus was placed on cost management
through enhancing internal efficiencies and increasing dependency on recycled aluminium.

STRATEGIC PRIORITY RESOURCES ALLOCATED E

OIOIO

Pursue increased
penetration in export
markets

Local market expansion
through developments of
new products and brand

Efficiency and cost
management drive

INTEGRATED PERFORMANCE REVIEW

163

© ® @

)

Rs. 267.51 mn

Sales and marketing
expense in export markets

17

Export customers

Rs. 6.11 mn

Investment in R&D

40%
Capacity utilisation
(2020/21: 31%)

189%

Growth in export volumes

16%

Contribution to total sales

15%

Growth in domestic sales volumes

189

New products developed

50%

Use of recycled billets

24%
Gross profit margin (2020/21: 28%)

N

e )
AL 27% increase in volumes and 28% increase in average SECTOR FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Juwual price Rs. mn Rs. mn
3,500 14,000
% & 22 customers acquired SHO O
< 2,500 10,000
= 2,000 8,000
; U Launch of ABS Proprietary System and ALCO brand 1,500 6,000
i 1,000 4,000
o = ' ' N 500 2,000
o a Rs. 7.38 mn investments in upskilling employees o o
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
) o Operating profit — Total assets — Revenue
P e 9% Increase in use of recycled aluminium W PBT — Total liabilities
_ ,
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The Sector achieved record
profitability during the year under
review, with Revenue and Profit Before
Tax increasing by a respective 61.53%
and 35%. The recovery of the local
construction sector together with
strategic focus on expanding export
revenue enabled the Sector to record
volume growth of 189%, with export
and domestic sales increasing by
288% and 44% respectively. Export
growth during the year was driven by
customer acquisition in key markets
while domestic volumes benefitted
from the introduction of several
value-added products, the launch of a
new generic brand and expansion of
the dealer network. Escalation in raw
material costs, surge in freight rates
and disruptions to supply chains led to
significant cost pressure, resulting in
the Operating Profit Margin narrowing
from 21% last year to 16%. The Sector
sought to address these pressures
through relentless focus on efficiency
initiatives and increasing contributions
from value-added products.
Resultantly, the Sector’s Profit Before
Tax increased to Rs.1.38 bn during the
year.

The Sector strengthened its
manufacturing capabilities during

the year, introducing state-of-

the-art machinery which enables
customisation of value-added products
and light engineering solutions.
Capacity utilisation increased to 40%
as the Sector deployed unutilised
capacity to cater to export demand.
The Company also widened its
product range through introducing
ready-made windows, doors, shower
cubicles, kitchen cabinets and solar
components, thereby catering to new
segments of the domestic market. The
Sector also expanded its network of
outlets with the addition of O5 LUMIN
showrooms and 06 kitchen cabinet
showrooms during the year.

The Sector marked a key milestone
during the year with the launch of

its own proprietary system, Alumex
Building System (ABS), offering a
range of high-quality doors, windows
and facades. The System obtained the
UKAS Accreditation following stringent
product testing at an accredited
overseas laboratory. The initial
response for the ABS solutions has
been extremely encouraging, with the
Sector securing several large contracts
in Singapore. We also launched value-
for-money proposition through the
introduction of the ALCO brand, with
the aim of capturing market share in
the generic segment.

Employee development was a

key priority during the year, as we
increased total training hours by

over 10-fold to nearly 8,045 hours,
focusing on lean management and
competency development. Strategic
focus was placed on ensuring
employee well-being through
stringent COVID prevention guidelines,
ongoing awareness programmes

and a successful vaccination drive,
with 99% of our staff obtaining the
first two doses. We also sponsored
treatment at Interim Care Centres and
subsequently offered medicines, dry
rations and meals for all employees
and their families who underwent
home quarantine.

Alumex continues to drive the transfer
of technical knowledge across its value
chain through ongoing fabricator
training programmes and training

for technocrats including students

of the Vocational Training Authority
and NAITA among others. The Sector
also operates a tri-lingual mobile app
for fabricators, providing access to
comprehensive technical support.

As part of our community agenda,

the Sector partnered with Mabroc
Teas (Pvt) Ltd to refurbish a ward at
the Kiribathgoda Base Hospital and
convert it to a fully-fledged COVID-19
high-dependency unit.

The Sector made considerable
progress in its circularity aspirations,
through increasing reliance on recycled
aluminium, thereby reducing waste to
landfill and optimising the use of virgin
aluminium, which is a non-renewable
material. Use of recycled aluminium
increased by 9% and accounted for
50% of total aluminium inputs during
the year. In addition to reducing
reliance on imports, procurement

of recycled aluminium from scrap
collectors also support the livelihoods
of around 148 micro-entrepreneurs.

In line with the environmental targets
set out in the Hayleys Lifecode, the
Sector successfully reduced its energy
and water consumption per unit, while
carbon intensity also Increased by 29%
during the year.

IMPACT ON OUR ECOSYSTEM

Suppliers including
638 SME suppliers
supported through
procurement of
materials

Registered fabricators
supported with
training and access to
customers

Dealers supported
through commissions
on sale
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STAKEHOLDER VALUE CREATION

EMPLOYEES
Rs. 1.34 bn (+67%)

Payments to employees

89%

Retention rate

Cost-of-living allowance granted to
employees in addition to 2 bonus payments
during the year. Supporting educational
requirements of employees’ children

VALUE CHAIN PARTNERS
155
Fabricators trained

Rs. 393 (+653%)

Commissions paid to dealers

Rs. 10.84 bn (+193%)

Payments to suppliers

2021

B Employees

M Government

[ Shareholders

W Capital as lenders
Value retained

2022

PROGRESS AGAINST LIFECODE GOALS FOR 2030 AND ALIGNMENT TO SDG

Increased use of recycled
aluminium to 50%
thereby reducing reliance
on virgin aluminium

Material
Management
57% recycled/
reclaimed
material

intensity through the use of
energy efficient technology
and manufacturing capabilities

Energy &

reductions

Supplier
relationships
At least 1 supplier
development
program
practices

Community
relationships
Increase CSR
beneficiaries by

165

SHAREHOLDERS

o (&

Return on equity

Rs. 419.02 mn

Dividends for the year

Dividends for the year

Achieved highest profitability in the
Company’s operating history

CUSTOMERS

7 Global brands
manufactured under
license

2 International quality certifications
Ongoing focus on providing high-
quality, value-added product
offerings through an island-wide
distribution network

155 fabricators and school
teachers trained through its
dedicated fabricator training
school

8

o

0,
0% 6,779 beneficiaries

supported through CSR
activities

42% decrease Occupational
Injuries-Resulting Lost Days
Holistic health and safety
measures in place to mitigate
the risk of injury

Emissions Health, safety
10% energy and well-being
20% reduction in energy intensity Zero injuries
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SASB DISCLOSURES
Table: Construction Materials Standard- Sustainability Disclosure Topics & Accounting Metrics

ACCOUNTING METRIC UNIT OF DISCLOSURE/Pg.
MEASURE reference
Greenhouse Gross global Scope 1 emissions, percentage covered under MT 6,223 CO.e
Gas Emissions  emissions-limiting regulations
Discussion of long-term and short-term strategy or plan to - Refer to pages 20
manage Scope 1 emissions, emissions reduction targets, and an to 21
analysis of performance against those targets
Air Quality Air emissions of the following pollutants: (1) NOx (excluding MT Not available
N20), (2) Sox
Energy (1) Total energy consumed GJ 115,906
Management (2) Percentage grid electricity % 27.81
(3) Percentage alternative % 72.82
(4) Percentage renewable % @)
Water (1 Total fresh water withdrawn (m3), 98,995
Management (2) Percentage recycled 0.09
(3) Percentage in regions with High or Extremely High Baseline Percentage N/A
Water Stress (%)
Waste Amount of waste generated Metric 2,018
Management Percentage hazardous tons (1), 2
Percentage recycled Percentage 38
(%)
Biodiversity Description of environmental management policies and Acres (ac), None
Impacts practices for active sites Percentage
(%)
Terrestrial acreage disturbed, percentage of impacted area None
restored
Workforce (1) Total recordable incident rate (TRIR) Rate 6.81
Health & (2) Near miss frequency rate (NMFR) for O
Safety (a) full time employees and a) 6.81
(b) contract employees b) O
Number of reported cases of silicosis Number N/A
Product Percentage of products that qualify for credits in sustainable
Innovation building design and construction certifications
Total addressable market and share of market for products that Rs. mn Zero
reduce energy, water, and/or material impacts during usage %
and/or production
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OUTLOOK & PLANS

The current macro-economic vulnerabilities can impact the Sector through challenges in sourcing imported input materials,
interruptions to energy supply, depreciation of the exchange rate and through a potential liquidity crunch in the banking
sector. Demand dynamics, particularly on exports are likely to remain favourable and we will continue to drive increased
penetration in new and existing markets, with a goal of exports contributing 50% to the Sector’s total sales by 2027/28.
Locally, we anticipate demand to be impacted in the immediate to short-term, as escalating inflation and shortage in
construction materials hinder activity in the construction sector.

That said, we are confident that the Sri Lankan economy will post gradual recovery over the medium-to-long term, supported
by bridging facilities to address critical shortages in essential items as well as measures to improve external sector stability,
fiscal consolidation and a tighter monetary policy to curb inflationary pressures (Refer to pages 22 to 23 for further details on
the economic outlook)

PESS —cE)

cPolitical instability

Political

Export demand o

Sustainably manufactured products >
cS.ubdued demand for construction

Demand for alternatives for wood fixtures -

Exchange rate depreciation
o, Energy supply ©
o Interest rates
& Shortage in foreign currency liquidity

Technological
developments in
the field

Demand for sustainably manufactured products

Environmental

& Import restrictions
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Response and Plans

As discussed in the table below, the Sector, along with the Hayleys Group are taking proactive measures to mitigate the
impacts of the current economic stresses while remaining optimistic on the medium-to-long term growth prospects.
With a current capacity utilisation of 50%, the Sector has significant potential for growth, as the release of pent-

up demand in the domestic market is expected to drive demand growth following the recovery of the economy. We

will continue to focus on developing value-added products, enhancing manufacturing capabilities and expanding its
export reach. Sustainable manufacturing will continue to be a key focus as we align with the Hayleys Group’s long-term
environmental aspirations set out in the Hayleys Lifecode. The short, medium and long-term outlook and plans in place
to respond to the emerging risks and opportunities are presented below:

Short-term

Medium-to-long term

Import substitution through increasing reliance on
recycled material

Increase buffer stocks of fuel to ensure continuity of
production

Continued penetration of exports in new and existing
markets

Ongoing focus on new product development to cater to
diversified market segments

Proactively monitor interest rate movements and engage
with banks in curtailing impacts

Measures to enhance local distribution channels and
access to customers

Ongoing focus on innovation and product development
to cater to emerging customer needs

Financial objectives

Short-term goals - Medium-to-long term goals

GP ratio: at least 19%

ROCE: >20%

Gearing <53%

ROE>15%
Gearing <40%
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PORTFOLIO REVIEW

PLANTATIONS

The Sector consists of Sri Lanka’s leading Regional Plantation Companies (RPC) Kelani Valley Plantations
PLC (KVPL) and Talawakelle Tea Estates PLC (TTE) which cultivate over 19,000 hectares of tea and rubber
across 41 estates. The Sector also engages in the export of tea through Mabroc Teas (Pvt) Ltd and Martin
Bauer Hayleys (Pvt) Ltd.
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PLANTATIONS

MARKET POSITION

Accounts for Commands Value-added
3.61% and 4.27% the industry’s tea exporter
of Sri Lanka’s highest pricing
tea and rubber for tea and
production rubber

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND STABILITY

&) &)

REVENUE PAT
Rs. 17.37 bn Rs. 2.62 bn
(+9%) (+69%) I

ASSETS LIABILITIES e

Rs. 18.19 bn Rs. 8.41 bn
(+22%) (-2%)

The Sector delivered the highest profitability in its operating
history, driven by a respective 5% and 57% increase in prices
commanded for Tea and Rubber and a 17% price improvement in
value-added tea exports by Mabroc

QUALITY AND INTELLECTUAL CAPITAL

22 CERTIFICATIONS INCLUDING

O 7 Food safety certifications
O 13 sustainability
© 2 HR practices

We are the Hayleys Group @ Leadership & Governance @ Unlocking Value ® Management Discussion & Analysis ® Financial Statements
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STRATEGIC PRIORITIES 2021/22

Strategic focus on Ongoing investments Sustainable and Product innovation and
employee engagement in automation and regenerative agriculture  new market penetration in
and value creation digitalisation practices value-added-tea

MANAGING OUR ENVIRONMENTAL FOOTPRINT

4% @ 83%

Reduction in energy intensity Reliance on renewable energy

17% 18%

Reduction in water intensity Reduction in emission intensity

COMMUNITY NURTURING
VALUE CREATION HUMAN CAPITAL

Certified as a

Rs. 244.20 mn GREAT PLACE TO WORK

Investment in CSR

—0 >305,800
Beneficiaries
Community capacity building
Rs. 8.25 mn
Training investment
—0 >453,000
Beneficiaries 71
I Health and nutrition Promotions
-0 >112,000 Rs. 5.80 bn
Beneficiaries Value to employees

Youth & empowerment
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PLANTATIONS

SECTOR OVERVIEW

(¥)

(%)

~ N
PLANTATIONS

Consists of the Sector’s RPCs,
KVPL and TTE

Contribution to Sector
Revenue: 56%
PBT: 51%

Performance 2021/22
Revenue: 11% growth
PBT: 31% growth

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT

It was a year of mixed fortunes for Sri
Lanka’s Plantation industry; rubber
prices surged in line with increased
demand, while tea prices were
maintained during the year. However,
the industry was adversely affected

by unfavourable weather, fertilizer
shortage and a near 35% wage hike for
estate sector workers. The country’s
tea production increased by 7% to
299.52 mn Kg in 2021, albeit from a low
base in the previous year while rubber
production continued to decline, falling
by 2% during the year. The shortage

in chemical fertilizer, weedicides and
fungicides have resulted in broad-
based drop in yields, with tea volumes
falling by 7% in the second half of
calendar year 2021 and a further 15%

in the first quarter of 2022. Prices

for both tea and rubber, however,
remained comparatively higher in

the last quarter, reflecting favourable
global demand for both commodities
and supply disruptions in other
markets.

( )

g
MABROC TEAS

Exporter of value-added tea

Contribution to Sector
Revenue: 44%
PBT: 47%

Performance 2021/22
Revenue: 6% growth
PBT: 116% growth

TEA AND RUBBER PRODUCTION
TRENDS-SRI LANKA

Kg mn Rs. Per KG
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